HONEY LAKE VALLEY

RESOURCE
CONSERVATION

DISTRICT

PUBLIC NOTICE
Board Meeting of the:
Honey Lake Valley Resource Conservation District
1516 Main Street
Susanville, CA 96130
(530) 260-0067

Attachments available 02/24/25 at www.honeylakevalleyrcd.us

Date: Thursday, February 27th, 2025
Location: 1516 Main Street, Susanville CA 96130

Time: 3:30 PM
AGENDA

NOTE: THE HONEY LAKE VALLEY RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT MAY ADVISE ACTION ON ANY OF
THE AGENDA ITEMS SHOWN BELOW.

NOTE: IF YOU NEED A DISABILITY-RELATED MODIFICATION OR ACCOMMODATION, INCLUDING AUXILIARY
AIDS OR SERVICES, TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING, PLEASE CONTACT THE DISTRICT OFFICE AT THE
TELEPHONE NUMBER AND ADDRESS LISTED ABOVE AT LEAST A DAY BEFORE THE MEETING.

L CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL

Il APPROVAL OF AGENDA -
Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD leadership & organizational capacity.

M. PUBLI MMENT
Per RCD Board Policy No. 5030.4.1, during this portion of the meeting, any member of the public is permitted to

make a brief statement, express his/her viewpoint, or ask a question regarding matters related to the District.
Five (5) minutes may be allotted to each speaker and a maximum of twenty (20) minutes to each subject matter.

Iv. CONSENT ITEMS -

Correspondence
Meeting Minutes 11/21/2024, 1/23/2025, 1/28/2025, 1/28/2025, 1/31/2025, 2/4/2025, 2/19/2025

Financial Reports - attached
Agreements/Contracts - California Wildlife Program, Wildlife Conservation Network: Restoring Big Game
Habitats Along the U.S. 395 Southern Corridor in Lassen County, CA (attached), Subcontract for Services

with Point Blue — NACD TA2024 Grant

oCow>»

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD Leadership & Organizational Capacity.


http://www.honeylakevalleyrcd.us

V. REPORTS
A. District Manager Report — Siemer (attachment)

B. CARCD Report - Hanson
C. Watermaster / WAC Report — Burvant
D. Unagendized reports by board members

VL. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION AND/OR DISCUSSION — WATERMASTER

VIl. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION AND/OR DISCUSSION — RCD

A. Consideration and approval of amended Policy 2520: Sick Leave (attachment)
Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD Leadership & Organizational Capacity

B. Consideration and approval of rescinded policies from Section Il: Personnel of the HLVRCD Policy
Handbook

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD Leadership & Organizational Capacity

C. Consideration and approval of LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Removal Final Environmental Review and Notice of
Determination (attachments)
Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 2 —Perioritize the Conservation Needs of the Community

D. Mid-Year Budget Review (attachment)
Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD Leadership & Organizational Capacity
E. Consideration and approval to make a presentation to the Lassen County Board of Supervisors on RCD

activities
Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 2 —Prioritize the Conservation Needs of the Community

Vil. ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—ANTICIPATED LITIGATION Significant exposure to litigation
pursuant to paragraph (2) or (3) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9: one case (Public Contract Code
section 9204 claims of M. A. Steiner Construction, Inc., which are on file and available for public inspection
upon request)

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD leadership & organizational capacity.

IX. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION

X. ADJOURNMENT
The next Honey Lake Valley RCD meeting will be March 27th at 3:30 PM. The location is 1516
Main Street, Susanville, CA.

| certify that on Monday, February 24th, 2025 agendas were posted as required by Government Code Section 54956 and any other
applicable law.

XQHZJZMM%A»J

Kelsey Siemer
District Manager




HONEY LAKE VALLEY

RESOURCE
CONSERVATION

DISTRICT

PUBLIC NOTICE
SPECIAL Board Meeting of the:
Honey Lake Valley Resource Conservation District
1516 Main Street
Susanville, CA 96130
530260067
Attachments available 11/18/2024 at www.honeylakevalleyrcd.us [}

Date: Thursday, November 21st, 2024
Location: 1516 Main Street, Susanville CA 96130

MEETING MINUTES
*votes taken via role call*

NOTE: THE HONEY LAKE VALLEY RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT MAY ADVISE
ACTION ON ANY OF THE AGENDA ITEMS SHOWN BELOW.

NOTE: IF YOU NEED A DISABILITY-RELATED MODIFICATION OR ACCOMMODATION,
INCLUDING AUXILIARY AIDS OR SERVICES, TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING, PLEASE
CONTACT THE DISTRICT OFFICE AT THE TELEPHONE NUMBER AND ADDRESS LISTED
ABOVE AT LEAST A DAY BEFORE THE MEETING.

l. ALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL

Board member Jesse Claypool called the meeting to order at 3:40PM, and a quorum was noted.
Board members Robin Hanson and Wayne Langston were absent.

I APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Board member Laurie Tippin made a motion to approve the agenda. Board member Will Johnson
seconded, and the motion passed. All.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD leadership & organizational capacity.

L. PUBLIC COMMENT - NONE

Per RCD Board Policy No. 5030.4.1, during this portion of the meeting, any member of the
public is permitted to make a brief statement, express his/her viewpoint, or ask a question
regarding matters related to the District. Five (5) minutes may be allotted to each speaker and a
maximum of twenty (20) minutes to each subject matter.


http://www.honeylakevalleyrcd.us

V. CONSENT ITEMS -

Correspondence

Meeting Minutes — 10/24/2024

Financial Reports - attached

Agreements/Contracts - J-U-B Ravendale / Madeline Water Infrastructure Systems
(attachment)

oW

Board Member Will Johnson made a motion to approve the consent items, Board member Laurie Tippin
seconded, and the motion passed. All.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD leadership & organizational capacity.
V. REPORTS

A. District Manager Report — Siemer (attachment)
Kelsey gave updates on grant projects, applications, and administrative duties.

B. Watermaster / WAC Report — Burvant
None

C. NRCS Report - Stephens
None

D. Unagendized reports by board members
Board member Will Johnson gave an update related to invasive species control efforts, Board member
Laurie Tippin gave an update from CARCD Bylaw committee about upcoming review schedule and what
to expect from them in the near future as far as bylaw updates were concerned, Board chair Jesse
Claypool gave updates on the fidelity bond situation and reasons not to pursue it.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD Leadership & Organizational Capacity &
Strategic Issue 2 - Prioritize the Conservation Needs of the Community

VL ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION AND/OR DISCUSSION - RCD

A. Consideration and approval of draft Policy 3155. Grant and Agreement Authority.
(attachment)

Board member Laurie Tippin made a motion to approve Policy 3155, Board member Will Johnson
seconded and the motion passed. All. Upon approval the Board Chair granted the District Manager the
authority listed in the attached policy.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD Leadership & Organizational Capacity

B. Consideration and approval of subsections to Section Il. Personnel of the HLVRCD Policy
Book and placement of current policies into the subsections.

Board member Laurie Tippin made a motion to approve the subsections with the modification of moving
Policy 2827 to section 2500 - Health and Safety, Board member Will Johnson seconded and the motion
passed. All.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 2 - Prioritize the Conservation Needs of the Community

C. Identify & authorize a CARCD Delegate to vote on HLVRCDs behalf through November
2025, and consider & provide direction to the Delegate for their voting on the 5 resolutions to
be presented for a membership vote at the December 2024 CARCD membership meeting.
(attachments)



Board member Laurie Tippin nominated Robin Hanson to be the CARCD delegate and gave direction to
Board Member Robin Hanson on the 5 resolutions, Board Member Will Johnson seconded and the
motion passed. All.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD Leadership & Organizational Capacity

D. Consideration and approval of CEQA NOE and environmental review for Johnstonville Dam
Project (attachment).

Board member Laurie Tippin made a motion to approve the CEQA NOE, Board member Will Johnson
seconded and the motion passed. All.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 2 - Prioritize the Conservation Needs of the Community

E. Consideration and discussion regarding amending Policy 2400: Work Schedules and
Overtime.

Discussion was held regarding Policy 2400.
Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD Leadership & Organizational Capacity
F. Second Reading of the 2025 RCD/WM Schedule
Held.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD Leadership & Organizational Capacity

VIl. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION AND/OR DISCUSSION — WATERMASTER

A. Consideration and approval of the Susan River Watermaster Service Area 2024 Annual Use
Report (attachment)
Board Member Laurie Tippin made a motion to approve the Annual Usage Report, Board Member Will
Johnson seconded, and the motion passed. All.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD Leadership & Organizational Capacity &
Strategic Issue 2 - Prioritize the Conservation Needs of the Community

B. Consideration and approval for District Manager and Board Chair to meet with the presiding
Superior Court Judge per legal counsel recommendation.
Board Member Laurie Tippin made a motion to approve the meeting, Board Member Will Johnson
seconded and the motion passed. All.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD Leadership & Organizational Capacity
Vill. AD RNMENT T LOSED SESSION - 6:20PM

A. Discussion regarding Pending Litigation (Government Code Section: 54956.9 (d) (2))
Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD Leadership & Organizational Capacity

IX. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION - 7:33PM
Nothing to report out of closed session.

X. ADJOURNMENT - 7:34PM

The next Honey Lake Valley RCD meeting will be January 23rd, 2025, at 3:30 PM.
The location is 1516 Main Street, Susanville, CA.



Respectfully Submitted,
APPROVED:

Jesse Claypool, RCD Board
Chairperson

DATE: 02/27/2025
Kelsey Siemer
District Manager



HONEY LAKE VALLEY

RESOURCE
CONSERVATION

DISTRICT

PUBLIC NOTICE
Board Meeting of the:
Honey Lake Valley Resource Conservation District
1516 Main Street
Susanville, CA 96130
530260067

Attachments available 01/20/2025 at www.honeylakevalleyrcd.us [JJjj

Date: Thursday, January 23rd, 2025
Location: 1516 Main Street, Susanville CA 96130

MEETING MINUTES
*votes taken via role call*

NOTE: THE HONEY LAKE VALLEY RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT MAY ADVISE
ACTION ON ANY OF THE AGENDA ITEMS SHOWN BELOW.

NOTE: IF YOU NEED A DISABILITY-RELATED MODIFICATION OR ACCOMMODATION,
INCLUDING AUXILIARY AIDS OR SERVICES, TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING, PLEASE
CONTACT THE DISTRICT OFFICE AT THE TELEPHONE NUMBER AND ADDRESS LISTED
ABOVE AT LEAST A DAY BEFORE THE MEETING.

l. ALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL

Board member Will Johnson called the meeting to order at 3:33PM, and a quorum was noted.
Board member Jesse Claypool was absent.

I APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Board member Robin Hanson made a motion to approve the agenda. Board member Wayne Langston
seconded, and the motion passed. All.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD leadership & organizational capacity.

L. PUBLIC COMMENT - NONE

Per RCD Board Policy No. 5030.4.1, during this portion of the meeting, any member of the
public is permitted to make a brief statement, express his/her viewpoint, or ask a question
regarding matters related to the District. Five (5) minutes may be allotted to each speaker and a
maximum of twenty (20) minutes to each subject matter.


http://www.honeylakevalleyrcd.us

V. CONSENT ITEMS -

Correspondence - NONE
Meeting Minutes — NONE
Financial Reports - NONE
Agreements/Contracts - NONE

cow»

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD leadership & organizational capacity.
V. REPORTS

A. District Manager Report — Siemer (attachment)

Kelsey gave updates on grant projects, applications, and administrative duties.
B. Post Fire Recovery Report — Wooster

Catherine gave updates on USFS, USFS 2, and the cone collection program

C. Watermaster / WAC Report — Burvant

Brian gave updates on the watermaster service and upcoming projects
D. NRCS Report - Stephens

None

E. Unagendized reports by board members
Board member Will Johnson gave an update related to invasive species control efforts, Board member
Laurie Tippin gave an update from CARCD Bylaw committee, Board chair Jesse Claypool gave updates
on SDRMA Spring Education Day and worker’s comp insurance, Board Member Robin Hanson gave
updates on the CARCD Conference planning efforts.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD Leadership & Organizational Capacity &
Strategic Issue 2 - Prioritize the Conservation Needs of the Community

VL. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION AND/OR DISCUSSION — RCD
A. Annual Organizational Meeting (RCD 5010.5; PRC 9306 & 9307)
1. Election of officers (chairman, vice-chairman and secretary/treasurer).
2. Appointment of District Manager as secretary to the Board.

Board Member Wayne Langston made a motion to keep the officer’s positions the same, Board Member
Robin Hanson seconded and the motion passed. All. Board Member Robin Hanson made a motion to
appoint the DM as the Secretary to the Board, Board Member Wayne Langston seconded and the motion
passed. All.

B. File Statement of Facts with the Secretary of State
Board Member Jesse Claypool made a motion to file the Statement of Facts, Board Member Robin
Hanson seconded, and the motion passed. All.

C. Assignment of committees (SWAT, WAC, Modoc Regional RCD/CARCD, FireSafe Council,
IRWM, NRCS Partnership)
Board Member Laurie Tipppin made a motion to assign committees as follows:
SWAT - Kelsey Siemer
WAC - Wayne Langston
Modoc Regional RCD/CARCD - Robin Hanson
Fire Safe Council - Will Johnson
IRWM - Jesse Claypool
NRCS Partnership - Robin Hanson
Board member Jesse Claypool seconded and the motion passed. All



D. Policy update/revisions (RCD 5010.1)
Board member Laurie Tippin made a motion to approve the policy update and revisions, Board member
Robin Hanson seconded and the motion passed. All.

E. Place and time of meetings
Included in policy update and revisions, see above.

F. Approval and adoption of 2025 RCD calendar (attachment)
Board member Will Johnson made a motion to adopt the 2025 calendar, Board Member Robin Hanson
seconded, and the motion passed. All.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD Leadership & Organizational Capacity
G. Consideration and approval of amended Policy 2500 Paid Vacation Time (attachment)

Board member Will Johnson made a motion to approve the amended policy, Board member Robin
Hanson seconded and the motion passed. All.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD Leadership & Organizational Capacity
H. Consideration and approval of Resolution 2025-01 (attachment)

Board Member Laurie Tippin made a motion to approve the Resolution, Board member Will Johnson
seconded, and the motion passed. All.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD Leadership & Organizational Capacity

I.  Consideration and approval of CEQA NOE and Environmental Review for Madeline Water
System Improvement Project (attachment)

Board Member Laurie Tippin made a motion to approve the CEQA NOE, Board Member Robin Hanson
seconded and the motion passed. All.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD Leadership & Organizational Capacity

J. Consideration and approval of CEQA NOE and Environmental Review for Ravendale Water
System Improvement Project (attachment)

Board member Laurie Tipppin made a motion to approve the CEQA NOE, Board Member Will Johnson
seconded and the motion passed. All.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD Leadership & Organizational Capacity

L ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION - 4:56PM

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—ANTICIPATED LITIGATION Significant exposure
to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) or (3) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9: one case
(Public Contract Code section 9204 claims of M. A. Steiner Construction, Inc., which are on
file and available for public inspection upon request)

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD leadership & organizational capacity.

Il RETURN TO OPEN SESSION - 6:18PM
Nothing to report out of closed session.

M. ADJOURNMENT - 6:18PM




The next Honey Lake Valley RCD meeting will be Eebruary 27th at 3:30 PM. The
location is 1516 Main Street, Susanville, CA.

Respectfully Submitted,
APPROVED:

Jesse Claypool, RCD Board
Chairperson

DATE: 02/27/2025
Kelsey Siemer
District Manager



HONEY LAKE VALLEY

RESOURCE
CONSERVATION

DISTRICT

PUBLIC NOTICE
SPECIAL Board Meeting of the:
Honey Lake Valley Resource Conservation District
1516 Main Street
Susanville, CA 96130
530260067

Attachments available 01/24/2025 at www.honeylakevalleyrcd.us [JJjj
Date: Tuesday, January 28th, 2025
Location: 1516 Main Street, Susanville CA 96130

MEETING MINUTES
*votes taken via role call*

NOTE: THE HONEY LAKE VALLEY RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT MAY ADVISE
ACTION ON ANY OF THE AGENDA ITEMS SHOWN BELOW.

NOTE: IF YOU NEED A DISABILITY-RELATED MODIFICATION OR ACCOMMODATION,
INCLUDING AUXILIARY AIDS OR SERVICES, TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING, PLEASE
CONTACT THE DISTRICT OFFICE AT THE TELEPHONE NUMBER AND ADDRESS LISTED
ABOVE AT LEAST A DAY BEFORE THE MEETING.

l. ALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL

Board member Jesse Calypool called the meeting to order at 3:36PM, and a quorum was noted.
n. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Board member Will Johnson made a motion to approve the agenda. Board member Robin Hanson
seconded, and the motion passed. All.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD leadership & organizational capacity.

M. PUBLIC COMMENT - NONE

Per RCD Board Policy No. 5030.4.1, during this portion of the meeting, any member of the
public is permitted to make a brief statement, express his/her viewpoint, or ask a question
regarding matters related to the District. Five (5) minutes may be allotted to each speaker and a
maximum of twenty (20) minutes to each subject matter.


http://www.honeylakevalleyrcd.us

V. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION AND/OR DISCUSSION - RCD
A. Consideration and approval of policy 3120 Investment of District and Watermaster Funds;
and board officer responsible for the investment program (attachment)
Board Member Will Johnson made a motion to approve the policy 3120, Board Member Robin Hanson
seconded and the motion passed. All. Board Member Laurie Tippin assigned the Secretary / Treasurer as
the officer responsible, Board member Will Johnson seconded and the motion passed. All.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD leadership & organizational capacity.

B. Consideration and approval of CEQA NOE and Environmental Review for the Dyer Mountain
Initiative WUI Fuel Treatments Project (attachment)
Board Member Laurie Tippin made a motion to approve the CEQA NOE, Board Member Robin Hanson
seconded and the motion passed. All.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD leadership & organizational capacity &
Strategic Issue 2 - Prioritize the Conservation Needs of the Community

V. ADJOURNMENT - 3:56PM

The next Honey Lake Valley RCD meeting will be Eebruary 27th at 3:30 PM. The
location is 1516 Main Street, Susanville, CA.

Respectfully Submitted,
APPROVED:

Jesse Claypool, RCD Board
Chairperson

DATE: 02/27/2025

Kelsey Siemer
District Manager



HONEY LAKE VALLEY

RESOURCE
CONSERVATION

DISTRICT

PUBLIC NOTICE
SPECIAL Board Meeting of the:
Honey Lake Valley Resource Conservation District
1516 Main Street
Susanville, CA 96130
530260067

Attachments available 01/24/2025 at www.honeylakevalleyrcd.us [JJjj
Date: Tuesday, January 28th, 2025
Location: 1516 Main Street, Susanville CA 96130

MEETING MINUTES
*votes taken via role call*

NOTE: THE HONEY LAKE VALLEY RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT MAY ADVISE
ACTION ON ANY OF THE AGENDA ITEMS SHOWN BELOW.

NOTE: IF YOU NEED A DISABILITY-RELATED MODIFICATION OR ACCOMMODATION,
INCLUDING AUXILIARY AIDS OR SERVICES, TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING, PLEASE
CONTACT THE DISTRICT OFFICE AT THE TELEPHONE NUMBER AND ADDRESS LISTED
ABOVE AT LEAST A DAY BEFORE THE MEETING.

l. ALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL

Board member Jesse Claypool called the meeting to order at 3:36PM, and a quorum was noted.
n. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Board member Will Johnson made a motion to approve the agenda. Board member Robin Hanson
seconded, and the motion passed. All.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD leadership & organizational capacity.

M. PUBLIC COMMENT - NONE

Per RCD Board Policy No. 5030.4.1, during this portion of the meeting, any member of the
public is permitted to make a brief statement, express his/her viewpoint, or ask a question
regarding matters related to the District. Five (5) minutes may be allotted to each speaker and a
maximum of twenty (20) minutes to each subject matter.


http://www.honeylakevalleyrcd.us

V. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION AND/OR DISCUSSION - RCD
A. Consideration and approval of policy 3120 Investment of District and Watermaster Funds;
and board officer responsible for the investment program (attachment)
Board Member Will Johnson made a motion to approve the policy 3120, Board Member Robin Hanson
seconded and the motion passed. All. Board Member Laurie Tippin assigned the Secretary / Treasurer as
the officer responsible, Board member Will Johnson seconded and the motion passed. All.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD leadership & organizational capacity.

B. Consideration and approval of CEQA NOE and Environmental Review for the Dyer Mountain
Initiative WUI Fuel Treatments Project (attachment)
Board Member Laurie Tippin made a motion to approve the CEQA NOE, Board Member Robin Hanson
seconded and the motion passed. All.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD leadership & organizational capacity &
Strategic Issue 2 - Prioritize the Conservation Needs of the Community

V. ADJOURNMENT - 3:56PM

The next Honey Lake Valley RCD meeting will be Eebruary 27th at 3:30 PM. The
location is 1516 Main Street, Susanville, CA.

Respectfully Submitted,
APPROVED:

Jesse Claypool, RCD Board
Chairperson

DATE: 02/27/2025

Kelsey Siemer
District Manager



HONEY LAKE VALLEY

RESOURCE
CONSERVATION

DISTRICT

PUBLIC NOTICE
EMERGENCY Board Meeting of the:
Honey Lake Valley Resource Conservation District
1516 Main Street
Susanville, CA 96130
530260067

Attachments available 01/24/2025 at www.honeylakevalleyrcd.us .
Date: Tuesday, January 28th, 2025
Location: 1516 Main Street, Susanville CA 96130

MEETING MINUTES
*votes taken via role call*

NOTE: THE HONEY LAKE VALLEY RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT MAY ADVISE
ACTION ON ANY OF THE AGENDA ITEMS SHOWN BELOW.

NOTE: IF YOU NEED A DISABILITY-RELATED MODIFICATION OR ACCOMMODATION,
INCLUDING AUXILIARY AIDS OR SERVICES, TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING, PLEASE
CONTACT THE DISTRICT OFFICE AT THE TELEPHONE NUMBER AND ADDRESS LISTED
ABOVE AT LEAST A DAY BEFORE THE MEETING.

l. ALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL

Board member Jesse Claypool called the meeting to order at 4:02PM, and a quorum was noted.
n. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Board member Robin Hanson made a motion to approve the agenda. Board member Laurie Tippin
seconded, and the motion passed. All.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD leadership & organizational capacity.

M. PUBLIC COMMENT - NONE

Per RCD Board Policy No. 5030.4.1, during this portion of the meeting, any member of the
public is permitted to make a brief statement, express his/her viewpoint, or ask a question
regarding matters related to the District. Five (5) minutes may be allotted to each speaker and a
maximum of twenty (20) minutes to each subject matter.


http://www.honeylakevalleyrcd.us

V. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION AND/OR DISCUSSION - RCD
A. Consideration and discussion regarding the immediate pause of federal agency grant, loan,
or other financial assistance programs. (attachment)
Held

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD leadership & organizational capacity.

V. ADJOURNMENT - 5:23PM

The next Honey Lake Valley RCD meeting will be February 27th at 3:30 PM. The
location is 1516 Main Street, Susanville, CA.

Respectfully Submitted,
APPROVED:

Jesse Claypool, RCD Board
Chairperson

DATE: 02/27/2025
Kelsey Siemer
District Manager



HONEY LAKE VALLEY

RESOURCE
CONSERVATION

DISTRICT

PUBLIC NOTICE
EMERGENCY Board Meeting of the:
Honey Lake Valley Resource Conservation District
1516 Main Street
Susanville, CA 96130
530260067

Attachments available 01/24/2025 at www.honeylakevalleyrcd.us .
Date: Tuesday, January 28th, 2025
Location: 1516 Main Street, Susanville CA 96130

MEETING MINUTES
*votes taken via role call*

NOTE: THE HONEY LAKE VALLEY RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT MAY ADVISE
ACTION ON ANY OF THE AGENDA ITEMS SHOWN BELOW.

NOTE: IF YOU NEED A DISABILITY-RELATED MODIFICATION OR ACCOMMODATION,
INCLUDING AUXILIARY AIDS OR SERVICES, TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING, PLEASE
CONTACT THE DISTRICT OFFICE AT THE TELEPHONE NUMBER AND ADDRESS LISTED
ABOVE AT LEAST A DAY BEFORE THE MEETING.

l. ALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL

Board member Jesse Claypool called the meeting to order at 4:02PM, and a quorum was noted.
n. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Board member Robin Hanson made a motion to approve the agenda. Board member Laurie Tippin
seconded, and the motion passed. All.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD leadership & organizational capacity.

M. PUBLIC COMMENT - NONE

Per RCD Board Policy No. 5030.4.1, during this portion of the meeting, any member of the
public is permitted to make a brief statement, express his/her viewpoint, or ask a question
regarding matters related to the District. Five (5) minutes may be allotted to each speaker and a
maximum of twenty (20) minutes to each subject matter.


http://www.honeylakevalleyrcd.us

V. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION AND/OR DISCUSSION - RCD
A. Consideration and discussion regarding the immediate pause of federal agency grant, loan,
or other financial assistance programs. (attachment)
Held

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD leadership & organizational capacity.

V. ADJOURNMENT - 5:23PM

The next Honey Lake Valley RCD meeting will be February 27th at 3:30 PM. The
location is 1516 Main Street, Susanville, CA.

Respectfully Submitted,
APPROVED:

Jesse Claypool, RCD Board
Chairperson

DATE: 02/27/2025
Kelsey Siemer
District Manager



HONEY LAKE VALLEY

RESOURCE
CONSERVATION

DISTRICT

PUBLIC NOTICE
SPECIAL Board Meeting of the:
Honey Lake Valley Resource Conservation District
1516 Main Street
Susanville, CA 96130
530260067

Attachments available 01/29/2025 at www.honeylakevalleyrcd.us .

Date: Friday, January 31st, 2025
Location: 1516 Main Street, Susanville CA 96130

MEETING MINUTES
*votes taken via role call*

NOTE: THE HONEY LAKE VALLEY RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT MAY ADVISE
ACTION ON ANY OF THE AGENDA ITEMS SHOWN BELOW.

NOTE: IF YOU NEED A DISABILITY-RELATED MODIFICATION OR ACCOMMODATION,
INCLUDING AUXILIARY AIDS OR SERVICES, TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING, PLEASE
CONTACT THE DISTRICT OFFICE AT THE TELEPHONE NUMBER AND ADDRESS LISTED
ABOVE AT LEAST A DAY BEFORE THE MEETING.

l. ALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL

Board member Will Johnson called the meeting to order at 3:44PM, and a quorum was noted.
Board Member Jesse Claypool was absent.

I APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Board member Robin Hanson made a motion to approve the agenda. Board member Laurie Tippin
seconded, and the motion passed. All.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD leadership & organizational capacity.

L. PUBLIC COMMENT - NONE

Per RCD Board Policy No. 5030.4.1, during this portion of the meeting, any member of the
public is permitted to make a brief statement, express his/her viewpoint, or ask a question
regarding matters related to the District. Five (5) minutes may be allotted to each speaker and a
maximum of twenty (20) minutes to each subject matter.


http://www.honeylakevalleyrcd.us

\'A ITEMS FOR WATERMASTER BOARD ACTION AND/OR DISCUSSION

A. Consideration and approval to amend the Susan River Watermaster Rules & Regulations
to update the address at Article 2.0 Principal Office to the Watermaster's new address
(attachment)
Board Member Robin Hanson made a motion to update the address, Board member Laurie Tippin
seconded and the motion passed. All.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD leadership & organizational capacity.

B. Consideration and approval to amend the Susan River Watermaster Rules and
Regulations Article Il Administration, 2.17 Lending Surplus Funds & renumber all
subsequent provisions in Article Il. (attachment)

Board member Laurie Tippin made a motion to amend the Rules and Regulations, Board member Wayne
Langston seconded. Board Members Laurie Tipppin and Wayne Langston voted in favor of the motion,
Board Members Will Johnson and Robin Hanson voted against the motion. With a split vote, the motion
dies.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD leadership & organizational capacity.

IV. ADJOURNMENT -4:26 PM
The next Honey Lake Valley RCD meeting will be Eebruary 27th at 3:30 PM. The

location is 1516 Main Street, Susanville, CA.

Respectfully Submitted,
APPROVED:

Jesse Claypool, RCD Board
Chairperson

DATE: 02/27/2025
Kelsey Siemer
District Manager



HONEY LAKE VALLEY

RESOURCE
CONSERVATION

DISTRICT

PUBLIC NOTICE
SPECIAL Board Meeting of the:
Honey Lake Valley Resource Conservation District
1516 Main Street
Susanville, CA 96130
530260067
Attachments available 02/03/2025 at www.honeylakevalleyrcd.us .

Date: Tuesday, February 4th, 2025
Location: 1516 Main Street, Susanville CA 96130

MEETING MINUTES
*votes taken via role call*

NOTE: THE HONEY LAKE VALLEY RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT MAY ADVISE
ACTION ON ANY OF THE AGENDA ITEMS SHOWN BELOW.

NOTE: IF YOU NEED A DISABILITY-RELATED MODIFICATION OR ACCOMMODATION,
INCLUDING AUXILIARY AIDS OR SERVICES, TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING, PLEASE
CONTACT THE DISTRICT OFFICE AT THE TELEPHONE NUMBER AND ADDRESS LISTED
ABOVE AT LEAST A DAY BEFORE THE MEETING.

l. ALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL

Board member Jesse Claypool called the meeting to order at 3:32PM, and a quorum was noted.
n. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Board member Robin Hanson made a motion to approve the agenda. Board member Will Johnson
seconded, and the motion passed. All.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD leadership & organizational capacity.

M. PUBLIC COMMENT - NONE

Per RCD Board Policy No. 5030.4.1, during this portion of the meeting, any member of the
public is permitted to make a brief statement, express his/her viewpoint, or ask a question
regarding matters related to the District. Five (5) minutes may be allotted to each speaker and a
maximum of twenty (20) minutes to each subject matter.


http://www.honeylakevalleyrcd.us

\"A ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION - 3:34PM

a. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—ANTICIPATED LITIGATION Significant
exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) or (3) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9:
one case (Public Contract Code section 9204 claims of M. A. Steiner Construction, Inc.,
which are on file and available for public inspection upon request)

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD leadership & organizational capacity.

V. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION - 5:20PM

Nothing to report out of closed session.
Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD leadership & organizational capacity.

VL ADJOURNMENT - 5:21PM

The next Honey Lake Valley RCD meeting will be February 27th at 3:30 PM. The
location is 1516 Main Street, Susanville, CA.

Respectfully Submitted,
APPROVED:

Jesse Claypool, RCD Board
Chairperson

DATE: 02/27/2025

Kelsey Siemer
District Manager



HONEY LAKE VALLEY

RESOURCE
CONSERVATION

DISTRICT

PUBLIC NOTICE
EMERGENCY Board Meeting of the:
Honey Lake Valley Resource Conservation District
1516 Main Street
Susanville, CA 96130
530260067
Attachments available 02/19/2025 at www.honeylakevalleyrcd.us .

Date: Wednesday, February 19th, 2025
Location: 1516 Main Street, Susanville CA 96130

MEETING MINUTES
*votes taken via role call*

NOTE: THE HONEY LAKE VALLEY RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT MAY ADVISE
ACTION ON ANY OF THE AGENDA ITEMS SHOWN BELOW.

NOTE: IF YOU NEED A DISABILITY-RELATED MODIFICATION OR ACCOMMODATION,
INCLUDING AUXILIARY AIDS OR SERVICES, TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING, PLEASE
CONTACT THE DISTRICT OFFICE AT THE TELEPHONE NUMBER AND ADDRESS LISTED
ABOVE AT LEAST A DAY BEFORE THE MEETING.

l. ALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL

Board member Jesse Claypool called the meeting to order at 3:35PM, and a quorum was noted.
Board member Will Johnson was absent.

I APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Board member Robin Hanson made a motion to approve the agenda. Board member Laurie Tippin
seconded, and the motion passed. All.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD leadership & organizational capacity.

L. PUBLIC COMMENT - NONE

Per RCD Board Policy No. 5030.4.1, during this portion of the meeting, any member of the
public is permitted to make a brief statement, express his/her viewpoint, or ask a question
regarding matters related to the District. Five (5) minutes may be allotted to each speaker and a
maximum of twenty (20) minutes to each subject matter.


http://www.honeylakevalleyrcd.us

\'A ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION - 3:36PM

A. Consideration and discussion regarding the immediate pause of federal agency grant, loan,
or other financial assistance programs.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD leadership & organizational capacity.

V. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION - 5:34PM
Nothing to report out of closed session.

Tie to the Strategic Plan: Strategic Issue 1 — Build HLVRCD leadership & organizational capacity.

VI. ADJOURNMENT - 5:34PM
The next Honey Lake Valley RCD meeting will be February 27th at 3:30 PM. The
location is 1516 Main Street, Susanville, CA.

Respectfully Submitted,
APPROVED:

Jesse Claypool, RCD Board
Chairperson

DATE: 02/27/2025

Kelsey Siemer
District Manager



(%) WCN

Wildlife Conservation Network

11 February 2025

Kelsey Siemer

The Honey Lake Valley Resource Conservation District
1516 Main Street, Suite A,

Susanville, CA 96130

Dear Kelsey,

On behalf of Wildlife Conservation Network, we are pleased to inform you that your proposal for
Restoring Big Game Habitats Along the U.S. 395 Southern Corridor in Lassen County, California” has
been approved for a grant of $499,634.67.

First payment of this grant will be completed within 2 weeks after WCN has signed the Grant Agreement,
and per the schedule set in the Grant Agreement. We are honored and pleased to have the opportunity to
support your project.

Please find attached a Grant Agreement detailing our mutual responsibilities, including the financial and
reporting aspects associated with this grant. Please sign and return a copy to us at your earliest
convenience.

As outlined in the Grant Agreement, please send the following:
® Your banking details with bank letterhead.
® Progress report(s) as described in the Grant Agreement.
e Afinal project report at the end of the project.
e Any interesting events or updates from this project.

Sincerely,
Neal Sharma Jean-Gaél Collomb, PhD
Director, California Wildlife Program, WCN Chief Executive Officer, WCN

(%) WCN

Wildlife Conservation Network

Wildlife Conservation Network | 209 Mississippi Street, San Francisco, CA 94107, USA | www.wildnet.org



https://wildnet.org/

A Grant Agreement
Between the California Wildlife Program, managed through the Wildlife Conservation Network (“Grantor”), and
The Honey Lake Valley Resource Conservation District (“Grantee”) for the project:
“Restoring Big Game Habitats Along the U.S. 395 Southern Corridor in Lassen County, California”

Project Leader: Odessa Amaryllis

Partner: California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW), Backcountry Hunters and Anglers, The
Institute for Applied Ecology, and The Wildlands Network

Address:
1516 Main Street, Suite A,
Susanville, CA 96130

Project code: CA-HLV-01-CWP

Date of Award: 11 February 2025

Award Period: 1 May 2025- 30 June 2028

Funding: USD499,634.67

Grantor and Grantee hereby agree to the following conditions:

1.

Financial Responsibilities

1.1. Grantor agrees to fund the project “Restoring Big Game Habitats Along the U.S. 395 Southern Corridor in
Lassen County, California.” Renewal or extension of this grant will be subject to the relevance of the project
according to the WCN/CWP funding criteria, availability of funds, and demonstrated achievements.

1.2. The funds provided by the Grantor are for charitable purposes, and the Grantee agrees that they shall be
used only for those specific purposes described in the project budget and funding activities identified on the
project proposal, see Appendix 1.

1.3. The Grantee will not use WCN/CWP funds towards lobbying associated with an individual running for
elected office.

1.4. Grant funds should be spent as per the approved budget. If changes are requested, notify Neal Sharma at
neal@wildnet.org and Brooke Edell at brooke@wildnet.org.

1. Grantee has permission to move funds between existing budget lines.
2. If Grantee wishes to reallocate funds to new budget line items, approval must be given by California
Wildlife Program’s Director.

1.5. Any funds that may remain upon completion of the grant period or upon completion of the project (or if the
project is interrupted for any reason) shall be reported to Grantor and returned within thirty (30) days
unless agreed otherwise in writing.

1.6. Grantee will inform Grantor without delay if the project is interrupted in any way or if there are any material
changes in the ability of Grantee to carry out the project successfully (including but not restricted to changes
in key personnel, in the security situation, or in the relationship with the government). In this event, Grantor
has the right to order the project to be suspended, pending a decision by Grantor as to whether the project
should continue or be terminated. If the project is terminated, Grantee will submit financial records
outlining expenditures to date and expenditures needed to terminate activities for approval by Grantor.

1.7. Any changes in the project goals and objectives in the project proposal must be requested in writing by
Grantee and approved in advance by Grantor.

1.8. Payment will be made to Grantee identified above by bank transfer (wire) or bank draft (check).

1.9. Payment is contingent upon the submission of a 501c3 tax determination letter.

1.10. Following the signing of this Grant Agreement, Grantee will receive the first payment of USD166,544.89,
the second payment of USD166,544.89 after year one (May 2026) and satisfactory reports, and the third
payment of USD166,544.89 after year two (May 2027) and satisfactory reports, according to the budget
outlined in Appendix 1.

1.11. Grantor funding cannot be used by Grantee to plant non-native species.



mailto:neal@wildnet.org

2. Reporting and Communication

2.1.

2.2,

2.3.

2.4.

2.5.
2.6.

2.7.

Where sensitivities allow, Grantee is requested to provide regular email updates with photographs as
significant events happen because CWP aspires to use these updates to promote the work of Grantee and
the CWP.

Grantee agrees to submit a brief 6-month progress report that should be submitted by 1 November 2025, 1

May 2026, 1 November 2026, 1 May 2027, and 1 November 2027.

Grantee agrees to submit a final report informing Grantor of progress, results, and of any problems

encountered during the duration of the grant. The due date for submission is 30 July 2028. The suggested

content of the final report is stated in Appendix 2.

1. All expenses incurred by Grantee in relation to this grant shall be accounted for in the financial
accounting section of the final report. All expense receipts and/or invoices shall be retained by Grantee
and, if requested, submitted to Grantor.

Reports should be identified as ‘public’, allowing for free dissemination, ‘confidential’ only for circulation
within Grantee / WCN staff members, or ‘highly confidential’ for distribution only to Neal Sharma and JG

Collomb. In the event that non-public reports are provided, then, if possible, a public version should also be

provided.

1. The Grantee is not obliged to include operationally sensitive information, such as names of individuals
and operational details, even in 'highly confidential’ reports, when there is concern that sharing such
information may compromise existing operations, prosecutions, or the safety of individuals and/or where
permission has not been granted by the relevant government agencies or where disclosure is not in
accordance with applicable law.

2. In the event that non-public reports are provided, then, if possible, a public version should also be
provided.

The project may be described on the WCN website and other WCN communications.

If Grantee wishes to apply for further funds from Grantor before the completion of this grant period,

Grantee agrees to submit a preliminary technical and financial report to Grantor.

All communication with Grantor should be addressed to the WCN lead for this project, Neal Sharma

(neal@wildnet.org), and the Conservation Funds Manager, Brooke Edell (brooke@wildnet.org).

3. Responsibilities of Grantee

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4,

3.5.

3.6.

Grantee confirms that any funds provided by Grantor will be used in a manner consistent with Grantee's
stated purpose and objectives in the proposal.
Grantee will ensure that project personnel do not engage in any activity incompatible with the aims and
objectives of this Grant Agreement or contrary to the laws and regulations in force in the country where the
project is active.
Grantee confirms that there are mechanisms in place to ensure project personnel are aware of and abide by
the standards of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights and the United Nations Declaration on the
Rights of Indigenous Peoples.
1. Grantee confirms that activities funded by this grant will not violate human rights or Indigenous people’s
rights.
2. Grantee confirms that your organization is not in any way complicit in the violation of human rights by a
third-party entity.
3. Grantee confirms that if they are involved in law enforcement, that all relevant laws are followed.
4. Grantee confirms that steps are in place to prevent human rights abuses by any authorities supported
through this grant.
Grantee confirms that if firearms are used by their employees, they are in possession of written permission
from the authorities for such usage and that clear steps have been taken to avoid the violation of human-
rights as a result of their deployment (for example, through training or the provision of standard operating
procedures to employees).
If, during the course of the grant period, Grantee becomes aware of any violation of human rights or
Indigenous people's rights, they will notify Grantor immediately and endeavor to mitigate those violations.
In consideration of this grant, Grantee hereby ensures that Grantor and its directors, employees, and agents
are free of any liability or damages arising out of or in connection with the project, including but not limited
to liability for illness, injury, or death connected in any manner with the project.
2


mailto:neal@wildnet.org
mailto:brooke@wildnet.org

3.7.

3.8.

3.9.

Equipment, materials, and supplies donated/funded by Grantor for the execution of the project shall remain
under the supervision and direction of Grantee for the duration of the project or such other time as
mutually agreed upon by the parties either at the end of the project period, or should Grantee cease to be
involved in the project, or should the project be dissolved or cease to have any use for these items, donation
or other ownership of the equipment shall vest in a non-profit entity(ies) agreed upon prior by Grantor.

1. If the budget includes expenses for capital expenditures on equipment USD 10,000 and over, such
equipment must be used for the project during the grant period. Thereafter, for the remaining useful life
of the equipment (if any) or until the equipment is disposed of or re-granted for a similar charitable
purpose, Grantee may be required to use the equipment exclusively for charitable purposes and provide
reports to Grantor. The future use and ownership of items valued above USD10,000 must be approved by
Grantor.

Grantee shall provide reasonable access to representatives of Grantor to visit the project for review

purposes or for publicity purposes with media representatives (expenses shall be covered by Grantor).
Media publicity about this project will require the prior consent of Grantee.

Grantor shall have free access to and use of properly credited photographs, films, and other audio-visual
material resulting from the project for use by Grantor on their websites and other media for the promotion
of their conservation programs if sensitivities allow and unless otherwise indicated by Grantee.

4. Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption

As a US-based entity, WCN has obligations under the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (FCPA). In essence, this prohibits
the payment of bribes, and requires maintenance of accurate books and records with sufficient internal controls to
provide reasonable assurances that transactions are executed and accounted for in accordance with management's
authorization.

4.1.

4.2,

4.3,

4.4.

Grantee and any employee, independent contractor, agent, subsidiary, representative, volunteer, or other
associated personnel of Grantee, will not directly or indirectly give, offer, authorize, or promise anything of
value:

1. to a foreign government official (includes a party or public official, candidate, third-party agent,
joint-venture partner, or representative), or to any other person knowing that the payment or promise
will be passed on to a foreign government official

2. with a corrupt motive (includes conscious disregard or wilful blindness)

3. for the purpose of (i) improperly influencing any act or decision of a public official, political party, party
official, or candidate, (ii) inducing such person to perform or omit any action in violation of his, her, or its
lawful duty, (iii) securing an improper advantage, or (iv) improperly inducing such person to use his, her,
or its influence to affect an official act or decision

4. in order to assist in obtaining or retaining business for or with, or directing any business to, any person.

Grantee will maintain accurate books and records with sufficient internal controls to provide reasonable
assurances that transactions are executed and accounted for in accordance with management's
authorization.

Grantee attests that it is not aware of any fraud, misappropriation of funds, improper recording, removing,
or reallocating of any payments, transactions, or other charges in their books, records, or accounts.

Grantee agrees to report to the WCN management any instance of non-compliance with this agreement,
and any anti-corruption or anti-bribery laws that it is aware of, either by a WCN employee, officer, director,
grantee, contractor, or other third party associated or doing business with WCN or a grantee in the context
of this project.

5. Recognition, Research, and Publications

5.1.

Acknowledgment of this financial support for this project, given in any publications, reports, newspaper
articles, press releases, films, websites, or other media acknowledgment that may result from the project,
shall on mention be “Wildlife Conservation Network’s California Wildlife Program.” The second mention shall
be “California Wildlife Program (CWP),” and subsequent mentions shall be “CWP.”


https://www.justice.gov/criminal-fraud/foreign-corrupt-practices-act

5.2. Grantee shall keep Grantor informed on research, developments, and publications relating thereto by means
of regular reports (see Section 2 above).

5.3. If Grantee publishes any research resulting from the project, an electronic copy of all articles should be sent
to Grantor.

5.4. By accepting this grant, Grantee agrees to allow Grantor to use, in its own publicity efforts, Grantee’s name
and organizational affiliation, description of the project, and its results when such information has not been
indicated as confidential by Grantee.

6. Amendments & Effective Date
6.1. It is understood that nothing in this document confers employee status at WCN upon Grantee or any other
project associates who may assist Grantee to conduct this project.
6.2. The entire understanding between Grantor and Grantee is set forth in this written agreement, there being
no oral modifications or additions. Any changes to this document must be made in writing and signed by
authorized representatives of Grantor and Grantee.

GRANTOR GRANTEE

Signature: Signature:

Organization: Wildlife Conservation Network Organization: The Honey Lake Valley Resource
Conservation District

Name: Jean-Gaél Collomb PhD Name: Kelsey Siemer

Title: Chief Executive Officer, WCN Title:

Date: Date:



APPENDIX 1: Proposal and Budget

CALIFORNIA WILDLIFE PROGRAM — GRANT APPLICATION

PROJECT ADMINISTRATION INFORMATION
Questions with an * are required for administration of the grant

1. Name of The Honey Lake Valley Resource Conservation District
organization or
individual requesting
funding: *

2. Title of proposed Restoring Big Game Habitats Along the U.S. 395 Southern Corridor in Lassen County,
project: * California

3. Period of time for This will be a three-year project (5/2025-6/2028) with the first year dedicated to planning

which the grant is and the remaining time for project implementation.

requested & the start

date: *

4. Project Lead and Project Lead: Odessa Amaryllis, Restoration and Resiliency Coordinator

name of person
signing Grant
Agreement: *

Person signing the Grant Agreement: Kelsey Siemer, District Manager

5. Best contact Odessa Amaryllis: 585-545-8882
(email/telephone): * Kelsey Siemer: 530-260-0067

6. Email of point of Odessa Amaryllis: restoration@honeylakevalleyred.us
contact for reporting Kelsey Siemer: kmarks@honeylakevalleyred.us
(who should be

included in the google

calendar invites sent as
reminders of when
reports are due. If

same as #5, put same)
*

7. Address * 1516 Main Street, Suite A, Susanville, CA 96130

8. Will this grant have Implementing Partner: California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW), Backcountry
an implementing Hunters and Anglers, The Institute for Applied Ecology, and The Wildlands Network

partner, more than
one grantee, or a
fiscal agent? If so,
provide the name of
the organization and
their address and best
contact. * If the
account name on your
bank details is not the
name of your
organization
(grantee’s

Another Grantee: None.

Fiscal Agent: None.



mailto:restoration@honeylakevalleyrcd.us
mailto:kmarks@honeylakevalleyrcd.us

organization), list
them as a fiscal agent
below.

BUDGET AND MATCHING FUNDS

9. Amount requested
from CWP: *

$499,634.67

10. Do you anticipate
seeking recurring
funding for this
project?

11. What is the
likelihood the project
will take place if you
do not receive funding

The HLVRCD application to the National Fish and Wildlife Foundation (NFWF) requires a
1:1 non-federal match, which is the basis for this application to the CWP. We currently have
approximately $21,044.92 in pledged matching contributions from various partners
including Backcountry Hunters and Anglers, The Wildlands Network, and the California
Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW). However, without funding from CWP, we will

from CWP? not meet the match requirement for the proposed 600 acres to be restored. If awarded the
CWP funds but not NFWF, the HLVRCD will still be able to complete the project but will
be required to scale down the project deliverables to 320 acres of habitat restoration.

PROJECT INFORMATION

12. Name the key Pronghorn antelope (Antilocapra americana), mule deer (Odocoileus hemionus)

species helped in this
project, as
appropriate.

13. Brief background
of your organization-
how long you have
worked at this
site/area; overarching
mission (+ goals and
objectives); annual
budget for the
organization, total
project budget
(beyond just the
activities you request
funding for); number
of staff, etc.

The HLVRCD is a special district of the state of California and set up under California law
to be a locally governed agency with its own locally appointed, independent board of
directors. Located in Susanville, California, the HLVRCD covers over 2,233,711 acres
within Lassen County. It has been conserving land through outreach, restoration, and
planning since 1956 with the mission of implementing projects on public and private lands
and providing education about resource management.

The HLVRCD has four staff members with decades of experience in providing education,
technical assistance, and large-scale restoration planning. Staff work closely with many
local, state, and federal government agencies, non-profit organizations, private landowners,
and public land managers on an array of programs that balance economic and environmental
goals. Ultimately, the HLVRCD helps bring funding and collaboration to local projects and
helps farmers, ranchers, and landowners navigate the laws and permits that may be required.

The HLVRCD's leadership and governance are provided by a five-member volunteer Board
of Directors, which consists of local landowners with diverse backgrounds and interests.
The Directors' roles are to establish priorities, set policies and guidelines, and oversee
general operations. However, due to the District’s limitations, it is not unusual for a Director
to actively engage in program/project planning or implementation.

The HLVRCD is a grant-based organization and can have two years of budget records.
Audit documentation will be provided for the last fiscal year. For fiscal year 2023/2024, the
organization received a total revenue of $5,205,286.36 and paid a total of $5,050,846.34 in
expenditures. The net revenue for fiscal year 2023/2024 was $127,228.01. For fiscal year
2024/2025, the HLVRCD has received a total revenue of $2,053,796.81 and paid a total of
$1,968,620.44 in expenditures. Resulting in a net revenue of $85,227.37 for fiscal year
2024/2025.

The HLVRCD requests $500,000 from the National Fish and Wildlife Foundation (NFWF)
for big game habitat restoration in Lassen County, California. The application requires a 1:1
non-federal match. As such, our team is requesting a matching contribution from CWP for

6




$500,000. If awarded both funding, the HLVRCD plans to restore approximately 600 acres
of big game habitat.

14. Summary of what
you are requesting
funding for and the
justification for it in
conservation terms

The HLVRCD is applying for funds to support an initiative to restore critical winter range
habitats and migratory routes for mule deer and pronghorn antelope along the U.S. 395
corridor in southern Lassen County, CA, by planting native shrubs and removing invasive
Western Juniper in the Doyle and Hallelujah Junction Wildlife Areas. The project will
incorporate collaboration and expertise from CDFW, Backcountry Hunters and Anglers, the
Institute for Applied Ecology, and the Wildlands Network to implement an estimated 600

(about 150 words). acres of vegetation restoration over three years. As a result, the project will aid in post-fire
recovery and regeneration of sagebrush ecosystems, leading to increased high-quality
forage, reduced habitat conversion, and improved habitat connectivity.

15. A written The Honey Lake Valley Resource Conservation District is restoring critical winter range

description habitats and migratory routes for mule deer and pronghorn antelope along the U.S. 395

summarizing this
grant that can be used
externally (e.g. WCN
website) - a concise
version of the
summary (50-100
words). If this is an
extension, please
add/edit the current
description. *

corridor in southern Lassen County, CA, by planting native shrubs and removing invasive
Western Juniper. The project will aid in post-fire recovery and regeneration of sagebrush
ecosystems in the Doyle and Hallelujah Junction Wildlife Areas, leading to increased
high-quality forage, reduced habitat conversion, and improved habitat connectivity.

16. Project Narrative.
Describe the species
targeted, your goals
and objectives, the
activities you propose
to undertake, the
geographic context,
how your proposed
activities address
conservation threats,
and the time frame
for the project.

The Honey Lake Valley Resource Conservation District (HLVRCD) seeks to conserve mule
deer and pronghorn antelope migrations along the U.S. 395 corridor in southern Lassen
County, California by restoring critical winter range habitat in the Doyle and Hallelujah
Junction Wildlife Areas. Southern Lassen County includes several priority migratory
corridors identified by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) and
Department of Interior Secretarial Order 3362, including the Doyle and Hallelujah Junction
Wildlife Areas. These areas provide irreplaceable and essential winter range habitat and
migration pathways for deer and antelope, and also serve as important grounds for public
recreational activities such as hunting.

However, the Doyle and Hallelujah Junction Wildlife Areas have experienced significant
habitat degradation following high-intensity, catastrophic wildlife. This includes the 2014
Rush Fire, the 2020 Loyalton Fire, the 2021 Laura 2 Fire, and the 2021 Beckwourth
Complex Fires. These incidents resulted from high fuel loads and human-created disruption
to the region’s natural fire regime after years of historic fire suppression efforts. Over time
these fires have converted high-quality winter range into insufficient habitat with an
overabundance of invasive annuals like Cheatgrass and Medusahead and encroachment of
conifers on open shrub communities, leading to the senescence of nutritional forage and the
continued decline of big game populations in Lassen County.

Habitat degradation is not the only threat to the remaining big game in northeastern
California. U.S. 395 runs along the Doyle and Hallelujah Junction Wildlife Area,
constricting and bisecting high-use corridors and migratory pathways. Consequently, the
southern Lassen County corridor along U.S. 395 has seen a drastic increase in
wildlife-vehicle collisions (WVCs) and is ranked among the top ten hotspots for WVCs in
the state, according to a study by the Road Ecology Center at the University of California,
Davis. While efforts to create safe wildlife passage features are ongoing by the Lassen
County Transportation Commission, Wildlands Network, CDFW, CalTrans, and others,

7




habitat restoration remains a critical need to ensure the improvement of seasonal ungulate
habitat and the conservation of these important species.

Aligning with the California State Wildlife Action Plan pursuant to Secretarial Order 3362,
the HLVRCD has identified several sites within the Doyle and Hallelujah Junction Wildlife
Areas for post-fire vegetation restoration. Restoration activities at these sites include
planting native shrubs like Bitterbrush and Sagebrush and removing encroaching Western
Juniper. The project is expected to enhance unproductive vegetation communities by
restoring damaged sagebrush ecosystems, promoting native shrub recruitment, and
increasing high-quality forage. Ultimately, these efforts will benefit the population and
welfare of Mule Deer, Pronghorn, and all other species relying on this range.

Furthermore, this project will use collaborative action for the implementation of such
restoration activities by incorporating the expertise and assistance of CDFW, the Bureau of
Land Management Eagle Lake Field Office, Backcountry Hunters and Anglers (BHA),
CalTrans, the Institute for Applied Ecology, the U.S. 395 Wildlife Crossing Team, and the
Wildlands Network.

The HLVRCD will restore four sites between the Doyle and Hallelujah Junction Wildlife
Areas. The maps included depict the geographic context of these sites. Each site was
selected based on several factors, including vegetation composition and density, site
accessibility, terrain (including slope and aspect), and proximity to irreplaceable and
essential winter ranges and migration corridors as designated by CDFW. As shown in the
maps provided, the proposed sites adjacent to historic habitat restoration efforts, conducted
by CDFW and other partners, were considered to enhance their work, investment, and
impact. The HLVRCD does not currently have access to a shapefile of past restoration
efforts for the Doyle Wildlife Area but is in active conversation with the CDFW to ensure
the proposed activities create the largest benefit.

Three sites are dedicated to sagebrush and bitterbrush plantings. Plugs of each species will
be planted using dibble bars and hoedads. If awarded the WCN California Wildlife Program
and the National Fish and Wildlife Foundation Funds, an estimated 400 acres will be
restored through planting a combined 60,000 Sagebrush and Bitterbrush plugs over the next
three years. An estimated total of 200 acres will be planted in the Doyle Wildlife Area. The
remaining 200 acres will be planted across two locations within the Hallelujah Junction
Wildlife Area, expanding a previous Bitterbrush planting initiated by BHA and funded
through a 2022 NFWF grant.

The Bitterbrush and Sagebrush plugs will be obtained from several avenues. In BHA’s past
restoration initiative, 11 pounds of Bitterbrush seed was collected. To support the continued
restoration of the Hallelujah Junction Wildlife Area, BHA has pledged these seeds as a
matching contribution. The HLVRCD will work with the Institute of Applied Ecology
Sagebrush in Prisons Program to propagate and sow these seeds. Additionally, Sagebrush
plugs will be obtained from both the Sagebrush in Prisons Program and Walker Basin
Conservancy. The plugs will be planted primarily through contracted crews and HLVRCD
staff.

Western Juniper removal will only occur in the Hallelujah Junction Wildlife Area. After
consulting with CDFW staff, it was determined that there is no need for Western Juniper
removal in the Doyle Wildlife Area. In the Hallelujah Junction Wildlife Area,
approximately 200 acres of low-to-medium density Western Juniper will be lopped and
scattered using loppers, reciprocating saws, and chainsaws. The work to remove Juniper
trees will be conducted by a mixture of contractor crews and HLVRCD staff. Before
Western Juniper is removed, CDFW and Land staff will conduct bird and rare plant surveys.
These surveys are in-kind and have been pledged as a matching contribution to the project.

Both restoration activities align with the CDFW’s Land Management Plans for the Doyle
and Hallelujah Junction Wildlife Areas, which provides CEQA coverage. No other
environmental compliance is required or anticipated. However, the HLVRCD will need to
obtain a CDFW Right of Entry Permit for staff, partners, and contractors to carry out
restoration work on State land. The HLVRCD has started conversations with CDFW about
the permitting process and will obtain the permit before implementation, if awarded.

8




17. How will you
monitor and evaluate
this project and its
progress? What
metrics will you use to
measure success?

To measure success, the HLVRCD aims to remove an estimated 200 acres of Western
Juniper and plant and an estimated 400 acres of native shrubs between the Doyle and
Hallelujah Junction Wildlife Areas. If these metrics are achieved, then approximately 600
acres of critical winter range will be restored and migratory corridors reconnected. The short
and long-term impacts of these restoration activities on big game populations will be
assessed through monitoring efforts between the HLVRCD and CDFW. The CDFW has
Land staff that will help with camera checks at plot sites, collecting vegetation
measurements, and estimating establishment success at least once a year. HLVRCD staff
will assist with this monitoring. The CDFW has committed to this monitoring for 1 year
after the completion of the project at a minimum. The HLVRCD is engaged in ongoing
discussions with CDFW regarding long-term monitoring and future tracking of big-game
movements. This initiative will complement the existing wildlife movement and use
monitoring efforts in southern Lassen County spearheaded by the US 395 Wildlife Crossing
Team including Wildlands Network and Pathways for Wildlife. Overall, the results of this
monitoring will contribute to legacy data on migratory herds in Lassen County, fill
information gaps, and inform wildlife managers.

18. If this is an
extension to, or
related to, an existing
CWP grant, please
outline in brief key
points of progress
achieved with the
original grant?

This project and request is not an extension or related to an existing CWP grant.

19. Will you be
partnering with other
organizations for this
project? Provide a
brief description of
collaborations with
other conservation
organizations,
government agencies,
community-based
organizations, or
wildlife authorities in
the project area.

The Wildlands Network will play several key roles in this project, including: providing
outreach materials, assisting with mapping, coordinating regional project efforts and
partnerships, attending quarterly meetings, sharing data and research, and collaborating with
CalTrans on the incorporation of fencing and crossings to enhance habitat restoration
permeability. Select staff from the Wildlands Network will also support project
administration, invoicing, and contracting as needed.

The California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) staff will act as site experts,
assisting the HLVRCD in making habitat restoration decisions and navigating permits for
State lands. CDFW and Lands staff will conduct necessary bird and rare plant surveys to
ensure that restoration activities comply with the CDFW Land Management Plans for the
Doyle and Hallelujah Junction Wildlife Areas. In addition, CDFW will provide data and
maps surrounding historic habitat restoration efforts, big game population movements, and
areas identified as essential habitats. During the implementation phase of the project,
CDFW and Lands staff will assist with plantings and juniper removal as their capacity
allows.

Backcountry Hunters and Anglers (BHA), a previous awardee of NFWF funding, will offer
guidance on the HLVRCD’s application to improve the likelihood of success. BHA has
previously conducted Bitterbrush plantings in the Hallelujah Junction Wildlife Area and will
help HLVRCD make informed decisions regarding the locations of native shrub planting.
Additionally, BHA has committed to providing its planting equipment, which includes
hoedads, dibble bars, and frost cloths. They will also supply 11 pounds of TZ-tested
Bitterbrush seed for propagation.

The Institute for Applied Ecology will provide bitterbrush and sagebrush plugs through their
Sagebrush in Prisons program. This initiative includes coordinating volunteer hours for
incarcerated individuals to propagate and sow plugs. Staff from the program will share their
expertise on planting methods.

20. Do you have the
necessary support
(e.g. permits) from
any required local,

| regional, or national

All restoration activities included in this proposal align with the management goals laid out
in the CDFW Land Management Plans for both the Doyle and Hallelujah Junction Wildlife
Area. These CDFW Land Management Plans provide CEQA coverage. No additional
environmental compliance is needed. CDFW has outlined permits and surveys needed for
this project. The HLVRCD and all project partners will need a Right of Entry permit from
CDFW. The HLVRCD has established a plan with CDFW to obtain this permit if awarded

9




government wildlife
or conservation
authority (or other
regulatory agencies,
as applicable)?

funding. Additionally, bird and rare plant surveys will need to be completed at the Juniper
removal site. CDFW has pledged the labor and cost for these surveys as a matching
contribution to the HLVRCD’s NFWF grant application.

21. Are lobbying
activities included in
your work? If so,
please explain the
activities and the

amount.
%

No lobbying activities are included in this project.

22. What involvement
with local
communities does the
project have, if any?
Describe their
supportiveness of the
project.

The project has received written support from the following organizations: Northern Sierra
Partnership, Feather River Land Trust, CalWild, Wildlife Conservation Network (for NFWF
proposal), California Deer Association, the Sierra Nevada Alliance, and the Sierra Forest
Legacy.

23. What
opportunities does the
project present to
increase inclusive and
equitable
participation in
conservation?

The project brings together a diverse coalition of stakeholders at the local, state, and federal
levels, creating opportunities for various groups to contribute to conservation efforts and
share their expertise. The HLVRCD also plans to actively engage local landowners in the
implementation of the proposed restoration activities. Collaborations with organizations,
such as the Institute for Applied Ecology’s Sagebrush in Prisons program, will also engage
incarcerated individuals in restoration efforts.

Ultimately, this project will focus on big game conservation in Lassen County, an
underserved rural agricultural community with a significant low-income population.
According to the EJ Screen Community Report, 36% of residents in the project area are
low-income, surpassing the state average of 28%. Additionally, 20% of individuals have
less than a high school education, compared to the state average of 16%. Lassen County
covers over 4,720 square miles, making it the eighth largest county by area in California,
and is home to approximately 35,900 residents, including over 3,400 incarcerated
individuals. The county faces extreme risks from wildfires (87% compared to the state
average of 30%), extreme weather events, and energy shortages or outages. Furthermore, a
significant number of residents with disabilities live here, comprising 17.9% of the
population, compared to the state average of 11.3%.

Both wildlife and local disadvantaged communities will benefit from habitat restoration in
the Doyle and Hallelujah Junction Wildlife Areas. The restoration activities will enhance the
local environment by improving land health and increasing resilience to wildfires.
Additionally, by focusing on big game conservation, the project will directly benefit local
hunters and recreational activities.

24. Please review and
answer these
human-rights
questions if
applicable: *

A. Can you confirm
that you will abide
by all local laws
pertaining to law

A. Yes

B. Yes

C. The HLVRCD has taken human rights abuse preventative measures by requiring
staff to attend annual ethics and sexual harassment trainings. Additionally, the
HLVRCD is also an Equal Opportunity Provider and has a Workforce Violence
Prevention Plan that is in compliance with the State of California.

No. Our employees are not armed.

The HLVRCD has taken human rights abuse preventative measures by requiring
staff to attend annual ethics and sexual harassment trainings. Additionally, the
HLVRCD is also an Equal Opportunity Provider and has a Workforce Violence
Prevention Plan that is in compliance with the State of California.

™ o

10




enforcement?

Y /N

. Can you confirm
that you do not
commit, and are
not complicit in,
human-rights
abuses? Y/N

. What kind of

measures do you
have in place to
prevent human-rig
hts abuses by your
staff during the
course of duty?
(e.g. training,
written guidelines,
other).

. Are your
employees armed?
If so - what kind of
weapons and do
they have full legal
permission to
carry them?

. That you have
measures in place
to prevent human
rights abuses by
any authorities
supported during
the course of this
grant? (e.g.
training, written
guidelines, other?)

11




Grantee Name The Honey Lake Valley Resource Conservation District

Project Title Restoring Big Game Habitats Along the U.S. 395 Scuthern Corridor in Lassen County, Califernia

on activities related to the outcomes identified in this at this site
Ttem Outcome/Output Unit Cost # of Units Total Funds Needed CWP Request NFWF Request Match Notes

District Manager (Kelsey Siemer) Hours Persannel: Hours for project planning and 44.8 - 56.1 800 § 397339 | § 19,8670 [ § 19,867.0 | § Unit is a range because these values take into account pay raises.
Restoration and Resiliency Coordinator (Odessa Amaryllis)| Personnel: Hours for project planning and 405-478 2400| § 1113912 | § 55,695.6 | & 55,6056 | § Unit is a range because these values take into account pay raises.
Past-Fire Recovery Coordinator (Catherine Wooster) Hours| Personnel: Hours for project planning and 43.0-50.7| 450 § 21,3395 | § 10,6697 | § 10,6697 | § Unit s a range because these values take into account pay raises.
Travel to and from Project Site Mileage (per mile) for travel (total 7,488 0.7 2496| § 52416 | & 26208 | 5 2,508.5 | &
Safety Equipment Gloves, Glasses, Chaps, Hard Hat 250.0 38 7500 | § 7500 [ 8 B E
Reciprocating Saws (Sawzalls) Cutting small Western Juniper trees 470.0 2[5 9400 | § 9400 | § $
Reciprocating Saw (Sawzalls) Blades Cutting small Western Juniper trees 26.0 28 519§ 519 (% $
Hoedad Tool to plant plugs 130.0} 35 3900 | 5 3900 | § $
Dibble Bar Tool to plant plugs in rocky terraing 80.0/ 35 2400 | & 2400 | & - B
Office Supplies For administrative support 300.0] 35 9000 | § 4500 | & 4500 ) 8
Chainsaw For cutting large Western Juniper treas 600.0/ 1§ 6000 | § - 5 6000 | &
Chainsaw For maintaining function of chainsaw 600.0] 1§ 6000 | § 6000 | § B
Garmin InReach Mini For remote comn and safety (p 300.0} 15 3000 | $ 5 3000 | §
‘Garmin InReach Mini Subscription For using InReach (per month) 15.0] 36| $ 5306 | § $ 5396 [ §
Cell Phone For communications and safety (per devic| 300.0 15 3000 | § 5 3000 [ §
Cell Phone Service For using phone (per month) 70.0| 36| § 25200 | § - 5 2,5200 | &
luniper Removal Contractor (TBD) For removing large amounts of Western | 1000.0 200] § 200,0000 | § 119,0000 | § 81,0000 | 3
Restoration Planting Contractor (TBD) For planting large plant plug amounts (es 5.0] 60,000] § 300,0000 | § 1550000 | $ 145,0000 | §
Walker Basin Nursery For sagebrush and bitterbrush plugs (esti 40 40,000| § 160,000.0 | § 80,0000 | § 80,0000 | 8
Insitute for Applied Ecology For sagebrush and bitterbrush plugs (esti 4.0 20,000 § 80,0000 | § 40,0000 | & 40,0000 | §
OnX Subscription For navigating public and private land {per 34,99| 36 § 12596 | & 1,2596 | & - B
ESRI ArcGIS Subscription For mapping and monitoring project 700 38 21000 | § 2,1000 | § B

Bank Fees Cover 2% of fees 10,000 1§ 10,000.00 | § 10,0000 | § - $
Indirect Cost 0| [ 26,3450 [ § B 26,3450 [ § Indirect costs are only incorporated under NFWF funding.
Rent for Truck and Office For field and administrative work 0 0 $ 5 189720 | &
Lobbying Activities None [ 0 $ - $ - |Line added as outlined by proposal instructions.
Backcountry Hunters and Anglers Restoration Equipment (Hodads, dibble ba 0 0 ) ) 5 3,000.0
Backcountry Hunters and Anglers 111bs of Bitterbrush seed collacted - TZ taf 0 0 3 3 5 300.0
The Wildlands Network Saff Hours for Mari Galloway 0| B $ $ $ 3439
The Wildlands Network Saff Hours for Gillian Roy 0 0% $ $ 5 7132
The Wildlands Network Providing informational materials for land 0] 08 0 $ $ 456.9
The Wildlands Network Coordinating with regional project efforts 1] 0 s 5 $ 5 8,200.0
The Wildlands Network Data sharing and ion from WN-c{ 0 B B B 5 4,963.5
The Wildlands Network Administration, Invoicing, contracting 0| B s 5 $ 783.0
California Department of Fish and Wildlife Labaor for bird nesting and rare plant survel 0 0% $ $ 5 2,2845
California Department of Fish and Wildlife Labor for planting 0 [NE 4 $

Total Funds Needed| $ 965,542.4 _CWP Request s 439,634 .67 | NFWF Request s 484 76741 | Matching Contributions ] § 21,0492




APPENDIX 2: Reporting Requirements for CWP Grants

1. Six-month Progress Reports

The six-month progress report should provide an overview of how the project is going, what challenges and
successes you have experienced, and share updates that are particularly interesting stories or events. [f anything in
the report is confidential, please make a note so that information won’t be shared.

Please include the following:

a.

A summary of conservation accomplishments, progress towards your overall goal, towards desired
outcomes, and on outputs that indicate progress towards the desired goal and outcomes.

Challenges faced and any major changes in the plan (either during the first six months or expected in
the next upcoming period)

Financial accounting: a reconciliation of the original budget as approved by the granting committee
against expenses incurred during the grant timeline. This should be represented by a column added
to the original budget with expenses, and a second column to explain any variance between
proposed and actual expenditure. Note: For grants with terms of 12 months or longer financial
information is only required every twelve months (i.e. every other progress report).

ltem Funds Funds spent | Explanation
approved in for
CWP grant significant
deviations
1.
2.

There is no need for approval or an amendment if there is a budget shift for existing budget lines. However, let Neal
know of any shifts. New budget line items should be discussed with Neal ahead of spending.

d.

Updates of any other sources of funding unlocked as a result of receiving funding from CWP.

Updates that consist of particularly interesting stories or events, and photographs or video that we
could use on our website or social media channels. If you include photos that can be shared
externally, send them as JPEGS with photo credit and a caption (they can be sent as a dropbox link
or google drive link etc).

2. FinalR r idelin

Final reports should include as much of the required information as is relevant to your project, and it can be as brief
as required to provide this information. As a rule of thumb, a report may be 4-6 pages long, including an executive
summary and financial accounting. Final reports should be submitted to the CWP in English. If the grantee does not
have sufficient English language skills, he/she should procure the services of someone who can assist with the
translation. If anything in the report is confidential, please make a note so that information won’t be shared.

Please include the following:



Executive Summary: One-two paragraph summary describing the project’s objectives and activities, particularly
emphasizing conservation impacts.

Summary of conservation accomplishments: Describe how the project has or will impact the conservation of the
area you are working in. Report back on the evidence of progress towards your goal and desired outcomes and on
outputs arising from your work that indicate progress.

Major challenges with explanation and potential solutions: outline challenges that you faced during your work and
steps you took (or will take) to mitigate these.

Additional funds raised / investors in project attracted: provide information on whether and to what extent CWP
funding contributed to the raising of additional funding.

Provide the best stories from this investment in your project: please provide especially interesting events/stories
that happened during your project that we could report on our website or social media channels.

Training and Outreach Accomplishments: If applicable, describe the involvement of local stakeholders and/or junior
conservationists and/or non-wildlife professionals in the project and the training benefits that have resulted.
Describe any broad-scale education activities, including local community awareness and media coverage of the
project.

Community engagement: describe any engagement your project had with communities and provide insights into
benefits to local people conferred.

Recommendations for future action: List any recommendations you may have for future work needed in your area.
Describe any significant problems or opportunities of which others working in a similar area should be aware.

Images/videos of the work: please submit 5 to 10 assets to CWP for use on our website and social media if
sensitivities allow. If possible, please submit high-resolution files. If you include photos that can be shared
externally, send them as JPEGS with photo credit and a caption (they can be sent as a Dropbox link or google drive
link etc).

List of publications or media materials: List of publications or media materials that have resulted or are in
preparation related to the project, including reports to governments and other organizations, scientific publications,
popular articles, radio or TV programs, and internet pages.

Financial accounting: a reconciliation of the original budget as approved by the granting committee against
expenses incurred during the grant timeline. This should be represented by a column added to the original budget
with expenses, and a second column to explain any variance between proposed and actual expenditure.

ltem Funds Funds spent | Explanation
approved in for
CWP grant significant
deviations
1.
2.

There is no need for approval or an amendment if there is a budget shift for existing budget lines. However, let Neal
know of any shifts. New budget line items should be discussed with Neal ahead of spending.



Honey Lake Valley RCD District Manager Report

Kelsey Siemer - District Manager
February 27th, 2025

RCD Administration:
e Bookkeeping
o Monthly reports attached
o Mid-year budget review attached
e Admin:
o Changes in staff status effective 2/21/2025 due to the federal funding freeze

Watermaster:
Direct Billings Round 2 went out early February
Irrigation Season starts March 1
Other updates in Watermaster Report
WAC
o Next meeting March 13, 2025

Grant Updates:

e DWR: Lahontan Basin IRWM Implementation - Rounds 1 and 2
o Round 1: Lead Admin Agency for City of Susanville / Round 2:
m Johnstonville Dam
e Updated timeline has ground breaking on August 1, 2025 (sooner
if the levels drop in the Susan River)
e Waiting on permits
e Brian working with LIC to make sure out water delivery is not
interrupted during construction
m Madeline / Ravendale
e Waiting on permits
e Looking to bid the project in March

e DOC: nville Ranch Park - Riparian Corridor and Working Lands R ration
o Signage should be arriving this week, bases / frames arrived, working on install
with County

o Antelope crews to finish pile burning this week
o Grant close out - March 1

e USFS: Post Fire Recovery - Sheep, Hog and Dixie Fire Scars
o All work on immediate and indefinite pause due to the federal funding

freeze
o 100,000 trees that were ordered last year to arrive this spring for planting
o Additional spraying this spring needed before planting on 1 property
o Working with LFSC on contingency plans



e USFS 2: Post Fire Recovery - Dixie Fire Scar
o All work on immediate and indefinite pause due to the federal funding
freeze

e NACD: TA2024
o Working with Tiffany and Susanville Field Office on workplan / final budget
adjustments
o Not sure how this grant is affected by the freeze, clear directions from NACD to
proceed with work

e NRCS: CARCD Underserved Farmers and Ranchers
o All work on immediate and indefinite pause due to the federal funding
freeze

e CAL FIRE Workforce Development Grant:
o Working on budget adjustments to include Odessa’s time and more admin time

o Upcoming trainings include Archaeology, Wetland Delineation, and Hydric Soils

e BLM GNA: Rest ion Project
o Working on planning phase for 2 spring development projects in Spring / Summer
2025
Field visits once the weather allows
Meeting this week to discuss Laura 2 Fire project

e Wildlife Conservation Network: Southern Lassen County Habitat Restoration
Awarded $499,634.67

Agreement on tonight’s agenda

Work to begin in May 2025 through June 2028

Goal to use in tandem with NFWF funding (applied February 2025, will hear back
in May or June 2025

O O O O

New and Upcoming:
e DPR Alliance Grant ($400,000)
o Applied November 2024, Notified July 2025
o To fund an invasives program focused on: Mulching for puncturevine treatment,
Purge the Spurge: Myrtle Spurge, Goat or Sheep grazing program for forest
health
e National Fish and Wildlife Foundation - Western Big Game Seasonal Habitat and
Migration Corridors Fund (~$500,000)
o Applied February 2025, Notified June 2025
o Focused on restoration efforts in Hallelujah Junction and Doyle Wildlife Areas
o Planning bitterbrush and sagebrush planting, juniper treatments, and some
possible fencing projects



o

Working with CDFW, BHA, Wildlands Network, Wildlife Conservation Network,
Caltrans, etc.

CDFA WMA Grant ($120,000)

@)
O

o

Applying February 2025, Notified June 2025

Re-instate the SWAT in Lassen

Working on application to fund some herbicide storage and spray equipment for
RCD

Will focus on major infestations of certain A-rated pests in Lassen County and
education and outreach efforts

LCC EPA Community Change Grant ($325,000 for RCD)

o

©)
O

Applied November 2024, Notified Maybe January 20257
Would allow us to hire a community engagement specialist
Probably not happening with Federal Funding Freeze

Trout Unlimited Pine Creek Monitoring

O

o

Flow monitoring and data collection along Pine Creek starting in March-ish
depending on weather / access

All work on immediate and indefinite pause due to the federal funding
freeze

DWR CalSip Stream Gauge Program (~$450,000)

©)
O

Applied December 2024, Notified ?
Applied to install 4 new monitoring gauges along pine creek to tie in with TU’s
system and gain some data to inform restoration efforts

Wildlife Connectivity Working Group Coordinator Position

o

o

Fully-funded through Wildlife Conservation Network for 2-3 years

Housed either within HLV RCD or Modoc RCD depending on candidate’s living
situation — regional position to cover both Lassen and Modoc.

Modeling after sage-grouse working group but with broader objectives



Honey Lake Valley RCD Grant Projects:

Billed to Date Billed to Date (Not

Program Project Name Funder Private, State, Federal Award Amount (Reimbursed) Reimbursed) Left to Bill Notes
Eagle Lake Field Office Restoration DOI - Bureau of Land
Projects Management Federal $ 784,378.76 | $ 4,745.09 | $ = $ 779,633.67
Retention Payment will be ~ $30,000
Ranch Park Riparian Restoration Department of Conservation | State $ 305,415.49 | § 271,938.63 | $ 5,738.88 | § 33,476.86 |after Grant Close Out in March
Highway 395 Big Game Conservation Wildlife Conservation Network |Private $ 499,634.67 | $ - $ - $ 499,634.67
State - Department of Water $3,051.25 awaiting payment is not

Johnstonville Dam Rehabilitation Project  |City of Susanville Resources $ 40,000.00 | $ 6,217.50 | $ 3,876.25 | $ 32,957.50 |billed under administrative services

Department of Water
Johnstonville Dam Rehabilitation Project | Resources State $ 30,250.00 | $ 1,515.00 | $ 670.00 | $ 28,065.00
Madeline / Ravendale Water System Department of Water
Improvements Resources State $ 40,250.00 | $ 1,515.00 | $ 150.00 | $ 38,585.00

Education and Outreach

Workforce Development CARCD / CalFire State $ 28,425.84 | $ 4,393.86 | $ 176.75 | $ 24,031.98

Floating Funds: $ 41,622.48
In Jeopardy: $ 3,575,464.93



f. POLICY TITLE: Sick Leave
POLICY NUMBER: 2520

2520.1 This policy shall apply to probationary and regular employees in all classifications who work
for the Honey Lake Valley RCD for 30 or more days within a year from the commencement of
employment.

2520.2 Sick leave is defined as absence from work due to illness, non-industrial injury, quarantine
due to exposure to a contagious disease, or for obtaining relief if the employee is a victim of domestic
violence, sexual assault or stalking. In addition, dentist and doctor appointments and prescribed
sickness prevention measures shall be subject to sick leave. All sick leave, including medical
appointments and kin care, shall be identified as to type (i.e., kin care or employee’s own health
condition) and requested in advance and in writing to the District Manager for approval, with rare
exception. Anytime an exception occurs, the employee shall submit a sick leave request to the District
Manager. A copy of the approved sick leave request shall be attached to the pertinent time sheet.

2520.3 An employee shall be entitled to use accrued paid sick days beginning on the 90th calendar
day of employment, after which day the employee may use paid sick days as they are accrued.

2520.4 Employees shall earn sick leave at the rate of 4 hours per individual pay period,
cumulative to a maximum of 60 days (480 hours). Sick leave hours earned shall be pro-rated for those
probationary or regular employees working less than 40hrs/week. The determination of total
accumulated sick leave days shall be made on January 2 of each year.

2520.4.1 When the number of hours in a non-pay status in a full-time employee's
leave year equals the number of base pay hours in a pay period (80 hours), an employee’s
credits for sick leave shall be reduced by an amount equal to the amount of sick leave
hours the employee earns during the pay period.

2520.5 Each employee may use accrued sick leave, up to half the time accrued per calendar year, as
kin care leave. It is provided for those circumstances where the employee must take time off to care
for a sick Family Member, regardless of the seriousness of the illness. “Family Member” means any
of the following :

2520.5.1 A child, which for purposes of this article means a biological, adopted, or foster
child, stepchild, legal ward, or a child to whom the employee stands in loco parentis. This

definition of a child is applicable regardless of age or dependency status.

2520.5.2 A biological, adoptive, or foster parent, stepparent, or legal guardian of an
employee or a person who stood in loco parentis when the employee was a minor child.

2520.5.3 A spouse.

2520.5.4 A registered domestic partner

HLV RCD Board Adopted_1/23/2021 Amended__
1



2520.5.5 A grandparent.
2520.5.6 A grandchild.
2520.5.7 A sibling.

2520.6 If absence from duty by reason of illness occurs, satisfactory evidence may be required by the
District Manager.

2520.7 Accrued sick leave shall not be compensated upon employee’s termination from the district
for any reason.

HLV RCD Board Adopted_1/23/2021 Amended__
2



| Print Form I

Notice of Determination Appendix D
To: From:
[=] Office of Planning and Research Public Agency: Honey Lake Valley RCD
. . Address: 170 Russell Ave.
U.S. Mail: Street Address: Susanvile. CA 96130
P.O. Box 3044 1400 Tenth St., Rm 113

Contact: Kelsey Siemer
Phone: (530) 257-7271

Sacramento, CA 95812-3044 Sacramento, CA 95814

[=] County Clerk

County of: Lassen Lead Agency (if different from above):
Address: 220 S. Lassen St., Annex
Susanville, CA 96130 Address:
Contact:
Phone:

SUBJECT: Filing of Notice of Determination in compliance with Section 21108 or 21152 of the Public
Resources Code.

State Clearinghouse Number (if submitted to State Clearinghouse): 2024030580

Project Title: Lassen National Forest (LNF) Eagle Lake Ranger District Hazard Tree Management

Project Applicant: Lassen County Fire Safe Council, Inc.

Project Location (include county): LNF Eagle Lake Ranger District (ELRD), Lassen County

Project Description:

The Dixie Fire (2021) resulted in expansive stretches of fire-killed and fire-damaged trees adjacent to
National Forest System roads, trails, and facilities managed by LNF ELRD that now present a safety
hazard. The primary purpose of this project is to provide for the safe use of National Forest System
roads, trails, and facilities to the public, staff, firefighters, emergency response personnel, law
enforcement, private landowners, contractors, special use permit holders, and others.

This is to advise that the Honey Lake Valley Resource Conservation District has approved the above
([=] Lead Agency or [_] Responsible Agency)

described project on 2/27/2025 and has made the following determinations regarding the above
(date)

described project.

1. The project [[_] will [l will not] have a significant effect on the environment.

2. [] An Environmental Impact Report was prepared for this project pursuant to the provisions of CEQA.
(M A Negative Declaration was prepared for this project pursuant to the provisions of CEQA.

3. Mitigation measures [[M] were [ ] were not] made a condition of the approval of the project.

4. A mitigation reporting or monitoring plan [[M] was [_] was not] adopted for this project.

5. A statement of Overriding Considerations [[_| was [M] was not] adopted for this project.

6. Findings [[@ were [ ] were not] made pursuant to the provisions of CEQA.

This is to certify that the final EIR with comments and responses and record of project approval, or the
negative Declaration, is available to the General Public at:

170 Russell Ave., Susanville, CA 96130

Signature (Public Agency): Title: Chairman

Date: Date Received for filing at OPR:

Authority cited: Sections 21083, Public Resources Code.
Reference Section 21000-21174, Public Resources Code. Revised 2011



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration
for the proposed
Lassen National Forest (LNF) Eagle Lake Ranger District (ELRD)
Hazard Tree Management Project
Lassen County, California

Prepared by:

Honey Lake Valley Resource Conservation District
Lassen County, CA

February 2025



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

Contents
MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION .. .oiiiiiiiieiesie ettt sttt st 1
Introduction and ReguIAtOry CONTEXT ..........c.ooiiiiiiieieie et sneane s 1
Stage of CEQA Document DEVEIOPMENT..........ccoiiiiieii et sne s 1
T i oo [0 Tox o] o [P TR PSPPSRI 1
REGUIALOIY GUIGANCE ...ttt b bbbt b e s e et e b e bt e nbe b 1
Purpose Of the INITIAl STUAY ........ooiieece e re e esbe e e sneennas 2
Project Description and Environmental SETtING..........cooieiiiii i 2
o] [<Tot A o Tor: L1 o] o FO ST TSP PR T PP 2
Background and Need fOr the PrOJECL ..........cciiieiiie et e e e e 3
e (o] [To O o] [=od (1Y SRS 6
PrOJECE STAM DALE.......cueeeeeeiieeite ittt b bbbttt e bbbt bbb et e e bbbt beenes 6
e (o] [T DTS od 01 o] SRS 6
Environmental Setting 0f the Project REQION ..........cc.oiiiiiiii e 9
Description of the Local ENVIFONMENT ..........oiiiiiiiiieei e 9
Current Land Use and Previous IMPACES ........coveiiiiieiiriiite ettt 10
ENVIFONMENTAL PEIMIITS .....vitiiiiiticieee et b e bbbt ettt st et et beene e 13
MITIGALION IMBASUIES ...tttk b kbbbt b bt bbbt b e s e e e b et e bbb ne e 13
SUMMANY OF FINAINGS ... bbbt b ettt et b bbb b 29
Initial Study-Environmental CheCKIiSt...........ccoiiiiiicee e 30
Environmental Factors Potentially AFFECTE..........cooiiiiiiie e 30
D=1 (= 0 = L[ o SRS 30
Environmental Checklist @and DiSCUSSION ........c.ciiiiiieieiesie sttt sb et sbesreeneas 31
] 1= oSS 31
AGIICUITUIAI RESOUITES ...ttt bbbttt et bbbttt e bbb ab et b e 32
AT QUAIITY ..ottt ettt et e et e e a e be et e a e e e be e be e e nae e reeareete e reentenneenrs 33
BIOIOGICAI RESOUITES ...ttt bbb b bbbttt et nb et be e 35
CUITUIAI RESOUICES. .....veeieeeieetie st ieesee st e te e et este e s e st e e tees e s seesseeseeaseesseeneeeseenseaneeaseenseanseaneenseenseaneenseensnns 59
T (0 Y2 60
GEOIOGY ANT SOUIS. ...ttt bbbt bbbttt bbbt b ene s 61
GreenNOUSE Gas EMISSIONS .....ccviiiieieiiesieeiesteesieeseesteesteestesseesteeseesseesseeseesseesseessesseesseesseaseesseenseaseessenssens 70
Hazards and Hazardous MaterialS ............cooiiiiiiioiiie e e et 72
Hydrology and Water QUATTTY ...........oooiiiiiiiiieee bbbt 74
Land USe aNd PIANNING ........viiiiiieieiesese ettt bbbttt nb ettt enes 77
IMHINEIAL RESOUITES ...ttt ettt b et b e bbb e ke e st e bt e bt et e e bt e b e e st e e ne e nbe et e sne e 77



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

N[0 £SO PR U RTPR T 77
[0 o TU] E Lo =V o o [oTU ] 1o SRS 78
PUBIIC SEIVICES ...ttt bbbttt bbbt bbbt et et et et e st benbeareas 78
LT (7= £ [0 o USSR 80
LI U S o Yo =LA o oSS 81
TrIDAl CUITUIAL RESOUITES........iiiiiiiiiieie et sb bbbt e bbbt benneens 82
ULHITIES AN SEIVICE SYSTEIMS ... .ttt bbbttt ab et 83
LT[0 (OSSPSR P PP 84
Mandatory FIndings of SIGNITICANCE .........ccceiiiiiicce e 86
Appendix A: Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting PIan ... 88
Appendix B: Best Management Practices (BMPS) ........ccvoiiiiiiiiiece s 117
PREPARERS OF THIS DOCUMENT ..ottt ettt sttt sttt st sne s s 118
EXPERTS CONSULTED ..ottt sttt ettt beebe st e s ens et eaennennennenneane e 119
REFERENCES CITED ..ottt sttt bbb bbbt et et e bbb nbenbenne e 120
Figures:
Figure 1: Project VICINIEY. ... .u ittt ettt ettt ettt et et et e et et e e e e et et e e e et e e eeenaeeene 11
Figure 2: Project LOCAtION. ... e e 12
Tables:
Table 1: Aquatic management zone types, conditions, and associated equipment exclusion zone buffers....24
Table 2 Biological ASSESSMENT — BOANY . ......outitiniit ittt e et e e e eaenans 42
Table 3:Biological Assessment — Wildlife............oooiiiiiiiii e, 49



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION

Introduction and Regulatory Context

STAGE OF CEQA DOCUMENT DEVELOPMENT

[] Administrative Draft. This California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) document is in
preparation by Honey Lake Valley Resource Conservation District (HLVRCD) staff.

[] Public Document. This completed CEQA document has been filed by the Honey Lake
Valley Resource Conservation Distinct (HLV RCD) at the State Clearinghouse on March
15, 2024, and is being circulated for a 30-day state agency and public review period. The
review period ends on April 13, 2024.

X Final CEQA Document. This final CEQA document contains the changes made by the
RCD following consideration of comments received during the public and agency review
period. The CEQA administrative record supporting this document is on file, and available
for review, at Honey Lake Valley RCD, 170 Russell Ave., Susanville, CA 96130.

INTRODUCTION

This initial study-mitigated negative declaration (IS-MND) describes the environmental impact
analysis conducted for the proposed project. This document was prepared by HLVRCD staff
utilizing information gathered from a number of sources including research, field review of the
proposed project area and consultation with environmental planners and other experts on staff at
other public agencies. Pursuant to § 21082.1 of CEQA, the lead agency, HLVRCD, has prepared,
reviewed, and analyzed the IS-MND and declares that the statements made in this document reflect
HLVRCD’s independent judgment as lead agency pursuant to CEQA. HLVVRCD further finds that
the proposed project, which includes revised activities and mitigation measures designed to
minimize environmental impacts, will not result in a significant effect on the environment.

REGULATORY GUIDANCE

This IS-MND has been prepared by HLVRCD to evaluate potential environmental effects that
could result following approval and implementation of the proposed project. This document has
been prepared in accordance with current CEQA Statutes (Public Resources Code 821000 et seq.)
and current CEQA Guidelines (California Code of Regulations [CCR] §15000 et seq.)

An initial study is prepared by a lead agency to determine if a project may have a significant effect
on the environment (14 CCR § 15063(a)), and thus, to determine the appropriate environmental
document. In accordance with CEQA Guidelines §15070, a “public agency shall prepare...a
proposed negative declaration or mitigated negative declaration...when: (a) The initial study shows
that there is no substantial evidence...that the project may have a significant impact upon the
environment, or (b) The initial study identifies potentially significant effects but revisions to the
project plans or proposal are agreed to by the applicant and such revisions will reduce potentially
significant effects to a less-than-significant level.” In this circumstance, the lead agency prepares a
written statement describing its reasons for concluding that the proposed project will not have a

1



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

significant effect on the environment and, therefore, does not require the preparation of an
environmental impact report. This IS-MND conforms to these requirements and to the content
requirements of CEQA Guidelines § 15071.

PURPOSE OF THE INITIAL STUDY

The purpose of this IS-MND is to present to the public and reviewing agencies the environmental
consequences of implementing the proposed project and to describe the adjustments made to the
project to avoid significant effects or reduce them to a less-than-significant level. This disclosure
document has been made available to the public and reviewing agencies for review and comment.
The IS-MND was circulated for public and state agency review and comment for a review period of
30 days as indicated on the Notice of Intent to Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration (NOI).

The 30-day public review period for this project began on March 15, 2024 and ended on April 13,
2024.

The requirements for providing an NOI are found in CEQA Guidelines §15072. These guidelines
require HLVRCD to notify the general public by providing the NOI to the county clerk for posting,
sending the NOI to those who have requested it, and utilizing at least one of the following three
procedures:

e Publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the area affected by the proposed project,
e Posting the NOI on and off site in the area where the project is to be located, or
e Direct mailing to the owners and occupants of property contiguous to the project.

HLVRCD elected to utilize posting the NOI on and off site in the area where the project is to be
located, the second of the three notification options. An electronic version of the NOI and the
CEQA document were available for review during the entire 30-day review period through their
posting at: https://www.honeylakevalleyrcd.us/ , and the project is posted on
https://ceqanet.opr.ca.gov/ .

One comment letter was received from the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW).
The Honey Lake Valley RCD has considered CDFW’s comments, responded, and added additional
mitigation measures to minimize potential impacts to wildlife and botanical resources as a result of
the proposed action.

Project Description and Environmental Setting
PROJECT LOCATION

The project area is located on +/-6,750 acres of public land managed by the U.S. Department of
Agriculture, Lassen National Forest (LNF), Eagle Lake Ranger District (ELRD) in Lassen County,
CA impacted by the Dixie Fire (2021). The project area is within the: Lower Butte Creek
(5526.360103); Middle Butte Creek (5526.360102); Upper Butte Creek (5526.360101); Triangle
Lake (8637.310104); Pine Lake (8637.310101); Silver Lake (8637.200105); Bogard (8637.310102);
Lower Robbers Creek (5518.450101); Moonlight Pass (5518.450400), Mountain Meadows Creek
(5518.450300), Upper Willard Creek (8637.200301), and Lower Willard Creek (8637.200302)
watersheds. The legal location is:

Mount Diablo Base and Meridian (MDBM) Township 27North, Range 9 East, portions of
Sections 1, 2, 11-13; T27N, R10E, portions of Section 18; T28N, R10 E, portions of
Sections 3, 4, 9, 10, 14, 15, 22 & 23; T29N, RO9E, portions of Sections 5, 6, & 8; T29N,

2


https://www.honeylakevalleyrcd.us/
https://ceqanet.opr.ca.gov/

Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

R10E, portions of Sections 13, 14, 21-23, 27, 28, 33 & 34; T31N, RO6E, portions of
Sections 1, 2, & 12; T31N, RO7E, portions of Sections 5, 6, 8-15, 17, & 23-26; T31N,
RO8E, portions of Sections 5-8, 17-20, 30, & 31; T32N, RO6E, portions of Sections 23,
24, 26, 27, 34, & 35; T33N, RO6E, portions of Sections 9, 10, 15, & 16.

The project is fairly steep with elevation ranging from 5,160 — 7,300 feet, and average annual
precipitation of 27 - 35 inches. The majority of the project area burned at medium to high severity
during the Dixie Fire in 2021.

BACKGROUND AND NEED FOR THE PROJECT

The Dixie Fire began on July 13, 2021 by a PG&E powerline and was contained on October, 25,
2021. The wildfire burned 963,309 acres. It was the largest single source wildfire in recorded
California history. The fire resulted in expansive stretches of fire-killed and fire-damaged trees
adjacent to National Forest System roads, trails, and facilities managed by LNF ELRD that now
present a safety hazard. The primary purpose of this project is to provide for the safe use of
National Forest System roads, trails, and facilities to the public, Forest Service staff, firefighters,
emergency response personnel, law enforcement, private inholding landowners, contractors, special
use permit holders, and others. Portions of the project area also contain hazard trees requiring
abatement due to mortality or damage by insects and disease, drought, or other stressors either
before or after the fire. Many of these trees are structurally unsound and are likely to fall within the
next several years, posing a serious risk of injury or death to people using roads, trails, and facilities
in the area. If hazard trees are left unabated, they may fall on roads, trails and facilities and either
cause direct injury or death to people (tree falls directly on a person) or indirect injury or death (for
example, a tree falls across a road and a driver strikes the downed tree after coming around a blind
curve). Providing a safe environment for both public and administrative use of affected roads, trails,
and facilities, is a priority for the Forest Service. The Chief of the Forest Service and the Regional
Forester repeatedly stress that the safety of the public and employees is of central concern.
Therefore, identification and mitigation of hazard trees on National Forest System lands is
necessary to fulfill the Forest Service’s mission.

Because it is impossible to accurately predict whether and when a particular tree will strike a road,
trail, or facility, the Forest Service made a policy choice to take a conservative approach to hazard
tree abatement, erring in favor of being overinclusive in identifying and removing trees rather than
being underinclusive and risking injury or death to forest users. Therefore, integral parts of the
project’s purpose are to:

e Treat a broad range of roads (such as road maintenance levels 2, 3, 4, and 5), trails, and
facilities.

o Identify trees for removal that have a genuine risk of falling in the next several years, even if
that risk is not a certainty (trees with a “moderate” or “high” risk rating according to the
Hazard Tree Guidelines for Forest Service Facilities and Roads in the Pacific Southwest
Region (Angwin et al. 2022).

e Adopt an analysis and treatment area surrounding roads that encompasses the vast majority
of hazard trees likely to strike a target of concern (using a 300-feet potential treatment zone
around roads, removing trees up to 1.5 times the height of a tree from a potential target).

Along with the need to reduce safety hazards on National Forest System roads, trails, and facilities,
is the need to maintain an available and useful system of roads, trails, and facilities, for the public,
Forest Service staff, firefighters, emergency response personnel, law enforcement, private inholding

3



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

landowners, contractors, special use permit holders, and others. If hazard trees are not removed,
they will likely fall in the next several years, and many will negatively impact the roads, trails, and
facilities, as well as the people using them, separate from the risks of human injury or death caused
by falling trees. Large trees can damage roadways, resulting in significant repair costs and
temporary closures. Even when treefall causes no significant damage, fallen trees can create serious
obstacles across major routes and significantly impact the public. For example, a large tree across a
road can impede emergency ingress or egress by firefighters, emergency response vehicles, or
members of the public trying to evacuate from an active forest fire.

While road closure may be an option in limited circumstances, it is contrary to the Forest Service’s
objective of maintaining the integrity of its road system, which provides a network of access routes
and facilities for a wide range of recreational, commercial, emergency, and other public purposes.
Therefore, LNF ELRD chooses not to include road closures as part of this decision, reserving such
closures for individual circumstances where there is no reasonable alternative.

Another purpose of the project is to reduce fuel loading, elevated fire hazard, and resistance to
control from dead, dying, fire-damaged, and already fallen hazard trees. The project area has high
densities of dead and dying trees, especially in areas of high-severity burn. Felling identified trees
will, in many instances, abate the safety hazard such trees pose to adjacent roads, trails, and
facilities. However, felling the trees does not mitigate the fire hazard these trees pose and, in most
instances, will increase the hazard, as well as create new problems such as impeding effective fire
suppression where hazard trees are felled.

Increased fuel loading caused by felling hazard trees may extend resident burn times, increase flame
length, increase fire heat and soil damage, and increase firefighter labor to suppress the fire
(difficulty moving in jack-strawed or dense downed wood material). Because human-caused
wildfires tend to start near roads and in and around developed areas (Narayanaraj and Wimberly
2012; Stephens and Ruth 2005), heavy downed fuel loading presents an additional safety risk in
these areas, particularly if the fire may spread to adjacent lands. In addition, hazardous fuels or
increased potential fire behavior within the road corridor present a safety threat to anyone using the
recreation and administrative sites, accessing inholdings, or using roads as an escape route during a
wildfire. Therefore, it is important to not only fell hazard trees but also remove them from the
treatment areas (both the tree trunk and its limbs). Management of activity-related slash and smaller
fuels and removal of logs would reduce the severity and intensity of the next fire, create a safe and
defensible space for firefighters in future advancing fires, and provide for safer ingress and egress.

Not all downed logs and woody biomass pose a serious fire hazard or impede safe and effective fire
suppression. Downed woody biomass provides both ecological and recreational values. Therefore,
our objective is to remove enough of the fuels from hazard tree felling to support low fire-hazard
and low resistance-to-control conditions and to retain biomass and logs where soil cover or habitat
is insufficient after fires.

Vast areas of Region 5 National Forest System lands burned in recent years and a huge number of
dead and dying trees adjacent to roads, trails, and facilities pose a threat to the public, Forest
Service staff, firefighters, emergency response personnel, law enforcement, private inholding
landowners, contractors, special use permit holders, and others. While there is no firm estimate of
the number of hazard trees, recent fires affected likely hundreds of thousands (if not millions) along
thousands of miles of roads. Unfortunately, the agency’s financial and staff resources do not match

4



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

the magnitude of the problem. Therefore, it is critical that the project is as efficient as possible in
addressing the hazards. Implementation efficiency has several important components. One is the
need for a relatively simple process for identifying hazard trees. While a detailed tree-by-tree
analysis involving mortality risk, slope position, lean, micro-site characteristics, prevailing wind
patterns, or more, would likely yield a robust evaluation of individual tree hazard, such an approach
IS not practical given the overwhelming number of trees to be evaluated and the lack of a skilled
workforce to conduct such evaluations. Therefore, a more streamlined approach is needed that
considers individual tree failure potential and target potential (consistent with the Region 5 Hazard
Tree Guidelines) but does so in a way that field crews can easily and efficiently implement the
approach across thousands of acres. Because such a simplified approach will likely be either under-
or over-inclusive in the trees identified as hazards, we chose to err on the side of caution and
increased safety, consistent with the primary purpose of the project expressed above.

Another important component of implementation efficiency relates to the timing of treatments and
requires abating hazard trees that will imminently fall (within the next year) as well as those likely
to fall within the next 5 years. While removing trees at most imminent risk of falling is a priority, it
is neither practical nor necessary to have a series of separate projects to abate existing hazard trees
in the same location over several years. Doing so is not only inefficient from a planning perspective,
but also inefficient and unnecessarily detrimental to the environment from an operational
perspective (it would require multiple entries by loggers and equipment to the same parcel of land
in locations where there is a mix of imminent and non-imminent hazard trees). Furthermore, it is
often difficult to predict exactly when a hazard tree will fall, but dead and dying hazard trees
become less stable with time, posing an increasing safety hazard to the contractors felling and
removing the trees. Therefore, it is important to remove the hazard trees as soon as possible.

Dead and dying trees and downed woody biomass are natural components of forest ecosystems that
provide both ecological and recreational values. However, the extent of dead and dying trees caused
by recent mega-fires is not natural, and hazard trees adjacent to roads, trails, and facilities pose a
serious threat to the public, agency staff, and other forest users. Therefore, the Forest Service’s
objective is to remove hazard trees to increase human safety; maintain the integrity and utility of the
road, trail, and facility network; and reduce hazardous fuel accumulation, while leaving some dead
and dying trees and downed woody biomass on the landscape for ecological and recreational
purposes.

An effective balance between these competing objectives may be met by felling, but not removing,
some hazard trees in treated areas and by entirely foregoing treatment in other areas. In the areas
selected for treatment, some felled hazard trees may be left on the forest floor, as long as downed
woody biomass does not constitute a residual safety hazard, increase fuel loading above desired
levels, or pose a significant impediment to economic and operational efficiency. Also, because of
the heightened impacts to recreational values from widespread hazard tree removal along trails, the
lower hazard along trails and fences (compared to roads and most facilities), and the operational
difficulty of removing hazard trees from trails and fences without adjacent roads, it may be
appropriate to leave the felled hazard trees along trails and fences.

In addition to retaining some woody biomass in treated areas, it is also appropriate to entirely
forego treatment in some areas where the hazard posed by dead and dying trees is less and the
ecological and recreational values of snags and downed wood are greater. For example, it is not



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

being proposed to treat in wilderness areas, inventoried roadless areas, and along maintenance level
1 roads.

PROJECT OBJECTIVES

The project objective is to remove dead and dying trees resulting from the Dixie Fire (2021) along
Forest Service system roads on the LNF ELRD in a timely and efficient matter to reduce safety
hazard and the accumulation of fuels.

PROJECT START DATE
Summer 2024
PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The project will result in up to +/-6,750 acres of treatments to remove hazard trees from National
Forest System roads, trails, and facilities. This includes the following actions in the project area:

1. Identify, fell, and remove hazardous trees up to 1.5 times the tree height striking distance of
roads, trails, and facilities; and remove trees already felled during fire suppression or
rehabilitation activities along high-use roads (maintenance level 2, 3, 4, and 5 National
Forest System roads, county roads, and highways), within and adjacent to developed
facilities on National Forest System lands; and fell certain trees along National Forest
System trails.

Maintain roads.

Use best management practices to minimize or eliminate potential negative effects (See
Appendix B - Best Management Practices).

Treatments would be prioritized to address the most heavily used roads and the most fire -impacted
trees. Implementation would begin with those areas at highest risk due to their location (the primary
factor) and the condition of the trees. Most treatment would occur within approximately 2 to 3
years.

Identifying Hazard Trees

Hazard trees are trees at risk of falling, in whole or in part, and injuring people or damaging
property. Hazard trees are sometimes referred to as danger trees; on federal lands in California, the
term hazard tree is used most consistently. Roads, trails, and National Forest System lands within
and adjacent to developed facilities would be assessed for hazard trees. The area assessed for hazard
tree abatement would be within 300 feet on each side of the centerline of roads, trails, and fences (a
600-feet corridor), and around facilities and infrastructure.

Trees within the assessment areas would be evaluated to determine if they are hazards using the
Hazard Tree Guidelines for Forest Service Facilities and Roads in the Pacific Southwest Region
(Angwin et al. 2022) (referred to as “guidelines”). Trees that are determined to be a hazard would
be abated, but not all dead or dying trees would require abatement. To identify if a tree is a hazard
and if it requires abatement, a hazard rating is determined by adding the failure impact and the
failure potential (tree defect) values as described in the guidelines.



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

The failure impact refers to the potential for the tree to impact people or property. The guidelines
define the potential failure zone of a tree (where the tree or branch may fall) on level ground as
about 1 to 1.5 times the height of the tree. However, the failure zone depends on several factors
including degree of slope, obstacles, and the potential for a “domino effect” with the possibility of a
more distant tree knocking down others closer to the road as it fall. Only moderate to high hazard
trees up to 1.5 times the tree height striking distance of the road would be felled.. This
assessment would be based on the height of the tree, lean, condition, distance, and slope from the
area to be protected in accordance with the guidelines. For example, it is expected that fewer trees
would be identified as hazards on the downbhill slopes next to roads because the trees would tend to
fall downhill and away from the road. The failure potential would be determined using the
guidelines along with the probability of fire-injured tree dying in the next several years, as
described in Marking Guidelines for Fire-Injured Trees (Smith and Cluck 2011). The failure
potential threshold for this project varies depending on severity of fire effects.

It is expected that most hazardous trees, and therefore more treatment, would occur in moderate
intensity (25 to 75 percent basal area loss) and high intensity (75 percent or greater basal area 10ss)
burn areas, based on post-fire vegetation condition data. In these areas, trees with a moderate to
high hazard potential (hazard rating 4 to 7) would be felled. A probability of mortality of 0.6 would
be used to determine failure potential, meaning that all trees for which the probability of mortality is
60 percent or higher within the treatment zone should be abated (Angwin et al. 2022)).

Unburned or low intensity burn areas are not targeted for treatment but may require incidental tree
felling for an occasional single tree or scattered pockets of trees that have a high hazard rating
(rating of 6 or 7 as described in the guidelines).

Some of the potential treatment areas displayed in these maps would remain untreated because they
present a low hazard or low threat to health and safety (for instance, burned areas that resulted in no
tree mortality or forest structure is composed of shrub layer with no overstory). Areas of lower
priority hazard trees or trees with a lower chance of mortality may be monitored for future follow

up.

Hazard Abatement Methods

Identified hazard trees would be felled using hand tools (such as chainsaws) or feller-bunchers.
Felled trees would be chipped, lopped and scattered, piled and burned; removed for wood products
such as lumber, biomass, or personal or commercial firewood; or other similar means of processing
or removal. The most cost-efficient and effective treatment in each area based on timing, equipment
availability, and post-treatment results would be selected.

Activity-generated woody fuels such as limbs and needles (commonly referred to as slash) would be
piled, lopped and scattered, masticated, chipped, or burned. Lopped and scattered slash would be
less than 8 feet in length and distributed at most 18 inches in depth. Hand-piled slash would be
placed in openings clear of debris so that a hand line down to mineral soil can be created around
each pile. Crews would locate piles in areas where they would not damage other timber or residual
trees when burned. Piles would be located twice their height away from residual vegetation and no
more than 5 feet by 5 feet by 6 feet. Crews would compress slash tightly in piles to ensure full
consumption when burned. Piles would be placed outside the boundaries of sensitive resource areas

7



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

including, but not limited to, historical or archeological sites, sensitive plant populations, annual
streambeds or drainages, and roadside gutters and culverts. Within proposed treatment areas,
existing woody fuels on the ground that exceed desired conditions for fuel loading may be removed
or treated along with activity-generated woody fuels, consistent with project parameters and design
features.

Chipped materials may be removed or left on-site when appropriate in place of piling. Chipping and
spreading of materials on the landscape would not exceed a depth of 3 inches. Chips would be
spread away from the base of trees.

Consistent with mitigation measures, stumps from live and recently dead trees in select areas may
be treated with a registered borate compound (Forest Service Manual Pacific Southwest Region
Supplement 2300-92-1 modified by Forest Service Handbook Pacific Southwest Region
Supplement 3409.11-2010-1) to reduce the probability of infection in remaining live trees by
Heterobasidion occidentale and Heterobasidion irregular, the causal agents of heterobasidion root
disease (formerly referred to as annosus root disease). The need for borate treatment would vary by
area and would be assessed at implementation.

Removing trees may require skidding logs or trees to landing areas for processing and loading on
trucks. Landings would be selected from existing impacted areas or constructed as needed within
300 feet of roads, trails, and facilities. As ground conditions permit, log skidding would avoid
remaining trees that are not hazards, seedlings, or regenerating trees. Logs would be skidded with
the leading end suspended off the ground wherever conditions permit. Skidding distances would be
limited to the minimum length necessary to safely reach the road, landing, or access point to load
onto trucks. End-lining may be used to winch logs out of special management areas. Skyline,
helicopter, and cable-yarding methods would not be used. Safe and efficient operations may require
the incidental removal of trees that are not hazardous to the roads or infrastructure but need to be
removed because they are hazards for workers (per hazard tree guidelines) or they need to be
removed for landings or skid trails.

Road Maintenance

No new temporary or permanent road construction is proposed for this project. Road maintenance
activities would include cleaning culverts, ditches, drains, and cattleguards, and grading road
surfaces and reestablishing rolling dips or other drainage features of the roadbeds on haul routes
within the project area. All road maintenance including maintenance of haul routes would occur
within previously disturbed areas of the roadbed, consistent with current road maintenance levels
with no changes to the existing road system. For public safety, some roads may be temporarily
closed during implementation (MUTCD 2014; Highway Safety Act of 1966).

ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING OF THE PROJECT REGION

The project area is located in a region where the Southern Cascades Mountain Range, Northern
Sierra Nevada Mountain Range, Modoc Plateau, and Great Basin ecoregions merge. These regions
are the ancestral home of the Maidu, Northern Paiute, Pit River, and Washoe Tribes and represented
today by several bands within the county and surrounding areas. Members of those bands continue
to maintain a relationship with this landscape as a place of residence, ceremony, harvesting,
stewardship, and other traditional activities. The region has cold winters, and hot summers with
variability in annual precipitation as you move from mountainous forested regions on the west

8



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

toward the dry, high desert to the east. Within the project area, average annual precipitation
decreases from 25-45 depending on elevation, which ranges from 5,160-7,300 feet. The wet season
produces vegetation growth that may be subject to seasonal drought, and prone to fire. California
native plants have evolved with relatively frequent fires, and in many cases require fire or fire
byproducts to remain healthy or to reproduce. This fire history includes lightning and
anthropogenic sources, and it is certainly true for the project area. Frequent burning by local
Indigenous peoples created a landscape that was fire-maintained by low to moderate intensity fires
that self regulated. Forest/Woodland conditions were historically open with grass and herbaceous
undergrowth and scattered shrubs, which resulted in a fire resistant and resilient landscape. While
fire suppression policies have been in place for more than a century, there is a history of wildfires
and prescribed burns within the project area. The project recently burned in the Dixie Fire (2021),
cause by faulty PG&E powerlines. The fires had variable effects on vegetation within the
landscape, with the majority burning at high severity. The purpose of this CEQA evaluation is to
analyze the potential environmental impacts of removing hazard trees resulting from the Dixie Fire
along Forest Service system roads to improve safety and reduce fuel loads.

DESCRIPTION OF THE LOCAL ENVIRONMENT

Portions of the project area have high densities of drought- and fire-killed standing trees in forest
stands that generally were denser than the natural range of variation. In the proposed treatment area,
a mosaic burn pattern resulted from the recent fires including unburned to low severity, low
severity, with the majority of the project area burning at moderate severity to high fire severity. As
a result, in some areas, tree mortality is 100 percent, while other areas still support a green forest.
This range of fire severity leaves the existing landscape with a wide range of potential fire behavior
depending on vegetation burn severity, fuel loading changes from dead and dying trees, and the
regrowth of non-forest vegetation over time.

Literature indicates that post-disturbance fuel loadings are expected to be extreme in many portions
of the project area. A recent study (Fettig et al. 2019, updated by Homicz 2022) of ponderosa pine
stands in the central and southern Sierra Nevada found significant increases in fuel loadings caused
by severe drought followed by western pine beetle outbreak. The study included plots on the
Eldorado, Stanislaus, Sierra, and Sequoia National Forests. Fallen dead trees were the largest class
size of surface fuels and were the primary driver of fuel load increases. These data indicated
extreme surface fuel loadings in these areas prior to recent wildfires or treatment. The Eldorado had
a total average of 279 to 384 tons per acre; the Stanislaus had 292 to 340 tons per acre; the Sierra
was the highest at 376 to 428 tons per acre; and the Sequoia had 269 to 276 tons per acre.

In dry forest such as in the Sierra Nevada, high to extreme fire hazard potential exists when downed
coarse woody debris (materials with a diameter of 3 inches or greater) exceeds 30 to 40 tons per
acre. The range of woody debris larger than 3 inches in diameter considered optimal is between 5
and 20 tons per acre. This balances acceptable risks of fire hazards and fire severity while at the
same time providing desirable quantities of ground cover for soil productivity, soil protection, and
wildlife needs. A wildfire with fuel loadings greater than this range could create control problems,
higher suppression costs, and higher smoke emissions (Brown et al. 2003).

CURRENT LAND USE AND PREVIOUS IMPACTS

Until the late nineteenth century, the site was primarily used by Indigenous peoples as part of their
daily lives. They maintained open, sunny mixed conifer/oak woodland conditions with regular,

9



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

low-intensity fire. Brush communities were maintained in a fine grain mosaic interspersed with
grasses and forbs. Collectively, these fire maintained areas achieved numerous ecocultural
objectives including high-quality food, medicine, and fiber. The tending to these places was
disrupted by American settlement. In the late 1800s and 1900s, the site was considered valuable
timberland, as well as cattle and sheep ranching land. Past vegetation management activities include
fuel treatments and timber harvest. The project area is currently managed by LNF ELRD for
recreation, timber management, wildlife habitat, and watershed protection.

10



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

N

Hazard Tree Management Project - Project Vici
Lassen County, CA; Scale 1:500,000

[ Project Area
E Lassen County

| Dixie Fire (2021)
[ ] Lakes and Reservoirs
State Hwy

W Communities

N

Lassen National Forest, Eagle Lake Ranger District

nity

usanville

Z€436) 7771
' w? ant ‘o
% -
{ ; Janesv
(- 5%, z 9
. = ¥ 2 J
Lz t &

o
aylorsville

Johnstonville /7«

ilqu

20 Miles
|

TCKEC 02202024

Figure 1: LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project Vicinity

11




Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

Lassen National Forest, Eagle Lake Ranger District

Hazard Tree Management Project
Lassen County, CA; Scale 1:250,000

Project Area

E Lassen County
Cl Wetlands

== State Hwy

* Communities

Almanor

ountain 1.
‘ Meadows _, <
+ #y’Reservoir ™

3.75 7.5 15 Miles

1 1 | 1 1 1 |

TCKEC 02202024

Figure 2: LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project Location.

12




Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project
ENVIRONMENTAL PERMITS

Lahontan Regional Water Quality Control Board Timber Waiver
Lake and Streambed Alteration Permit

MITIGATION MEASURES

Mitigation measures and best management practices (See Appendix B) (USDA Forest Service
2012) applicable to the project to minimize or eliminate potential negative effects or to comply with
laws, regulations, and policy are described below (Mitigation Measures) and in Appendix B (Best
Management Practices). More restrictive measures may be applied if determined necessary by the
responsible official. Implementation of these mitigation measures will reduce the environmental
impacts of the proposed project to a less than significant level.

Aesthetics:

Mitigation Measure AES-1: Stump Heights - For all hazard tree removal treatments in Retention
and Partial Retention Visual Quality Objectives: Where high masses or groups of trees will be
removed, stump heights should be between 6 to 8 inches (according to timber contract
specifications), except in the case of localized situations that make low cutting heights unsafe.
Stumps should be angled to the contour of the land. Low stumping shall occur for a distance of 100
feet from the road edge on upslope terrain and on easily visible level terrain areas and anywhere
within the corridor of a designated, eligible, and/or suitable Wild and Scenic River. In those same
areas where hazard tree removal occurs singly, or in a low volume and dispersed pattern, 8- to 12-
inch stump heights are acceptable and should be angled to the contour of the land.

Botany:

Mitigation Measure BIO-BOT-1: Sensitive Plants - Known populations of federally threatened,
endangered, proposed, and candidate; Forest Service sensitive, survey and manage, species of
conservation concern; Forest Service sensitive, and State threatened, endangered, and sensitive
(California Native Plant Society Rare Plants Ranks 1 and 2) plant, lichen, or fungi species shall be
flagged for avoidance. Ground-disturbing activities and spreading chips or slash materials shall be
prohibited within flagged areas. When necessary, hand felling of trees and end-lining of logs may
be conducted within occurrences if it is determined by a botanist that effects would be minimal or
there will be beneficial effects based on the site or habitat conditions. Piles and fire lines shall be
located outside of flagged areas.

Mitigation Measure BIO-BOT-2: Pre-implementation Consultation with Botanist - During early
stages of hazard tree removal planning, consult with the botanist to review existing information
about federally threatened, endangered, proposed, and candidate, Survey and Manage, Forest
Service sensitive and State threatened, endangered, and sensitive (California Native Plant Society
Rare Plants Ranks 1 and 2) plant, lichen, and fungi species and habitat, and suitable habitat,
invasive species, and whether surveys are necessary in the specific areas or habitats planned for
activity. Follow direction in Forest Service Handbook 2609.26 chapter 10, Forest Service manuals
2670.22, 2670.32 and 2900 on whether to conduct surveys and the appropriate type of survey
documentation. Where these plants exist or are found through surveys, the botanist will recommend
the appropriate avoidance or other design elements.

13



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

Mitigation Measure BIO-BOT-3: New Sensitive Plant Discoveries - In the event any new
populations of federally threatened, endangered, proposed, and candidate, Forest Service sensitive,
survey and manage, and and State threatened, endangered, and sensitive (California Native Plant
Society Rare Plants Ranks 1 and 2) plant, lichen or fungi species are discovered during the various
phases of the project, the area will be flagged and avoided until a botanist is consulted for design
feature applicability.

Mitigation Measure BIO-BOT-4: Felling Adjacent to Sensitive Plant Populations - Hazard trees
adjacent to flagged populations of federally threatened, endangered, proposed, and candidate and
Forest Service sensitive, survey and manage, and State threatened, endangered, and sensitive
(California Native Plant Society Rare Plants Ranks 1 and 2) plant, lichen, or fungi species will be
directionally felled away from the flagged area to avoid disturbing the population. Only remove
directionally felled trees if ground disturbance within the flagged area can be avoided. If directional
felling cannot be done due to safety concerns, fell as necessary and leave on-site. This requirement
may be waived by a botanist depending on the species present and its phenology. Flagging will be
used to delineate avoidance boundaries.

Mitigation Measure BIO-BOT-5: Felling within Flagged Sensitive Plant Populations - Hazard
trees located within flagged avoidance areas may be felled but must be left on-site to avoid ground
disturbance unless removal can occur with minimal effects in consultation with a botanist. Flagging
will be used to delineate avoidance areas.

Mitigation Measure BIO-BOT-6: Special Plant Habitats - Special habitat types which support
unique plant communities (such as serpentine, lava caps, pumice flats, rock outcrops, and seeps and
springs) will be avoided. This requirement may be waived by a botanist if ground disturbance can
be avoided.

Non-Native Invasive Species:

Mitigation Measure BIO-INV-1: Cleaning of Equipment - All equipment to be used off-road
would be cleaned using either washing or high-pressure air and visually inspected before moving
into the project area to ensure equipment is free of soil, plant propagules, or other debris that may
contain invasive plant seeds. All equipment working in infested areas will be cleaned prior to
leaving the infested area.

Mitigation Measure BIO-INV-2: Weed Free Materials - Any source that provides material such
as rock, gravel, or boulders to be used in the project area would be inspected and determined to
have limited potential for the spread of invasive plants. Material stockpiles must be noxious weed
free.

Mitigation Measure BIO-INV-3: Weed Free Straw - Any straw or seed placed within the project
area must be California-certified weed-free and the seed mix approved by a botanist. Other
materials to be used as mulch, for which a state inspection protocol does not exist (such as wood
chips, local materials) would be inspected by a botanist to determine the potential for spread of
invasive plants. Post-project monitoring would occur in areas where imported materials are used.

Mitigation Measure BIO-INV-4: Equipment and Flagged Sites - Equipment, vehicles, and
personnel will avoid working within flagged invasive plant sites. Flagging will be used to delineate

14



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

avoidance boundaries. If infestation cannot be avoided, consult with a botanist for risk minimization
strategies.

Mitigation Measure BIO-INV-5: Staging Areas and Landings - If potential landings or staging
areas are infested with invasive plants, consult a botanist about appropriate methods for minimizing
risk and managing the infestation.

Mitigation Measure BIO-INV-6: Invasive Discoveries - Any additional infestations discovered
prior to or during project implementation would be flagged and avoided. Report new infestations to
a botanist.

Fisheries and Aquatics:

Mitigation Measure BIO-AQUA-1: Burn pile placement - No burn piles shall be placed within
meadows, fens, springs, or 25 feet from the edge of riparian vegetation.

Mitigation Measure BIO-AQUA-2: Burn pile ignition - Piles that lie within 300 feet of perennial
streams or special aquatic features or 150 feet of intermittent or ephemeral streams may be burned,
but would, to the extent practicable, be ignited in a manner that allows any organisms to flee from
the pile (for example, light on the leeward side so that fire moves as a front through the pile).

Mitigation Measure BIO-AQUA-3: Water drafting sites - Identify water sources on project
implementation maps. Consult with the biologist or hydrologist to obtain approval for use of
additional water drafting locations and to determine whether the location represents suitable habitat
for sensitive aquatic species.

Mitigation Measure BIO-AQUA-4: In-Channel drafting sites - In-channel water drafting locations
shall include rocking of approaches, barrier rock, straw bales, or other measures to prevent overflow
and leaks from entering the watercourse.

Mitigation Measure BIO-AQUA-5: Water drafting site survey and approval- Survey all proposed
water drafting locations for sensitive and listed amphibians and receive approval from a biologist
prior to use. Use drafting devices with 2 millimeter or less screening, and place hose intake into
bucket in the deepest part of the pool. Use a low velocity water pump, do not exceed 50% of the
flow, and do not pump ponds to low levels beyond which they cannot recover quickly
(approximately 1 hour).

Mitigation Measure BIO-AQUA-6 Water drafting and Aquatic invasive organisms - To minimize
the risk of aquatic invasive species, project activities will adhere to the Guide to Preventing Aquatic
Invasive Species Transport by Wildland Fire Operations, PMS 444. If contamination of gear with
raw water, mud, or plants is unavoidable, the biologist will be consulted, and the operators will
adhere to sanitizing equipment guidelines. A map of known locations of aquatic invasive organisms
would be provided to implementation crews.

Mitigation Measure BIO-AQUA-7: Water drafting in fish-bearing streams - For fish-bearing
streams, the water drafting rate should not exceed 350 gallons per minute for streamflow greater
than or equal to 4 cubic feet per second, nor exceed 20 percent of surface flows for streamflow less
than 4 cubic feet per second. For non-fish-bearing streams, the drafting rate should not exceed 350
gallons per minute for streamflow greater than or equal to 2 cubic feet per second, nor exceed 50

15



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

percent of surface flows. Water drafting should cease when bypass surface flows drop below 1.5
cubic feet per second on fish-bearing streams and 10 gallons per minute on non-fish-bearing
streams.

Mitigation Measure BIO-AQUA-8: Dust Abatement in Riparian Areas with Sensitive Species -
Only use water as dust abatement in riparian areas known to be occupied with sensitive status
species.

Mitigation Measure BIO-AQUA-9: Storage of heavy equipment and Sensitive Species - The
storage of heavy mechanical equipment will occur outside of habitats occupied by threatened,
endangered, and sensitive species unless a biologist authorizes specific locations. If equipment is
stored in occupied habitats, the areas around all equipment occurring in suitable habitat will be
checked daily for threatened, endangered, and sensitive species prior to the equipment being moved.

Mitigation Measure BIO-AQUA-10: Hazardous chemicals and Riparian Areas - Do not store
equipment fuels, hydraulic fluid, oils, fire ignition fuels, and other toxic materials within riparian
areas unless a biologist authorizes specific locations.

Mitigation Measure BIO-AQUA-11: Fueling and watercourses - No fueling or refueling of any
mechanical equipment (such as chainsaws) will occur within 100 feet of any flowing watercourse or
intermittent drainage. Fueling and servicing of vehicles and other heavy equipment used for
proposed activities will be done outside of aquatic management zones, the zone of concern for
aquatic and riparian resources.

Mitigation Measure BIO-AQUA-12: Hazardous spills - Any hazardous spills will be immediately
cleaned up and reported to the Forest Service.

Mitigation Measure BIO-AQAU-13: Western pond turtle - Within areas identified as high-quality
western pond turtle habitat by the biologist prior to implementation, avoid placing piles, skid trails,
and landing sites in open, grassy patches. Do not fell trees across these habitats wherever practical.

Mitigation Measure BIO-AQUA-14: Vernal Pools - Activities within 250 feet of vernal pools will
occur only once the ground surface is completely dry (typically June 1 to October 31 but will vary
year to year). No activity will occur within the vernal pool. A biologist will be present for ground-
and vegetation-disturbing activities conducted within 250 feet of vernal pool habitat. Personnel will
utilize existing roadways within 250 feet of vernal pools whenever possible. If not using an existing
roadway, only rubber-tired vehicles will be utilized within vernal pool upland areas. Driving
through vernal pools at any time of year will be avoided. Any hazard trees found within 250 feet of
a vernal pool will be directionally felled away from the vernal pool.

Mitigation Measure BIO-AQUA-15: Equipment Exclusion Zone for Sensitive Aquatic Species -
Within suitable habitat for aquatic and terrestrial Regional Forester sensitive species, implement a
minimum 100-feet equipment exclusion zone around perennial and intermittent rivers, streams,
other waterbodies, and wet/sensitive areas including seeps, springs, and meadows. If a biologist
determines that suitable habitat is not present, the standard equipment exclusion zone will be
applied.

16



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

Mitigation Measure BIO-AQUA-16: Hazard tree marking guidelines in aquatic management
zones— Use a probability threshold of 0.7 or higher as defined in Marking Guidelines for Fire-
Injured Trees (Smith and Cluck 2011) and a hazard tree rating of 6 or 7 as defined in the hazard tree
guidelines (Angwin et al. 2022) when identifying hazard trees for removal within 1.5 site potential
tree heights if upslope from the road, and 1 site potential tree height if downslope from the road, or
150 feet, whichever is greatest, from all perennial and intermittent streams.

Mitigation Measure BIO-AQUA-17: Fiber netting and Frogs - Tightly woven fiber netting
synthetic materials, or similar material shall not be used for erosion control or other purposes within
suitable habitat to ensure the foothill yellow-legged frog, Sierra Nevada yellow-legged frog, or
cascade frog do not get trapped, injured, or killed.

Mitigation Measure BIO-AQUA-18: Borate and Frogs - Within 500 feet of known occupied sites
Cascades frog, foothill yellow-legged frog, and Sierra Nevada yellow-legged frog, design borate
applications to avoid adverse effects to individuals and their habitats.

Mitigation Measure BIO-AQUA-19: Refueling and Critical Aquatic Refugia - Prohibit storage of
fuels and other toxic materials within riparian conservation areas and critical aquatic refuges except
at designated administrative sites and sites covered by a special use authorization. Prohibit refueling
within riparian conservation areas and critical aquatic refuges unless there are no other alternatives.
Ensure that spill plans are reviewed and up to date.

Mitigation Measure BIO-AQUA-20: Stream Crossings and Water Drafting Sites - Ensure that
culverts or other stream crossings do not create barriers to upstream or downstream passage for
aquatic-dependent species. Locate water drafting sites to avoid adverse effects to in-stream flows
and depletion of pool habitat. Where possible, maintain and restore the timing, variability, and
duration of floodplain inundation and water table elevation in meadows, wetlands, and other special
aquatic features.

Mitigation Measure BIO-AQUA-21: Stream Channels - Determine if the level of coarse large
woody debris is within the range of natural variability in terms of frequency and distribution and is
sufficient to sustain stream channel physical complexity and stability. Ensure proposed management
activities move conditions toward the range of natural variability.

Mitigation Measure BIO-AQUA-22: RCA’s and Critical Aquatic Refugia - Allow hazard tree
removal within riparian conservation areas or critical aquatic refuges. Allow mechanical ground
disturbing fuels treatments, salvage harvest, or commercial fuelwood cutting within riparian
conservation areas or critical aquatic refuges when the activity is consistent with riparian
conservation objectives. Use low ground pressure equipment, over-the-snow logging, or other non-
ground-disturbing actions to operate off of existing roads when needed to achieve riparian
conservation objectives. Ensure that existing roads, landings, and skid trails meet best management
practices. Minimize the construction of new skid trails for access into riparian conservation areas
for fuel treatments, salvage harvest, commercial fuelwood cutting, or hazard tree removal.

Mitigation Measure BIO-AQUA-23: Frogs and Rain - Foothill yellow-legged frog, Sierra
Nevada yellow-legged frog, and Cascade Frog: For all activities in occupied or suitable habitat, if
there is a 70 percent or greater forecasted rain event of 0.25-inch or greater, work activities will be
postponed until site conditions are dry enough to avoid potential impacts.

17



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

Mitigation Measure BIO-AQUA-24: Buffers for Frogs - Foothill yellow-legged frog, Sierra
Nevada yellow-legged frog, and Cascade Frog: Within the riparian areas with known or suspected
occupancy or their designated or proposed critical habitat, use handheld equipment (chainsaws) and
walk in and out using the same pathway. Do not create any skid trails or burn piles within these
areas. Areas of occurrence for all species include reaches 0.3 miles upstream and downstream plus
all associated wet meadows. Areas of occurrence are as follows into the uplands areas: California
red-legged frog: 0.3 mile Sierra Nevada yellow-legged frog and Mountain yellow-legged frog: 82
feet Foothill yellow-legged frog: 100 feet (distance may change) Yosemite toad: 0.78 mile

Wildlife:

Mitigation Measure BIO-WILD-1: Large downed woody material - To the greatest extent
possible, retain downed woody material with a large end diameter greater than 30 inches, or of the
largest size class available, that was present prior to the wildfire. Do not buck up, and avoid moving
these large, pre-existing downed logs during treatment wherever practicable.

Mitigation Measure BIO-WILD-2: Pre-Fire Snags and Downed Logs - Unless a hazard to a road,
trail, facility, or a threat to human safety, retain all snags and downed logs that were present prior to
the recent fires. If large diameter pre-fire, old-growth, legacy trees (old trees that have been spared
during harvest or have survived stand replacing natural disturbance), or snags are fallen as hazards,
retain them whole as downed logs and do not buck or pile. If the downed log is a safety threat,
move it to a safe location as intact as possible. Large-diameter (>30” dbh at stump height) and old-
growth conifer snags or legacy trees with deformities such as cat faces, broken tops, hollows, or
cavities are prioritized for retention when evaluating fuel levels.

Mitigation Measure BIO-WILD-3: Hardwood snags - Unless a hazard to a road, trail, or facility,
retain all hardwood snags (larger than 16 inches diameter at breast height).

Mitigation Measure BIO-WILD-4: Downed Logs - Unless a hazard to a road, trail, or facility,
where available retain an average of 5 to 8 downed logs per acre in uplands and 4 to 6 downed logs
per acre in riparian areas of the largest size class (larger than 20 inches diameter at breast height,
over 10 feet in length). Preference is to retain logs within riparian areas and away from roads.
Numbers of downed logs can vary on any particular acre and should be an average for the landscape
or treatment area.

Mitigation Measure BIO-WILD-5: Bald Eagle: Hazard trees located within 0.25 mile of active
bald eagle territory will be evaluated by a biologist prior to felling to establish whether they contain
nests or are important pilot or perch trees. If a hazard tree contains a nest, or is an important pilot
tree, it will not be felled between January 1 and August 31 unless it is an immediate threat to human
safety. No project actions that result in loud or continuous noise above ambient levels within 0.5
mile of an active bald eagle nest will occur from January 1 through August 31 or an occupied bald
eagle winter roost from November through March 1.

Mitigation Measure BIO-WILD-6: Sensitive Bats: Where caves or mines are located within 250
feet of the project boundaries, a Forest Service cave coordinator, in coordination with a biologist,
would be consulted and a buffer flagged on the ground identifying an equipment exclusion zone.
The following protective measures would apply: No noise generating or habitat modification
activities will take place within 250 feet from caves, mines, and mine adits to protect known or

18



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

potential sensitive bat species (Townsend’s big-eared bat, pallid bat, and fringed myotis) roost sites.
Options for pile burning and felling around caves or mines include the following: pile burning and
felling imminent safety threats only (hazard trees with a high hazard rating within 1.5 tree lengths
of a road, trail, or facility) outside the March 1 through August 31 breeding season or pile burning
during the March 1 through August 31 breeding season only under prevailing wind conditions that
disperse smoke away from cave and mine entrances.

Mitigation Measure BIO-WILD-7: Limited Operating Periods (LOPSs) - Limited operating period
is a period of time to protect species from disturbance that could result in loss of fecundity (this
year’s young would not be conceived or birthed, young or eggs would be kicked out of den or nest,
or otherwise be disturbed and not successfully survive to a juvenile or adult state) or a loss of life
(migration).

Limited operating period timeframes examples (not all inclusive; others are listed in other
mitigation measures):

-- Fisher: March 1 to June 30

-- Marten: May 1 to July 31

-- Sierra Nevada red fox: January 1 to June 30

The limited operating period could be lifted if one of the assumptions is met:

-- Species is not within the area as determined by protocol level surveys

-- Area no longer has appropriate habitat or habitat components for the species to reproduce in the
area (post-fire no longer meets species needs)

Mitigation Measure BIO-WILD-8: Marten and Fisher - Retain some slash piles for marten
escape cover and prey habitat, where biologists have determined that cover and/or connectivity
could benefit marten or fisher habitat (i.e., along outer edges of canopy openings and riparian
buffers). The number and location of slash piles will vary and will be determined by biologists on a
site-specific basis. When feasible, piles should contain large and small diameter logs, have enough
interstitial space to allow for marten or fisher occupancy, and be at least 6 feet by 8 feet in diameter.
Piles would be clearly marked to not be burned. Pile specifications will be adapted to on-the-ground
conditions.

Mitigation Measure BIO-WILD-9: Marten Dens - Maintain a 100-acre buffer from May 1 to July
31 for all active marten den sites. Protect marten den site buffers from disturbance from vegetation
treatments with a limited operating period from May 1 through July 31 as long as habitat remains
suitable or until another regionally approved management strategy is implemented. The limited
operating period may be waived for individual projects of limited scope and duration, when a
biological evaluation documents that such projects are unlikely to result in breeding disturbance
considering their intensity, duration, timing, and specific location.

Mitigation Measure BIO-WILD-10: Fisher: In high quality reproductive and potential fisher
denning habitat and along Maintenance Levels 2 and 3 roads, implement hazard mitigation options
other than complete removal for conifer snags larger than 35 inches diameter at breast height and
hardwood snags larger than 27 inches diameter at breast height when it is safe to do so. Such
options include cutting the hazard tree as high as possible to leave a portion of the trunk (10 to 20
feet tall) standing to provide potential microsites. Leave 15 to 20 feet of the thickest part of the
trunk behind as a large log, particularly if it is decayed. When hazard tree removal creates
continuous areas with canopy cover less than 40 percent, leave 1 to 2 large trees (larger than 30
inches diameter at breast height) per acre on the ground as coarse woody debris to enhance habitat

19



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

quality and connectivity. This will facilitate crossing by fishers and limit the potential for habitat
fragmentation.

Mitigation Measure BIO-WILD-11: Fisher Dens - Protect any known fisher den site buffers from
vegetation treatments disturbance with a limited operating period from March 1 through June 30, as
long as habitat remains suitable or until another regionally approved management strategy is
implemented. The limited operating period may be waived for individual projects of limited scope
and duration, when a biological evaluation documents that such projects are unlikely to result in
breeding disturbance considering their intensity, duration, timing, and specific location. Avoid fuel
treatments within any known fisher den site buffers to the extent possible. If areas within den site
buffers must be treated to achieve fuels objectives for the urban wildland intermix zone, limit
treatments to hand clearing of fuels. Use piling to treat surface fuels during initial treatment.
Burning of piled debris is allowed in fall and winter.

Mitigation Measure BIO-WILD-12: Fisher Habitat - In high and moderate quality reproductive
fisher habitat (Thompson et al. 2021; habitat model) in low severity and unburned areas, apply a
limited operating period during the denning season (March 1 through June 30). Use the
programmatic biological opinion definitions for potential and high-quality denning habitat for areas
that the habitat model does not cover. The limited operating period may be waived for individual
projects of limited scope and duration if pre-project surveys document absence of denning fisher
(Tucker et al. 2020). In areas of moderate burn severity (25 to 75 percent basal area loss), a
biologist will assess the area to determine if potential habitat remains and the limited operating
period should be applied.

Mitigation Measure BIO-WILD-13: Sierra Nevada red fox: A biologist will validate detection of
a Sierra Nevada red fox. When verified sightings occur, conduct an analysis to determine if
activities within 5 miles of the detection have a potential to affect the species. If necessary, apply a
limited operating period from January 1 to June 30 to avoid adverse impacts to potential breeding.
Evaluate activities for a 2-year period for detections not associated with a den site.

Mitigation Measure BIO-WILD-14: Gray wolf: If dens or rendezvous sites are within 1 mile of
the work activity, the biologist will establish a buffer to seasonally restrict activities from April 1
through July 15 between the proposed activity and the den site or rendezvous site. The buffer will
be at least 1 mile but is likely to be irregularly shaped based on topography and concerns for
revealing the exact site location. The biologist is expected to coordinate with California Department
of Fish and Wildlife, and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service as appropriate, when determining
whether dens or rendezvous sites are present and when designating buffers.

Mitigation Measure BIO-WILD-15: Snags - Retain four of the largest snags per acre larger than
15 inches diameter at breast height following plan direction, and where possible, retain 5 to 10 tons
per acre of the largest downed logs. Preference is to retain the largest downed logs present prior to
the fire at least 20 inches in diameter and more than 10 feet in length. If areas are deficient in logs,
retain these large, downed logs whole in stands and do not buck or pile. Within perennial stream
riparian buffers retain large, downed woody material for wildlife. Follow all relevant plan direction.

Mitigation Measure BIO-WILD-16: LOPs for Northern Goshawks and CA Spotted Owls -
Maintain a seasonal limited operating period within 0.25-mile of known California spotted owl
and northern goshawk nests or within protected activity center boundaries during the breeding

20



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

season (March 1 to August 15 for spotted owls; February 15 to September 15 for goshawks) unless
surveys confirm they are not nesting. The limited operating period would prohibit mechanical
activities such as tree felling, machine piling, major road maintenance, or other operations that
generate loud or continuous noise within approximately 0.25-mile of the activity center, unless
surveys confirm that California spotted owls or northern goshawks are not nesting. If the nest stand
within a protected activity center is unknown, either apply the limited operating period to a 0.25-
mile area surrounding the protected activity center, or survey to determine the nest stand location.

Mitigation Measure BIO-WILD-17: Activities in Northern Goshawk and CA Spotted Owl PACs -
No tree removal would occur in California spotted owl or northern goshawk protected activity
centers, unless they are identified as a hazard. Trees identified as hazards, located within spotted
owl or goshawk protected activity centers, which are larger than 30 inches diameter at breast height
would be left on-site as whole downed logs (and not bucked up or removed) unless they would
exceed desired fuel levels for the area. Do not locate log processing landings in northern goshawk
or California spotted owl protected activity centers.

Mitigation Measure BIO-WILD-18: Great gray owl: Apply a limited operating period,
prohibiting vegetation treatments within 0.5 mile of an active great gray owl nest stand, during the
nesting period (typically March 1 to August 15). The limited operating period may be waived for
vegetation treatments of limited scope and duration, if a biologist determines that such projects are
unlikely to result in breeding disturbance considering their intensity, duration, timing, and specific
location. Where a biologist concludes that a nest site would be shielded from planned activities by
topographic features that would minimize disturbance, the limited operating period buffer distance
may be reduced.

Mitigation Measure BIO-WILD-19: Sandhill Cranes - If sandhill cranes are observed within the
project area before or during project implementation, a limited operating period will be in effect
from April 1 through August 1 within one-half mile from occupied areas. If surveys indicate that
cranes are not nesting, then the limited operating period for that year would not be required.
Surveys of potential meadows are needed each year to establish nesting status.

Mitigation Measure BIO-WILD 20: Western bumblebee - Suitable bumblebee habitat within
treatment areas, including areas of woodlands, grasslands and upland scrub that contain requisite
habitat elements, such as small mammal burrows will be surveyed prior to implementation using
"June 2023 Survey Considerations for California Endangered Species Act (CESA) Candidate
Bumble Bee Species” as a guide. Nest sites or hibernacula discovered during implementation shall
be protected with equipment exclusion buffers of 25 feet.

Mitigation Measure BIO-WILD-21: Herbicides and pollinators — No herbicides will be used for
this project.

Mitigation Measure BIO-WILD-22: Pre-implementation surveys — Surveys will be conducted for
the species identified in the BIO-WILD mitigation measures, and BIO-AQUA #12 and #13 (Frogs)
prior to project implementation using Forest Service and California Department of Fish and
Wildlife Survey and Monitoring Protocols and Guidelines.
https://wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Survey-Protocols

21


about:blank

Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

Cultural Resources:

Mitigation Measure CULT-1: National Historic Preservation Act - Compliance with National
Historic Preservation Act Section 106 will be fulfilled in accordance with the provisions of the R5
PA. Heritage program specialists will be involved early in planning processes for treatments to
identify cultural resources at risk and determine effects. Measures to avoid adverse effects
recommended by the Heritage Program Manager or Delegated Heritage Program Specialist and
accepted by the Line Officer will be incorporated into treatment designs and implementation plans.
Unavoidable and unanticipated adverse effects to cultural resource sites, and inadvertent
discoveries, will be addressed in accordance with the provisions of R5 PA.

Mitigation Measure CULT-2: Protection of Historic Sites and Unanticipated Discoveries -
Contracts will contain standard provisions for the Protection of Historical Sites and unanticipated
discoveries (B/BT6.24 and C/CT6.24) pursuant to FSH 2409.11, 61.11b. Forest Service project
administrators and/or designated Heritage Program Staff will review cultural resource site
protection measures with contractors prior to the start of activities.

Mitigation Measure CULT-3: Treatment Activities with Cultural Site Boundaries - No treatment
activities will occur within cultural site boundaries unless approved by the Heritage Program
Manager or Delegated Heritage Program Specialist in accordance with provisions of the
programmatic agreement.

Mitigation Measure CULT-4: Human Remains - Discoveries of human remains will be treated in
accordance with provisions of the R5 PA (Stipulation 7.9: Human Remains).

Geology and Soils:

Mitigation Measure GEO-1: Detrimental disturbance — Limit total soil detrimental disturbance
(compaction, displacement, and total porosity loss) to less than 15 percent of an activity area.
Landings and skid trails will be considered part of an activity area.

Mitigation Measure GEO-2: Slopes — Limit all mechanical operations to slopes less than 35
percent. In areas where sustained slopes exceed 35 percent, limit mechanical operations such as
skidding, tractor piling, grapple piling and mechanized tree felling except where supported by on-
the-ground evaluation by an interdisciplinary team that includes a watershed specialist. Trees are
permitted to be hand-felled and end-lined on slopes over 35 percent (within unburned and low soil
burn severity areas only), but any furrow produced by end-lining that exceeds 25 feet long by 6
inches deep shall be recontoured (“filled in”’) to prevent concentrated flow and hillslope erosion.

Mitigation Measure GEO-3: Soil Moisture - Operate mechanical equipment when soil moisture is
less than 20 percent by weight. Use Forest Service standard contract provision Erosion Prevention
and Control to suspend operations due to the rainy season, high water, and other adverse operating
conditions, to protect resources. If Forest Service soil scientist or hydrologist is unavailable to
sample soil, contract administrators shall use ball method to test for operability.

Mitigation Measure GEO-4: Pivoting of Machinery — Pivoting of machinery should be avoided to
prevent soil displacement in high soil burn severity areas.

22



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

Mitigation Measure GEO-5: Slash — Activity generated slash may be machine or hand piled on
slopes less than 35 percent; and hand piled on slopes greater than 35 percent.

Mitigation Measure GEO-6: Soil Cover - During management activities, maintain (or add to the
extent feasible in deficient areas) an average of 50 percent effective soil cover in treatment areas
that is well-distributed and generally in the form of fine organic matter. Where feasible, maintain 85
percent or more effective soil cover in riparian areas and on slopes greater than 25 percent, and 70
percent effective soil cover on areas with high soil burn severity. Management activities in areas
with ecological types that cannot normally support 50 percent soil cover shall be considered
individually for soil cover needs.

Mitigation Measure GEO-7: Woody debris — Maintain coarse woody debris for soil organisms
based on ecological type and in consultation with wildlife and fuels specialists.

Mitigation Measure GEO-8: Existing Landings and Skid Trails — Reuse existing landings and skid
trails wherever possible. Placement of landings and skid trails should avoid, where possible, high
soil burn severity areas.

Mitigation Measure GEO-9: Waterbars - All skid trails will be waterbarred and have slash
scattered on them to provide a minimum of 50 percent cover where conditions allow. Where
suitable material exists, post treatment soil cover will range from 50 to 70 percent, with variations
resulting from slope steepness and fuel reduction treatments.

Mitigation Measure GEO-10: New Landings - New landings will be located on gentle slopes (less
than 20 percent) to minimize earthwork, and will avoid unstable areas, steep slopes below landslide
benches, and slope positions where they could deliver sediment to streams. Cuts and fills will not
exceed 5 feet in height unless field-reviewed and approved by an earth scientist beforehand.
Landings will have natural, non-constructed designs. All new landing fill slopes and access road fill
slopes (greater than 100 square feet) would be mulched initially, and then the mulch would be
maintained throughout the life of the project.

Mitigation Measure GEO-11: Tilling - Following completion of all management activities, till
(subsoil to 18 inches) with a winged-subsoiler (preferred) all landings identified for rehabilitation,
and main skid trails (up to 200 feet entering landings) that have fine textured soils. Tillage will be
completed outside of the tree dripline so as not to impact root systems. For rocky soil, scarification
will be used to restore sites. These areas should be mulched using certified weed-free materials or
on-site slash that is lopped and scattered or chipped at a rate of 1.5 to 2 tons per acre (approximately
4 to 6 inches in depth) over a minimum of 75 percent of the exposed soils, where necessary, to
prevent erosion.

Mitigation Measure GEO-12: Ultramafic Soils - All field personnel who will be working near
earth-moving, or other dust-producing activities in areas underlain by ultramafic rock will be
informed that naturally occurring asbestos commonly occurs in that rock, and they will be provided
with a map showing such areas.

Mitigation Measure GEO-13: Ultramafic Soils and Dust Abatement - Dust production in
ultramafic areas will be prevented or minimized by applying effective dust abatement measures,
such as: applying water or other dust inhibitors to materials being worked. Where dust prevention in

23



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

ultramafic areas is not possible, appropriate protection and mitigation measures will be applied so
that Forest Service and contractor field personnel will not inhale such dust. These measures include
but are not limited to closing windows on vehicles, turning on positive ventilation systems, and
using appropriate air filtration masks.

Mitigation Measure GEO-14: Ultramafic Soils and Waste Rock - If rock or soil waste is generated
from ultramafic areas, such waste will be disposed of only where the underlying rock is also
ultramafic, and it will not be mixed with other waste from non-ultramafic areas. When transporting
naturally occurring asbestos-containing material, avoid overloading trucks and cover with tarps to
reduce dust. Ensure that piles of excavated material are wet and cover with tarps to reduce dust.

Mitigation Measure GEO-15: Ultramafic Soils and Mechanical Operations - Mechanical
operations should operate on slightly moist or moist soils to reduce dust levels within area that
could contain naturally occurring asbestos in ultramafic soils.

Mitigation Measure GEO-16: Ultramafic Soils and Side cast - Recommend that side casting of
material should be kept to a minimum and ample watering of roads or areas where ultramafic
material exists to minimize exposure to potential naturally occurring asbestos.

Hydrology:

Mitigation Measure HYD-1: Equipment Exclusion Zone (EEZ)- Equipment exclusion zones will
be established to protect aquatic resources and water quality in the post-burn landscape based on
soil burn severity and time since the fire (See Table 1).

Table 1. Aquatic management zone types, conditions, and associated equipment exclusion zone buffers

Aguatic management Time since fire occurred | Soil burn severity* Minimum equipment
zone type (years) exclusion zone buffer

width (feet)
Perennial, intermittent, and | Greater than 2 years Moderate or High 100

ephemeral streams, special
aquatic features, lakes,
wetlands, springs,
landslide areas

Perennial, intermittent, and | Greater than 2 years Low or Unburned 50**
ephemeral streams, special
aquatic features, lakes,
wetlands, springs,
landslide areas

Refers to most prominent soil burn severity within the aquatic management zone, as identified in burned area emergency response
soil burn severity maps. For mosaic burn, defer to the most restrictive buffer width.

**Exception per mitigation measure BIO-AQUA-15: Within suitable habitat for aquatic and terrestrial Regional Forester sensitive
species, implement a minimum 100-feet equipment exclusion zone around perennial and intermittent rivers, streams, other
waterbodies, and wet/sensitive areas including seeps, springs, and meadows.

Mitigation Measure HYD-2: Wet weather - All ground-disturbing activities within or outside of
the normal operating season (May 1 to October 31) will be implemented according to the Lassen
National Forest wet weather operation standards.

Mitigation Measure HYD-3: High Priority Soils - High-priority wet, sensitive, or compactable soil
sites (WETNESS sites identified by the hydrologist) will be field reviewed by a hydrologist, soil
scientist, or designee to determine site sensitivity and applicable equipment exclusion zone.

24



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

Mitigation Measure HYD-4: Roads - Road sites identified by the hydrologist or designee as
having high sediment delivery potential will be field reviewed prior to contract development to
identify: (1) if mitigations are needed, and (2) what site-specific best management practices or road
improvements are appropriate.

Mitigation Measure HYD-5: Skid Trail Stream Crossings- Designated skid trails crossing
ephemeral stream channels may be approved for access to otherwise inaccessible areas, but only
upon consultation with an aquatic specialist or designee.

Mitigation Measure HYD-6: Skid Trails and Landslides - No skid trails will be built on active
landslides or inner gorges, and no existing skid trails on active landslides or inner gorges will be
used.

Mitigation Measure HYD-7: Refueling - Refueling will not take place within aquatic management
zones except at designated landings in locations where most disconnected from water resources. A
spill containment kit will be in place where refueling and servicing take place.

Mitigation Measure HYD-8: Borate - Borate will not be applied to stumps within 25 feet from the
stream channel. Large quantities of borate will not be stored, mixed or handled within 100 feet of
any stream channel, wetland, or wet area (or farther as needed to ensure plan compliance). Follow
label instructions for use near waterbodies. Spills within aquatic management zones will be
immediately reported to the local Forest Service watershed specialist.

Mitigation Measure HYD-9: Equipment Exclusion Zones - All equipment exclusion zones will be
flagged, signed, or both within proposed treatment units and identified as “equipment exclusion” on
project maps or as “buffer strips” in contracts.

Mitigation Measure HYD-10: Tree Cutting —Trees providing bank stability on fish-bearing
streams should not be cut where possible (where they don’t pose an imminent threat to life and
safety). Trees will be directionally felled away from streambank where possible and as safety
allows or unless otherwise approved by an aquatics specialist or designee.

Mitigation Measure HYD-11: Heavy equipment — Off-road heavy equipment access is prohibited
within the Equipment Exclusion Zone. This includes skidders, forwarders, masticators, chippers,
and more. Heavy equipment may operate from the roadway within the equipment exclusion zone.
There would be no off-road heavy equipment use on slopes greater than 35 percent for low or
unburned soil burn severity, or 25 percent for high or moderate soil burn severity within the Aquatic
Management Zone.

Mitigation Measure HYD-12: Commercial Product Removal — Commercial product removal may
occur within the aquatic management zone and the equipment exclusion zone where fuel loading is
excessive and where forest plan standards for large or coarse wood are met, so long as equipment
exclusion in the equipment exclusion zone restrictions can be met. Aquatics specialists and fuels
specialists should be consulted for determination of “excessive fuel loadings.”

In the equipment exclusion zone, yarding or end-lining may be used to remove forest wood
products in low soil burn severity areas with slopes less than 25 percent. There would be no yarding

25



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

or end-lining in the equipment exclusion zone in areas of high or moderate soil burn severity.
Exceptions may be considered where the equipment exclusion zone is located on the uphill side of a
road on a road that runs parallel to a stream, provided that: (1) adequate road drainage is maintained
and (2) the site has site-specific approval by an aquatics specialist. All furrows created in the
aquatic management zone or equipment exclusion zone will be fully repaired (recontoured and
covered with effective ground cover or erosion control).

Mitigation Measure HYD-13: Skidding — Skidding would not occur within the equipment
exclusion zone. Exceptions may be considered on the uphill side of the road on roads that parallel
streams, if approved by an aquatic specialist and providing that proper road drainage is maintained.
All skid trails in the aquatic management zone would have site-specific mitigations (such as erosion
control), as determined by an aquatic specialist, and would be fully repaired (decompacted and
covered with effective ground cover or erosion control).

Mitigation Measure HYD-14: Stream crossings — There would be no temporary stream crossings,
except where approved by an aquatic specialist. Exceptions would not be allowed on perennial
streams, streams with flowing or standing water, areas of high and moderate soil burn severity, or
on areas of low soil burn severity with slopes greater than 25 percent. All stream crossings in the
aquatic management zone would be fully repaired (recontoured, decompacted, and covered with
effective ground cover or erosion control).

Mitigation Measure HYD-15: Landings — Landings would be minimized in the aquatic
management zone. There would be no new landings in the aquatic management zone, but existing
landings may be used in the outer aquatic management zone outside of the equipment exclusion
zone. Exceptions to these restrictions may be considered on the uphill side of the road on roads that
parallel streams, if approved by an aquatic specialist, and providing that proper road drainage is
maintained. Exceptions would not be allowed on areas with high or moderate soil burn severity or
areas of low soil burn severity with slopes greater than 25 percent. All landings in the aquatic
management zone would be fully repaired (decompacted and covered with effective ground cover
or erosion control).

Mitigation Measure HYD-16: Slash piles — Piles would be piled by hand within the equipment
exclusion zone. Large and coarse wood interacting with the stream or active floodplain would not
be piled unless the fuels hazard is excessive and forest plan standards for wood are met for a given
stream reach. Pile size in the equipment exclusion zone would be limited to approximately 5 feet by
5 feet by 6 feet.

Mitigation Measure HYD-17: Pile burning — Hand piles within the equipment exclusion zone
would be located greater than 50 feet from streams and 25 feet from groundwater-dependent
ecosystems, meadows, springs. Pile burning would aim for low soil burn severity and minimize
spread to the extent possible.

Mitigation Measure HYD-18: Chipping or Masticating — Chippers or masticators may operate
within the equipment exclusion zone on existing roadbeds. Within the equipment exclusion zone
there would be no deep concentrations (greater than 4 inches) of chips or masticated material. Chips
would not be directed at stream channels, wet areas, or waterbodies. There would be no deep
concentrations of chips in road ditch lines, or anywhere that could interfere with proper road
drainage, within the aquatic management zone.

26



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

Mitigation Measure HYD-19: Firewood cutting — No firewood cutting within the equipment
exclusion zone. Firewood piles should follow guidelines for “landings” as described previously.

Mitigation Measure HYD-20: Canopy Cover - In unburned areas or areas burned with low burn
severity, avoid all loss of canopy cover to the extent possible. Retain canopy cover above 60 percent
on average for a given treatment unit, except where conditions pose an imminent threat to life and
safety. Identify unburned and low burn severity areas on site-specific maps prior to implementation.

Mitigation Measure HYD-21: Streambed Alteration Permit — Before any riparian vegetation
removal or work within the bed bank or channel of a stream, creek, or river, including
temporary watercourse crossings, project proponents will coordinate with the California
Department of Fish and Wildlife to ensure compliance with Section 1602 of the Fish and
Game Code.

Recreation:

Mitigation Measure REC-1: Recreational Sites - Avoid implementing activities within the
boundaries of developed recreational sites during recreation season (May 15 through September
15). Minimize impacts to high-traffic recreation sites both day and night. These sites would include
concession and Forest-run campgrounds and day use areas, popular trails, or trailheads. If hazard
tree removal is necessary to address an emergent public safety concern, complete activities prior to
opening for the season or issue a temporary closure.

Mitigation Measure REC-2: Signhage - Provide safety signing along trails and roads, as well as
trail closures in active project areas.

Mitigation Measure REC-3: Public Access - Maintain continued public and permit holder access
during implementation, whenever feasible. If access cannot be maintained, please consult with
District Recreation Staff for coordination and information dissemination to establish alternative
routes or temporary closures.

Mitigation Measure REC-4: Visitor Information - Provide visitor information about area, road,
and trail closures, or other recreation setting changes caused by project activities in news releases,
on-site, and on the national forest’s website.

Mitigation Measure REC-5: Project Related Woody Material and Recreational Sites - Completely
remove all project-related woody material from developed and dispersed recreation sites including
logs, branches, slash, and more, in a manner that minimizes disturbance to soil and natural forest
duff layers, rehabilitate soil disturbance to natural existing condition. Use local leaf litter and small
woody debris to disguise project-related ground disturbance within sight of roads, trails and within
campgrounds.

Mitigation Measure REC-6: Stumps - In areas within all developed recreation sites (campgrounds,
day use sites, trailheads, or others), flush cut all stumps, unless stumps are designated for grinding.

27



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

Mitigation Measure REC-7: Landings - Locate new landings away from developed and dispersed
recreation areas (staging areas) where feasible. Avoid placing landings and other centralized project
activities near private property.

Mitigation Measure REC-8: Replacement of Signage and Barriers - Protect all improvements
including trails, roads, campground facilities, water system features, signs, barriers, mines, or
bridges. If any signage or barriers (including boulders or fencing) or improvements are removed or
damaged, they must be reinstalled in the same location and manner immediately following
vegetation management operations.

Mitigation Measure REC-9: Non-Motorized System Trails - Minimize overlaying skid trails and
haul roads on non-motorized system trails. If trails are used as skid trails or haul roads, trail cleanup
and rehabilitation will be included in the contract. Skid trail crossings across designated forest trails
and roads will be kept to a minimum. Any crossings shall be perpendicular to designated forest
trails and roads. To reduce the potential for establishment of user created routes, rehabilitation must
be completed in a timely manner to ensure the public does not begin using them for motorized or
non-motorized recreation. The rehabilitation plan shall include returning to natural contour,
scarification, seeding with native mix and installing natural barriers as needed. Trail width shall not
be increased. Changes to trail alignment and surfacing will be minimized; the trail will not be
straightened, nor its surface changed with an alternate material unless such actions are needed to
enhance the trail and protect resources. Trees to be removed along trails will be designated and
remaining trees left unmarked. Stumps will be cut as low as possible, and cuts angled away from
trails.

Mitigation Measure REC-10: Protect Range Improvements - Protect range improvements and
repair any damage in consultation with the range permittee.

Mitigation Measure REC-11: Temporary Closure of Recreational Areas - Recreation areas
(designated roads, trails, trailheads, staging areas, and dispersed camp sites) may be temporarily
closed to provide for public safety during active tree removal operations, but would otherwise
remain open unless specifically agreed to by the recreation officer or trails manager.

Mitigation Measure REC-12: Limit Trail Closures - Limit all closures of trail segments to
Monday through Friday, excluding Mondays of holiday weekends (Memorial Day, Labor Day, or
others). No closures will be authorized on weekends. All trails shall be opened for safe use on
weekends and holidays.

Mitigation Measure REC-13: Public Notification - Provide for public safety and education by
posting signs to inform public of project activities. Whenever possible, post notices on forest
website prior to hazard tree cutting. Keep information current.

Tribal Cultural Resources:

Mitigation Measure TRIBE-1: Tribal Consultation - Tribal consultation pursuant the NHPA will
occur in accordance with the R5 PA for each hazard tree undertaking. Forests will provide tribal
representatives the opportunity to monitor treatment activities, if so requested.

28



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

This IS-MND has been prepared to assess the project’s potential effects on the environment and an
appraisal of the significance of those effects. Based on this IS-MND, it has been determined that
the proposed project will not have any significant effects on the environment after implementation
of mitigation measures. This conclusion is supported by the following findings:

1. The proposed project will have no effect related to Agriculture Resources, Energy, Land
Use Planning, Mineral Resources, Population and Housing, Public Facilities, and Utilities.

2. The proposed project will have a less than significant impact on Aesthetics, Air Quality,
Greenhouse Gas Emissions, Hazards and Hazardous Materials, Noise, Recreation,
Transportation, and Wildfire.

3. Mitigation is required to reduce potentially significant impacts related to Biological
Resources, Cultural Resources, Geology and Soils, Hydrology and Water Quality, and
Tribal Cultural Resources.

The Initial Study-Environmental Checklist included in this document discusses the results of
resource-specific environmental impact analyses that were conducted by the District. This initial
study revealed that potentially significant environmental effects could result from the proposed
project. However, project proponents have revised project plans and have developed mitigation
measures that will eliminate impact or reduce environmental impacts to a less than significant level.
Honey Lake Valley RCD has found, in consideration of the entire record, that there is no substantial
evidence that the proposed project as currently revised and mitigated would result in a significant
effect upon the environment. The IS-MND is therefore the appropriate document for CEQA
compliance.

29



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

INITIAL STUDY-ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST

The environmental factors checked below would be potentially affected by this project involving at
least one impact that is a potentially significant impact as indicated by the checklist on the
following pages.

Environmental Factors Potentially Affected

[ ] Aesthetics [ ] Greenhouse Gas Emissions [_] Public Services

[ ] Agriculture Resources [ ] Hazards & Hazardous Materials [ ] Recreation

[ ] Air Quality <] Hydrology and Water Quality [ ] Transportation

<] Biological Resources [ ] Land Use and Planning [X] Tribal Cultural Resources

[X] Cultural Resources [ ] Mineral Resources [ ] Utilities and Service Systems

[ | Energy [ ] Noise [ ] Wildfire

<] Geology and Soils [ ] Population and Housing [ ] Mandatory Findings of Significance

Determination
On the basis of this initial evaluation:

O

X

I find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, and a NEGATIVE
DECLARATION would be prepared.

I find that although the proposed project COULD have a significant effect on the environment, there WOULD
NOT be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the project have been made by or agreed to by the
project proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION would be prepared.

| find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required.

| find that the proposed project MAY have a “potentially significant impact” or “potentially significant unless
mitigated” impact on the environment, but at least one effect 1) has been adequately analyzed in an earlier
document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and 2) has been addressed by mitigation measures based on
the earlier analysis as described on attached sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required,
but it must analyze only the effects that remain to be addressed.

| find that although the proposed project COULD have a significant effect on the environment, because all
potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed adequately in an earlier ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
REPORT or NEGATIVE DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards, and (b) have been avoided or
mitigated pursuant to that earlier ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT or NEGATIVE DECLARATION,
including revisions or mitigation measures that are imposed upon the proposed project, nothing further is
required.

Name: Jesse Claypool Date
Title: HLVRCD Chairman

30




Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

Environmental Checklist and Discussion

AESTHETICS
Potentially Less Than Less Than No Impact
a) Except as provided in Public Resources Code Significant Significant Significant
§ 21099, would the project have a substantial Impact V‘l’:}zo'\r/ggf:tte')%” Impact
adverse effect on a scenic vista?
Il Ol X Il

Scenic vistas were already impacted by the Dixie Fire (2021). Portions of the project area have high
densities of drought- and fire-killed standing trees in forest stands that generally were denser than
the natural range of variation. A mosaic burn pattern resulted from the fires and included areas of
unburned, very low, low, moderate, and high fire severity. As a result, in some areas, tree mortality
is 100 percent, while other areas still support a green forest. In moderate- and high-severity burn
areas, the landscape has been dramatically altered; therefore, it does not meet the visual quality
objectives. Treatments will result in better scenic vistas in the long-term as burned stands are
restored to productive forest.

Direct and Indirect Effects: In moderate- and high-severity burn areas, the landscape has been
dramatically altered; therefore, it is unlikely that visual quality objectives would currently meet the
forest plan standards. By treating the slash and activity fuels through piling and burning, vegetation
would regrow that provides visually pleasing contrast to surrounding features and landforms. The
overall result of the proposed treatments would be an improved visual quality. The majority of what
can be perceived as negative effects to the visual resource (flush cut stumps, hand or machine piles,
treatment edges, ground disturbance, and untreated slash) occurs during implementation. This initial
phase is short term in duration and does not represent the completed treatment. At the conclusion of
treatment, visual signs of activity (such as cut stumps or track and tire marks) may still be evident in
the short term but would be anticipated to dissipate over time. Mitigation measure AES-1: Stump
Heights would be implemented to minimize these impacts. Evidence of burning on trees and ground
would be naturally occurring in forests where wildfire regimes are common. When growth of
shrubs, grasses, and forbs is underway, most of the evidence left behind by management activities
would not be anticipated to be evident to the casual forest visitor.

Cumulative Effect: Cumulative scenic quality effects were evaluated from multiple viewpoints. It is
anticipated that proposed management activities would appear visually subordinate to the
characteristic landscape. All viewsheds would be natural or near natural-appearing and meet or
exceed a partial retention visual quality objective. It is unlikely that the incremental effects from
this project and any additional future foreseeable project would have a significant impact on the
scenery of the project area.

b) Except as provided in Public Resources Code 8§  Potentially Less Than Less Than No Impact
21099, would the project substantially damage Significant Significant Significant
scenic resources, including, but not limited to, Impact "mso'\r’gg?:tl%” Impact
trees, rock outcroppings, and historic buildings
within a state scenic highway? Ll [ ] X

31



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

Scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and historic buildings
within a state scenic highway were previously impacted by the Dixie Fire. Treatments will remove
dead/dying trees, and restore areas to more aesthetically pleasing conditions.

c) Except as provided in Public Resources Code
8§ 21099, in non-urbanized areas, would the
project substantially degrade the existing

. ; s Potentially Less Than Less Than No Impact
V|sua}l charapter or quall_ty of publlc_ views of Significant Significant Significant
the site and its surroundings? (Public views Impact with Mitigation Impact
are those that are experienced from publicly Incorporated
accessible vantage point.) If the project is in ] n ] <

an urbanized area, would the project conflict
with applicable zoning and other regulations
governing scenic quality?

Existing visual character or quality of public views of the site and its surroundings will be
improved by proposed treatments as dead/dying trees are removed, and natural vegetation is
restored.

d) Except as provided in Public Resources Code 8  Potentially Less Than Less Than No Impact
21099, would the project create a new source Significant Significant Significant
Impact with Mitigation Impact

of substantial light or glare which would

adversely affect day or nighttime views in the
area? Ll [ O X

Incorporated

Prescribed fire activities associated with the project could create a faint temporary glow on some
nights, but the glow will not be substantial and affect day or nighttime views of the area.

AGRICULTURAL RESOURCES

a) Would the project convert Prime Farmland,

. . Potentially Less Than Less Than No Impact
Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Significant Significant Significant
Importance (Farmland), as shown on the maps Impact with Mitigation Impact
prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping Incorporated
and Monitoring Program of the California [ ] H X

Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use?

The project is not located on land identified as Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of
Statewide Importance (Farmland).

Potentially Less Than Less Than No Impact
b) Would the project conflict with existing zoning Sllgn'flcatnt _aga!z!ca?t Sllgn'flcatnt
. T mpac with Mitigation mpac
for agricultural use or a Williamson Act Incorporated
contract?
L] 0 L] X

The project is consistent with the existing zoning and Williamson Act contracts.

32



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

¢) Would the project conflict with existing zoning

for, or cause rezoning of forest land (as defined  Potentially Less Than Less Than No Impact
in Public Resources Code §12220(Qg)), Significant Significant Significant

timberland (as defined by Public Resources H N v L

Code 84526), or timberland zoned Timberland

Production (as defined by Government Code [] [ O X

§51104(g))?

Much of the project area is zoned for timberland production. The project is consistent with existing
zoning.

Potentially Less Than Less Than No Impact
d) Would the project result in the loss of forest S'Pn'flci”t _ﬁ]'gh;!{!ca?t S'IEJn'f'Ci”t
land or conversion of forest land to non-forest mpac Wi Hitga on mpac
Incorporated
use?
] U] ] X

Dead and dying trees will be removed from forests substantially impacted by the Dixie Fire (2021),
and will continue to be managed as forest land.

. . . Potentially Less Than Less Than No Impact
e) Would the project involve other changes inthe  gjo igeant Significant Significant
existing environment, which, due to their Impact with Mitigation Impact
location or nature, could result in conversion of Incorporated
-adri 2
farmland to non-agricultural use~ [ ] H X

The project takes place entirely onsite and requires no improvement or expansion of auxiliary
facilities; therefore, the project has no foreseeable indirect, offsite, or cumulative impacts that could
degrade or convert forestlands or agricultural lands.

AIR QUALITY
Potentially Less Than Less Than No Impact
a) Would the project conflict with or obstruct S'Ign'f'cint ,ﬁ:gla![!ca?t S'Ign'f'cint
. - - - - mpaci Wi itigation mpaci
implementation of the applicable air quality Incorporated
plan?
[] [ X []

Project prescribed burning would produce PM10. Prescribed burning is regulated by the Lassen
County Air Pollution Control District (LCAPCD 2023) in compliance with federal and State Clean
Air Acts. Prescribed burn projects must submit a Smoke Management Plan to LCAPCD for review
and approval. The plan is developed to minimize air quality impacts of the project. Burning is
done on approved burn days as determined by LCAPCD. This process ensures that there are not
any significant smoke impacts to public health from the project. National forests are required by
law to comply with State law and local rules established by the air districts. The primary effect to
air quality from national forests is from smoke produced by wildland fires. Prescribed burning is
regulated by the air districts, whereas uncontrolled wildfires are not regulated.

33



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

b) Would the project result in a cumulatively Potentially Less Than Less Than No Impact
considerable net increase of any criteria Sllgnlflcelnt .tSr:g’\r;ll_[!ca?t Sllgnlflce;nt
. . . mpac with Mitigation mpac
pollutant for which the project region is non- Incorporated

attainment under an applicable federal or state
ambient air quality standard? Ll [ ] X

Lassen County is currently in attainment for all federal and state ambient air quality standards.

There are no class | airsheds within the project area.

Effects to air quality and visibility could result from prescribed burning; and a very small increase
in air pollutants could result from equipment use under the proposed action.

Effects to air quality could result from fugitive dust caused by project implementation. Best
management practices (BMPs) will be implemented in order to minimize impacts. Fugitive dust
generally quickly settles back down to the ground and typically does not spread far downwind.

Potential adverse effects from equipment used in project implementation would be very small as the
equipment would mostly operate in remote areas that are not occupied. Limited amounts of
equipment would be used over a broad area and equipment emissions would disperse quickly.

Effects to visibility from project prescribed burning would be temporary and minimized by burning
only during designated burn days when adequate weather conditions would disperse smoke quickly.
Most prescribed burning would occur on a single day or over several days. Fire managers are
required by the air district to plan for controlling smoke emissions through contingency planning as
part of the smoke management plans.

Project emissions would temporarily increase air pollutants in the airshed and Lassen County.
However, their direct, indirect and cumulative effects would be regulated by the LCAPCD in order
to prevent adverse impacts and exceedances of health standards. The proposed prescribed fire
treatments would reduce future potential wildfire smoke.

Potentially Less Than Less Than No Impact
. L Significant Significant Significant
c) Would the project expose sensitive receptors to Impact with Mitigation Impact
substantial pollutant concentrations? Incorporated
L] 0 L] X

Due to the above factors and the remoteness of the location, the project will not expose sensitive
receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations.

Potentially Less Than Less Than No Impact
d)  Would the project result in other emissions Significant Significant Significant
(such as those leading to odors) adversely Impact "lv:]tso'\r’gg?:tl%” Impact
affecting a substantial number of people?
L] [ L] X

The project will not result in emissions other than those mentioned above.

34



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES

a) Would the project have a substantial adverse

effect, either directly or through habitat Potentially Less Than Less Than No Impact
modifications, on any species identified as a S'Pn'flci”t _agh;!{!ca?t S'ISJ”'f'Ci”t

- iy - - - mpac WI ltigation mpac
candidate, sensitive, or special-status species in Incorporated

local or regional plans, policies, or regulations,
or by the California Department of Fish and L] X [] L]
Wildlife or the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

A biological assessment was conducted to analyze the effects of the project on several categories of
sensitive species. This includes federally threatened, endangered, proposed, and candidate species,
as well as California threatened, endangered, species of special concern, and rare plant species.
Species listed as endangered by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (Federal) and California
Department of Fish and Wildlife (State) are species currently in danger of extinction throughout all
or a significant portion of their range. Species listed as threatened are likely to become endangered
within the foreseeable future throughout all or a significant portion of their range. A proposed
species is any species that is proposed in the Federal Register to be listed as a threatened or
endangered species under the Endangered Species Act (50 CFR 402.03). A candidate species is a
species for which the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service has on file enough information to warrant or
propose listing as endangered or threatened. California species of special concern are wildlife species
at risk of becoming threatened or endangered. The California Native Plant Society (CNPS) has
developed an inventory of rare plants that is widely accepted as the standard for information on the
rarity and endangerment status of California flora.

An assessment of potential threatened, endangered, Forest Service threatened, and rare (California
Native Plant Society Rank 1 and 2) vascular plants, bryophytes, lichens, and fungi was conducted
including a CNDDB 2-mile search around the project area, a nine-quad search for rare plants using
the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) BIOS system
(https://wildlife.ca.gov/Data/BIOS ) (i.e. the 7.5’ quadrangles where the project is primarily located
along with the eight surrounding quads), and a search of Lassen National Forest sensitive plant
species databases for known occurrences within 300-feet buffer beyond the action area. Plants
found over 300 feet away from the project area boundary are considered to have no effect as they
are outside the disturbance area. The Calflora (https://www.calflora.org/ ), and California Native
Plant Society inventory of rare plants (http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/ ) were also used, as well as
consideration to past experience in the area.

All federal and state threatened endangered, proposed, candidate or sensitive wildlife, aquatic, and
fisheries species that could potentially occur within the project area were considered by reviewing
the LNF and CNDDB 2-mile search, search of the BIOS system, available endangered species data
from the LNF, USFWS and CDFW to ensure threatened and endangered and sensitive species or
their designated critical habitat that might be affected by the proposed action were adequately
considered. A 2-mile buffer was used as the analysis area for wide ranging species as a known
observation may not be within the project area but still may be utilizing the project area. For fish
species, the subwatershed was used for analysis.

See Tables 2 and 3 for a complete list of species considered in this analysis.

35


https://wildlife.ca.gov/Data/BIOS
https://www.calflora.org/
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/

Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

Botanical Resources — Threatened, Endangered, Rare, and Sensitive:

Recent wildfires greatly altered the forested landscape in and around the project area. Impacted
areas are in a state of change in terms of soil nutrients, watershed function, understory vegetation,
canopy cover, and tree survival. The fires killed many trees outright, resulting in a reduced forest
canopy cover compared to pre-fire conditions. This change decreased shading, changed growing
conditions for many sensitive plants, increased solar penetration to the forest floor, and created
suitable habitat for invasive plants to establish and spread.

Currently, we do not know the nature or extent of effects to sensitive plant populations from the
fires and fire suppression activities, but it is likely some plants were killed. It is also likely that
sensitive plant habitat was degraded or lost in some areas. Invasive plants often establish or spread
on disturbed ground after wildfire events, depending on the species involved and fire severity. An
increase in invasive plants would indirectly adversely affect sensitive plants by increasing
competition between different species and habitat loss through displacement.

Activities that have affected baseline conditions for sensitive and invasive plants and their habitat
within the project area include wildfires, fire suppression, fuels management, livestock grazing,
mining, timber harvest, road construction and maintenance, off-highway vehicle use, utility line
installation, recreation, and nonnative plant introductions. These activities have altered the present
landscape to various degrees, with varying effects to species. Private landowners are not required to
protect sensitive plant species or treat invasive plants, whereas forest managers are required to
evaluate management activities on National Forest System lands (except wildfire suppression) for
impacts to these resources.

Climate change may be shifting species to higher elevations and cooler aspects (Chen et al. 2011,
Dukes and Mooney 1999). Although the effects of climate change on sensitive plants and nonnative
invasive plants are uncertain at this time, some researchers predict that the increase in temperature
and moisture may cause a shift in suitable habitat for some species. Nonnative invasive plants such
as cheatgrass and spotted knapweed may experience a shift in range that leads to both an expansion
and a contraction depending on moisture and temperature (Bradley 2009). It has also been shown
that some species may move downhill due to increases in water availability (Crimmins et al. 2011).
There is evidence indicating a potentially longer growing season, with increases in summer
photosynthetic capacity. Kelly and Goulden (2008) found that rapid shifts in the distribution of
plants can be expected with climate change and that global climate change may already be
impacting vegetation distribution.

If climate change is severe enough to turn the moister areas into hot dry sites, nonnative invasive
plants would likely thrive because many thrive in hot dry conditions. Models for climate change
predict that habitat is vulnerable to nonnative invasive plant establishment and spread (Julius et al.
2013). Literature suggests that climate change is likely to increase the range and abundance of
nonnative invasive species, as these species are not as limited by dispersal and pollination as are
native plants (Dukes and Mooney 1999). However, the issue is complex and there is uncertainty
about future invasion risk at the local level. Such changes would be incremental and may only be
obvious over several years (Bradley et al. 2010).

Approximately 59 percent of the project area burned at moderate to high severity in these large
wildfires. Prior to the fires, the dominant forest types were Sierra Mixed Conifer (SMC), white fir
(WTF) and Eastside pine (EPN). Based on known and potential occurrence in the project area, 56

36



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

sensitive plant species were evaluated. Sensitive plant known occurrences include 21 on the Lassen
National Forest. Table 2 lists sensitive plant species, effects determinations, and rationale for the
project area.

Approximately 6 invasive plant species have been documented in the project area. Species with the
largest infestations mapped include: Centaurea solstitialis (Yellow star-thistle), Centaurea stoebe
ssp. micranthos (Spotted knapweed), Cirsium arvense (Canada thistle), Lepidium latifolium
(Broadleaved pepperweed), Rubus armeniacus (Himalayan blackberry) and Taeniatherum caput-
medusae (Medusahead). The full effects of the Dixie Fire (2021) on populations of sensitive plant
species in the proposed action area will not be known for several years, as response to fire is highly
variable and dependent on a species’ life history, the severity and intensity of the burn, time since
last fire, pre-fire vegetation assemblages, colonization by nonnative invasive species, and a
multitude of other factors.

Mitigation measures BIO-BOT #1-6 and BIO-INV #1-6 have been proposed to reduce the impact to
sensitive plant species to less than significant.

Aquatics and Fisheries Resources:

Approximately 12 percent of the project area was riparian habitat prior to the fires. Approximately
20% of this burned at high severity and no longer constitutes riparian habitat. In addition to removal
of riparian habitat, these fires likely decreased riparian canopy cover, altered current large woody
debris (variation is expected depending on burn severity, but likely generally increased), reduced
future woody debris supply, and increased sediment delivery. Aquatic species in the zone therefore
have experienced habitat loss as well as a likely reduction in remaining habitat quality. The zone
contains 5 sensitive species including amphibians and the western pond turtle (See Table 2).

Mitigation Measures BIO-AQUA #1-24 and HYD-#1-20 have been proposed to reduce impacts to
aquatic and fisheries sensitive species to less than significant.

Wildlife Resources:

Fire is a natural process that can be beneficial for a diverse ecosystem and for species associated
with post-fire habitats such as primary cavity excavators (such as woodpeckers) or species
associated with early seral shrub and herbaceous vegetation. But, very large fire events, also known
as mega-fires, with large extents and proportions of high severity fire can be devastating for wildlife
species associated with closed canopy, mixed conifer, late-successional habitat such as California
spotted owl, northern goshawk, fisher, and marten, which can be greatly affected by the loss and
fragmentation of habitat.

The recent wildfires impacted a variety of habitat types, including a large proportion of mature and
late successional mixed conifer habitat, and resulted in very large, homogeneous blocks of high
severity fire. Because of the enormous amount of change in the quantity, quality, and distribution of
habitat across the recent fire areas, behavior patterns of many of the species in these areas have been
substantially disrupted. For many of the species that historically occupied the project areas, their
habitat use patterns have been disrupted and they have been displaced, so these species are
dispersing to new areas and may be using marginal, lower quality habitat, at least in the short term
if that is the only available option. This may include foraging in areas of fire-affected edge habitat.
For these species, habitat that provides enough cover from predators and a sufficient microclimate,

37



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

as well as foraging opportunities, is likely to be used until such time as new territories are
established in presumably higher quality habitat; a process that may take multiple years, during
which time their reproductive efforts may be lost.

Numerous protected activity centers for California spotted owls and northern goshawks have been
rendered unusable as high severity fire burned through all, or large proportions of, the habitat in
these high value areas. Habitat for other species such as Sierra marten, Pacific fisher, sensitive bat
species, riparian obligate birds, amphibians, reptiles, and invertebrates was also heavily impacted by
the recent wildfires. Where the fires burned at a high and moderate intensity, many, if not all, of the
important habitat features were consumed, such as herbaceous vegetation, shrub cover, downed logs
and woody debris, stumps, leaf litter and other ground cover, in addition to the overstory canopy
needed for shade and moisture retention.

Twenty-nine (29) terrestrial sensitive wildlife species (CA Species of Special Concern and Region 5
Forest Sensitive Species) and 5 federally threatened, endangered, candidate species, including the
gray wolf, have potential to occur in the proposed action area. These species have been analyzed in
detail in the project Wildlife Biological Assessment to establish whether the agency’s actions are
likely to result in a loss of species viability or create significant trends toward federal listing under
the Endangered Species Act.

When considering effects to endangered, threatened, candidate, and sensitive species, the primary
factors of change and impact include those factors that influence habitat suitability, habitat use, or
species behavior. Effects from the proposed action were evaluated using a combination of
qualitative and quantitative indicators. These indicators help determine the degree (magnitude,
duration, and intensity) to which the proposed action may affect individuals or their habitat
components, including predicted changes in an individual species’ response to a disturbance or
habitat manipulation, or changes in habitat function at relevant spatial scales.

Avreas that have burned at high intensity do not contain enough cover or structure to be suitable
habitat for the endangered, threatened, candidate, and sensitive species that may have been present
in the analysis area prior to the fires. In the many areas of very large, homogeneous blocks of high
severity fire, any species that requires moderate or high canopy cover and structural diversity for
protection from predators and temperature regulation, and whose prey requires ground vegetation
and woody debris, would not persist in these areas in the first several years following the fire.
Species such as spotted owls, goshawks, great gray owls, and Sierra marten, are highly unlikely to
venture into these very large, open, homogeneous, severely burned areas, which make up the
majority of the treatment areas. Species that require ground cover and structure in order to regulate
temperature and moisture levels, such as terrestrial salamanders, are also intolerant of these very
open and dry sites.

In addition, fire-killed trees are unlikely to be used by these endangered, threatened, candidate, and
sensitive species in the time period immediately following the fire because these trees tend to be
“case hardened” whereby the outer bark is charred and the tree has been killed by the intense heat of
the fire, but the internal wood is still sound. These trees do not yet contain the defect, decay, or
enough internal rot to be easily excavated by primary cavity excavators (such as woodpeckers)
(Hutto 1995) and so do not contain cavities or other features that would be used for denning,
nesting, or roosting, as would be present in older, pre-fire snags. So, while there is an abundance of
fire-killed trees currently on the landscape following these widespread fires, their relative value to

38



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

the endangered, threatened, candidate, and sensitive species that may have occurred in the fire areas
is very limited until the overstory canopy recovers and natural processes occur that break down the
fire-killed trees, which can take many years (Hutto 1995; Peterson et al. 2009). As these processes
occur across the burned areas, there will be no shortage of fire-killed snags across the landscape due
to the extremely large areas of forest that burned at high severity. Although where large snags occur
close to high-use roads, they can be of a lower value to wildlife due to fragmentation and increased
disturbance generally associated with roads, particularly for higher maintenance level and more
heavily used roads. Therefore, the removal of fire-killed trees in the first few years following these
fires, particularly from within very large blocks of high severity burn areas, is not expected to have
meaningful or measurable impacts to sensitive species, because these species do not require or
utilize these wide expanses of high burn severity in a meaningful way.

Where currently suitable unburned, or low burn severity habitat occurs within treatment units, it
may be somewhat degraded with the removal of hazard trees, by removing important elements of
the habitat (snags). Hazard trees in these areas are assumed to exist as the occasional single tree, or
in scattered small pockets of trees. Felling these hazard trees may reduce potential nesting, roosting,
and denning sites from within suitable habitat. But mitigation measures specifying more
conservative marking guidelines when within riparian areas as well as for retaining extra-large, old-
growth and legacy trees and snags would reduce impacts to these habitats, as well as benefit the
current and future habitat in the analysis areas. Because, if these trees and snags pose a hazard and
need to be felled, these important habitat elements will be kept on the landscape as downed logs and
much of their value for the development of future stand is retained. So, felling of these scattered
hazard trees and dispersed small groups of hazard trees surrounded by suitable habitat would leave
the remaining stand intact and would not change the function of the habitat. Therefore, because only
a minimal number of scattered individual or small pockets of hazard trees within unburned or low
burn severity areas would be felled, this action is unlikely to cause adverse, population-level
impacts to the endangered, threatened, candidate, and sensitive species, or their habitats that may
occur in the analysis areas.

Several mitigation measures were also created to benefit endangered, threatened, candidate, and
sensitive species and help to reduce fragmentation and provide ground-level structure within
severely burned areas. For example, certain slash piles will be retained and left unburned
specifically for marten or fisher escape cover and prey habitat, which would improve connectivity
between habitat patches, particularly along outer edges of canopy openings and riparian corridors.
These mitigation measures in combination with the retention of old-growth, legacy, and extra-large
trees and snags as down logs would benefit species such as marten and fisher, or prey species that
could use the subnivean spaces created by retained logs and piles in these areas in winter. Also, in
order to avoid removing high value habitat elements where possible, for treatments along secondary
and unpaved roads located in high quality fisher habitat, we would consider options other than
complete tree removal for trees or snags greater than 35 inches diameter at breast height and
hardwood snags larger than 27 inches diameter at breast height. Such options may include cutting
the hazard tree as high as possible to leave a portion of the trunk (10 to 20 feet tall) standing and
leaving 15 to 20 feet of the thickest part of the trunk behind, particularly if it is decayed, to provide
potential microsites for denning or resting.

There is potential for the proposed actions to disturb or disrupt reproductive behaviors and normal
activity patterns of the wildlife species that may occur adjacent to, or near, treatment areas.
Increased noise, ground disturbance, human activity, and smoke are all associated with project

39



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

activities, and can result in negative impacts to any wildlife species in the area. To reduce the
potential for negative impacts, mitigation measures would be implemented to protect these species
during their reproductive time periods, as this is when species are most vulnerable and disturbances
can cause the loss of the year’s reproductive effort. Mitigation measures with protective measures
such as limited operating periods, equipment exclusion zones, no-treatment buffers, smoke
mitigations, and pre-implementation surveys are designed to minimize or avoid detrimental impacts
to wildlife species.

So, while habitat for endangered, threatened, candidate, and sensitive species has been greatly
impacted by the recent wildfires, given that the vast majority of treatment would occur along roads
in areas burned at high severity, which have a limited value to these species in the years directly
following the fires, as well as the numerous mitigation measures for the protection of endangered,
threatened, candidate, and sensitive species and their habitats, no population-level impacts or
impacts to the viability of the species are expected beyond what the fires have already done.

The proposed action including mitigation measures BIO-WILD #1-20 would avoid or minimize
impacts to threatened, endangered, and sensitive terrestrial wildlife species to less than significant.

Cumulative effects to Biological Resources:

The existing condition reflects the changes of all activities that have occurred in the past. The
analysis of cumulative effects evaluates the impact on sensitive species from the existing condition
within the analysis area. To understand the contribution of past actions to the cumulative effects of
the proposed action, this analysis relies on current environmental conditions as a proxy for the
impacts of past actions. This is because existing conditions reflect the aggregate impact of all prior
human actions and natural events that have affected the environment and might contribute to
cumulative effects to threatened, endangered, and sensitive wildlife, plants, and their habitats.

The spatial bounding for the cumulative effects analysis for most of the species analyzed is two-
part: the area within the 300-feet buffer on either side of affected roads, trails, and fences within the
given fire perimeter and the area within 0.25 mile of the treatment units. This spatial bounding
would capture the physical change to the habitat within the 300-feet buffer from implementation of
the proposed actions, and the approximate area where noise or smoke from implementation may
impact threatened, endangered, and sensitive species outside or within the treatment unit itself.
Where relevant, the discussion of effects may consider past, current, ongoing, and reasonably
foreseeable actions outside of this bounding.

Actions within this spatial and temporal bounding that may occur in the foreseeable future that
overlap both in space and time with the proposed actions were analyzed for their potential to result
in additive impacts to threatened, endangered, and sensitive species or their habitats within the
project Wildlife Biological Evaluation/Biological Assessment and the Aquatic Biological
Evaluation/Biological Assessment.

On federal land, ongoing actions with the potential to affect terrestrial wildlife species and their
habitats include timber harvest and fuels reduction, fire management (suppression, post-fire repair
and prescribed fire), watershed restoration, road and facility maintenance, nonnative invasive plant
management, special use permit implementation (such as utility corridors, rights-of-ways),
recreation, water diversions, livestock grazing, and ongoing minerals exploration and mining
activities. Additional ongoing and planned federal actions within the analysis area include Federal

40



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

Energy Regulatory Commission relicensing and Federal Highway Administration projects. Ongoing
or future actions initiated by federal agencies would be designed or mitigated to minimize effects to
threatened, endangered, and sensitive wildlife species and their habitats, and would therefore, avoid
cumulative impacts where that potential may exist, as required under various laws such as the
National Forest Management Act and the Endangered Species Act.

On lands of other ownership, planned and ongoing actions include vegetation management (for
example, timber projects and fire suppression), State highway projects and maintenance,
agriculture, livestock grazing, private and county road maintenance, and building and development.
State and local regulations will provide some protections for threatened, endangered, and sensitive
wildlife species and their habitats including stream and riparian habitats. Ground-disturbing and
noise-generating activities may worsen human disturbance within the project area in the short term
where the activities overlap in space and time with the proposed federal activities.

Overall, given the broad geographical scope of the project, but relatively small, spatially
intermittent treatments, paired with applied mitigation measures BIO-BOT #1-6, BIO-INV #1-6,
BIO-AQUA #1-24, and BIO-WILD #1-20 and best management practices, cumulative impacts to
threatened, endangered, and sensitive species and their habitats from the proposed action, in
combination with planned and ongoing activities and climate change are expected to be minor or
negligible.

41



Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

Table 2: Biological Assessment — Botany

Federal and CA Endangered, Threatened, and/or Candidate Species

Scientific Common Federal Flowering | Elevation . .

Name Name Status State Status Period (m) Habitat/Ecology Impact Rationale
Treatments not likely to
occur in preferred

Open, damp depressions in habitat; Mitigation
Arnica fulgens Hillside arnica None 2B.2 Apr-May 1495-2700 pen, b dep No Measures BIO-BOT #1-
sagebrush or grassland
6, and HYD-1 should
minimize and avoid
impacts to habitat
Astragalus i . . Treatments not likely to
pulsiferae var. Su_ksdorf,s FS Sensitive 1B.2 May-Aug 1300-2000 L_o ose, often rocky soil, often with No occur in preferred
- milk-vetch pines, sagebrush X
suksdorfii habitat.
Streams, bogs and fens, meadows Mitigation Measures
Betula Dwarf resin and seeps, marshes and swamps, BI1O-BOT #1-6, and
- None 2B.2 May-June | 1300-2300 | meadow edges in Lower montane No HYD-1 should minimize
glandulosa birch . . g
coniferous forest up to sub-alpine and avoid impacts to
coniferous forest. habitat
s Rocky, serpentine slopes, ridges in . -
Boechera_ Constance’s None 1B.1 May-July 975-2025 | chaparral, lower and upper montane No No_habltat within the
constancei rock cress i project area.
coniferous forest
Mitigation Measures
. . BIO-BOT #1-6, and
Botrychium Upswept FS Sensitive 2B.3 July-Aug | 1500-3200 | Moist meadows, open woodlands No | HYD-1 should minimize
ascendens moonwort near streams and seeps g
and avoid impacts to
habitat
Mitigation Measures
Botrvchium Scalloed Saturated hard water seeps and BI1O-BOT #1-6, and
y P FS Sensitive 2B.2 June-Sept | 1500-3600 | stream margins, moist meadow, No HYD-1 should minimize
crenulatum moonwort -
seeps, bogs, fens and avoid impacts to
habitat
Mitigation Measures
Botrychium Mingan . Meadows, open forest along streams BIO-BOT #1-6, a_n(_j .
- FS Sensitive 4.2 July-Sept 1190-3290 ' No HYD-1 should minimize
minganense moonwort or around seeps. g
and avoid impacts to
habitat
. . . Mitigation Measures
Botrychium Western FS Sensitive 2B.1 July-Sept | 1500-2100 | Shady conifer woodland, especially No | BIO-BOT #1-6, and
montanum goblin under Calocedrus along streams

HYD-1 should minimize

42




Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

and avoid impacts to
habitat

Botrychium
pinnatum

Northwestern
moonwort

FS Sensitive

2B.3

July-Oct

1770-2040

Moist fields, shrubby slopes

No

Nearest occurrence 15
miles southwest of
project area. Mitigation
Measures BIO-BOT #1-
6, and HYD-1 should
minimize and avoid
impacts to habitat

Brasenia
schreberi

Watershield

None

2B.3

June-Sept

<2200

Wetlands; Wetland-riparian; Ponds;
slow streams; marshes; swamps

No

Mitigation Measures
BIO-BOT #1-6, and
HYD-1 should minimize
and avoid impacts to
habitat.

Bruchia
bolanderi

Bolander’s
brachia

FS Sensitive

4.2

Meadows and seeps, damp soil in
lower and upper montane coniferous
forest

No

Mitigation Measures
BIO-BOT #1-6, and
HYD-1 should minimize
and avoid impacts to
habitat.

Carex davyi

Davy’s sedge

None

1B.3

May-Aug

1400-3300

Usually in wetlands; sub-alpine and
red fir forests

No

Usually found higher
than project area.
Mitigation Measures
BI1O-BOT #1-6, and
HYD-1 should minimize
and avoid impacts to
habitat

Carex
lasiocarpa

Woolly-fruited
sedge

None

2B.3

June-July

1700-2100

Lake, pond shores, generally
standing water

No

Mitigation Measures
BIO-BOT #1-6, and
HYD-1 should minimize
and avoid impacts to
habitat

Carex limosa

Mud sedge

None

2B.2

June-Aug

1200-1700

Spaghum bogs

No

No habitat within the
project area.

Carex petasata

Liddons sedge

None

2B.3

May-July

600-3320

Dry to wet meadows, open forest

No

Treatments will not
occur in preferred habitat
Mitigation Measures
BIO-BOT #1-6, and
HYD-1 should minimize
and avoid impacts to
habitat

Carex sheldonii

Sheldon’s

None

2B.2

May-Aug

1200-2000

Wetlands; riparian; Lower montane

No

Mitigation Measures

43




Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

sedge coniferous forest (mesic); marshes BIO-BOT #1-6, and
and swamps HYD-1 should minimize
and avoid impacts to
habitat
Mitigation Measures
Castilleia Lassen Volcanic soils in meadows and BI1O-BOT #1-6, and
13 ; None 1B.3 July-Sept 955-3120 | seeps and subalpine coniferous No HYD-1 should minimize
lassenensis paintbrush g
forest and avoid impacts to
habitat.
Mitigation Measures
Cvoripedium Clustered Moist, partially shaded slopes under BIO-BOT #1-6, and
yprip : FS Sensitive 4.2 Mar — Aug | 100 - 2435 | mountain dogwood (Cornus No HYD-1 should minimize
fasciculatum ladys-slipper - g
nuttallii). and avoid impacts to
habitat.
No habitat within project
. Mesic soils in bogs, fens, swamps area, Mitigation
Drosera anglica English None 2B.3 June-Sept | 1300-2255 | peatlands, meadows and seeps often No Measures BIO-BOT #1-
sundew - 6, and HYD-1 should
with Sphagnum R .
minimize and avoid
impacts to habitat.
Mitigation Measures
A BIO-BOT #1-6, and
Egllllg?r':m wi?{Stherb None 2B.3 July-Aug 1825-2345 g;tmizd\?vgsérs::fs, bogs, No HYD-1 should minimize
P ' and avoid impacts to
habitat.
Erigeron Plumas ravless Serpentine, disturbed soils; gravelly Habitat not likely to
lassenianus var dais y None 1B.3 June-Sept | 1360-1750 | disturbed sites, lower montane No occur within treatment
deficiens y forests areas.
Snow fleabane Volcanic rocks, meadows, and seeps Found at higher
Erigeron nivalis dais None 2B.3 July-Aug 1735-2900 | in sub-alpine coniferous forests , No elevations than project
y alpine boulder, and rock fields area.
Eriogonum . I
ovalifolium var. Depressed None 2B.1 June-Aug 1725-1740 | Dry playas No No habitat within
buckwheat treatment areas.
depressum
Clay and volcanic soils in Great Mitigation Measures
Eriogonum Prostrate ES Sensitive 1B.2 May — Aug | 1300-2705 Basin scrub, pinyon/juniper No BIO—BO'I_' #1—_6, and
prociduum buckwheat woodland, and upper montane should minimize and
coniferous forests. avoid impacts to habitat.
Eriogonum . . Treatments will not
pyrolifolium Pyrola-leaved None 2B.3 July-Sept. | 1675-3200 Alpln_e boulder and rock field No occur in preferred
var buckwheat (pumice, sandy, gravelly habitat

44




Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

pyrolifolium
. Found at higher
. , Rocky, gravelly, sandy glaciated L .
Erlogoqum Barron’s None 1B.2 July-Sept | 2010-2050 | andesite soils in upper coniferous No eIevatlons,' not likely to
spectabile buckwheat forests occur within treatment
areas.
Among rocks and boulders on moist Mitigation Measures
Erythranthe Ephemeral gravel, previously flooded, in Great BI1O-BOT #1-6, and
- FS Sensitive 1B.2 May-Aug 1250-1740 | Basin scrub, lower montane No HYD-1 should minimize
inflatula monkeyflower ; g
coniferous forest, and and avoid impacts to
pinyon/juniper woodland. habitat.
No known occurrences
Eurybia merita Subalpine None 2B.3 July-Aug 1300-2085 | Upper montane coniferous forest. No in Lassen Co., ne_arest
aster occurrence 30 mi. south
of the project area.
Frasera Modoc green- Openings, dry brushy places in Treatments not likely to
albicaulis var. . None 2B.3 May-July 900-1750 | Great Basin grasslands, sometimes No occur in preferred
modocensis gentian upper montane coniferous forest habitat.
Mitigation Measures
BIO-AQUA-14: Vermal
Pools —as well as
mitigation measures
Sratiola Boggs Lake None Endangered Apr-Aug 10-2375 Shallow water, mqrgins of vernal No pertain!n_g to prote;ction
eterosepala hedge-hyssop pools with clay soils. of sensitive botanical
species and spread of
invasive weeds should
avoid and minimize
impacts to habitat.
Mitigation Measures
. Wet areas in montane coniferous BIO-BOT #1-6, a_n(_j .
Juncus dudleyi Dudley’s rush None 2B.3 July-Aug <2000 forest No HYD-1 should minimize
and avoid impacts to
habitat.
Proposed project is
Lewisia . . L outside the geographic
kelloggii ssp. :—|ut_ck_nsons FS Sensitive 3.2 June-Aug 765-2365 Higher elevation ridgetops and . 0 range. Nearest location is
hutchisonii ewisia passes. Mostly bare and rocky soil. 30 miles south of project
area..
Lewisia Kelloggs Decomposed granite, volcanic ash, SL?ngeg]gggg;;Zhic
kelloggii ssp. lewisi FS Sensitive 3.2 June-Aug 1465-2365 | rubble, upper montane coniferous N N t location i
kelloggii ewisia forest. range. Nearest location is

32 miles distant.

45




Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

Lomatium
roseanum

Adobe
lomatium

FS Sensitive

1B.2

June-July

1460-2250

Openings, gravelly or rocky; Great
Basin scrub; Lower montane
coniferous forest

No

Habitat not likely to
occur in treatment areas.

Lysimachia
thyrsiflora

tufted
loosestrife

None

2B.3

Mar-Aug

975-1675

Meadows and seeps (mesic);
marshes and swamps; upper
montane coniferous forest.

No

No occurrences in
Lassen Co. Nearest
occurrence 16 miles west
of project area.

Meesia ulginosa

Broad-nerved
hump moss

FS Sensitive

2B.2

Oct

1210-2804

Damp soils in bogs, fens, meadows,
seeps in upper montane and sub-
alpine forests

No

Nearest occurrence to
project area at Lake
Davis 30 miles southeast
of the project area.

Navarretia
leucocephala
ssp. bakeri

Baker’s
navarretia

None

1B.1

Apr-July

<1700

Vernal pools, meadows, and seeps.

No

Mitigation Measures
BIO-AQUA-14: Vermal
Pools —as well as
mitigation measures
pertaining to protection
of sensitive botanical
species and spread of
invasive weeds should
avoid and minimize
impacts to habitat.

Oruttia tenuis

Slender orcutt
grass

Threatened

Endangered

May-Sept

35-1760

Vernal pools, often gravelly

No

Mitigation Measures
BIO-AQUA-14: Vermal
Pools —as well as
mitigation measures
pertaining to protection
of sensitive botanical
species and spread of
invasive weeds should
avoid and minimize
impacts to habitat.

Oreostemma
elatum

Tall alpine-
aster

FS Sensitive

1B.2

June-Aug

1005-2100

Mesic soils in bogs, fens, peatlands,
marshy areas, wet meadow, upper
montane coniferous forest

No

Mitigation Measures
BIO-BOT #1-6, and
HYD-1 should minimize
and avoid impacts to
habitat.

Orthocarpus
bracteosus

Rosy
orthocarpus

None

2B.1

June-Aug

1030-1850

Moist meadows and seeps

No

Mitigation Measures
BIO-BOT #1-6, and
HYD-1 should minimize
and avoid impacts to
habitat.

46




Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

Mitigation Measures
Packera Rayless Damp areas along streams BIO-BOT #1-6, and
. mountain None 2B.2 July-Aug | 1450-2000 P g ’ No HYD-1 should minimize
indecora meadows, woodlands g
ragwort and avoid impacts to
habitat.
Penstemon Closed- Metavolcanic soils in chaparral, slﬁgzegfﬁ;?egt ll\?earest
throated FS Sensitive 1B.2 June-Sept | 1065-2120 | lower and upper montane coniferous No de of range-
personatus location is 10 miles
beardtongue forest. di
istant.
Phlox Squarestem Habitat within project
. q None 2B.3 Jun-Aug 1400-2700 | Open rocky area; alpine rock No area will not be disturbed
muscoides phlox . L
by project activities.
Mitigation Measures
Potamoaeton White- BIO-BOT #1-6, and
9 stemmed None 2B.3 July-Aug 1800-3000 | Deep water, lakes, marshes, swamps No HYD-1 should minimize
praelongus g
pondweed and avoid impacts to
habitat.
Potentilla Newberry’s Receding shorelines (drying Nearest location 28
. . y None 2B.3 May-Aug 1300-2200 | margins; vernal pools, marshes, No miles northeast of
newberri cinquefoil ;
swamps. project area.
Alkaline clay flats; sagebrush scrub; No known occurrences
Pyr_rocoma Sticky ES Sensitive 1B.2 July-Oct 700-2050 | OPENings in Iowe.r montane No Wlthln the p_rOJect area;
lucida pyrrocoma coniferous forest; meadows and habitat not likely to
seeps occur in treatment area.
Mitigation Measures
. . BIO-BOT #1-6, and
Rhamnus Alder None 2B.2 May — July | 1370-2130 | “Wetlands, red fir, lodgepole pine, No | HYD-1 should minimize
alnifolia buckthorn wetland-riparian g
and avoid impacts to
habitat.
Mitigation Measures
. BIO-BOT #1-6, and
Rhynchospora White beaked- None 2B.2 June-Aug 60-2040 Boggy open sites No HYD-1 should minimize
alba rush Dy
and avoid impacts to
habitat.
Mitigation Measures
. . . BIO-BOT #1-6, and
Rorippa Columbia FS Sensitive 1B.2 May-Sept | 1200-1800 | Streambanks, lake or pond margins, |\ | {vp 1 should minimize
columbiae yellow cress meadows, wet fields, vernal pools s
and avoid impacts to
habitat.
Scheuchzeria American . . . Mitigation Measures
palustris scheuchzeria FS Sensitive 2B.1 July-Aug 1370-2000 | Floating mats, bogs, lake margins No BIO-BOT #1-6, and

47




Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

HYD-1 should minimize
and avoid impacts to
habitat. No known
occurrences in Lassen
Co.

Mitigation Measures
BIO-BOT #1-6, and
HYD-1 should minimize
Water bulrush None 2B.3 June-Aug 750-2250 | Fresh lakes, streams low in nutrients No and avoid impacts to
habitat.. No known
occurrences in Lassen

Schoenoplectus
subterminalis

Co.
Mitigation Measures
Stellaria Long-leaved Bogs, fens, mesic areas in riparian BIO-BOT #1-6, and
lonaifoli None 2B.2 May-Aug 900-1830 | woodland and upper montane No HYD-1 should minimize
ongifolia starwort . g
coniferous forest. and avoid impacts to
habitat.
Steno'gus Shallow, rocky, loamy soils in Mitigation Measures
lanuginosus Woolly None 2B.2 May-July | 1500-1930 | sagebrush scrub, juniper woodland, No BI.O.'B.OT #1-6 Sh.OUId
var. stenotus minimize and avoid
lanuginosus dry meadows. impacts to habitat.
g p
Treatments not likely to
occur in preferred
Stipa exigua Little ricegrass None 2B.3 June 2345-2420 | Rocky slopes in sagebrush scrub No habitat. Occurs at higher
elevations than project
area.
Mitigation Measures
BIO-BOT #1-6, and
Utricularia Flat-leaved HYD-1 should minimize
. . None 2B.2 July-Aug 1200-2700 | Shallow water, <1 m No and avoid impacts to
intermedia bladderwort .
habitat. No known
occurrences in Lassen
Co.
State Status - CNPS Rare Plant Rank
1B — Plant rare, threatened, or endangered in CA and elsewhere .1 - Seriously threatened in CA
2B — Plant rare, threatened, or endangered in CA, but common elsewhere .2 —moderately threatened in CA
3 - More information needed .3 —not very threatened in CA

4 - Watch list — Plants of limited distribution

48




Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

Table 3 — Biological Assessment — Wildlife

Habitat
Scientific Common Federal State Habitat in the Potential
Name Name Status Status Project Impact
Area
Insects
Three basic habitat requirements:
suitable nesting sites for the colonies,
nectar and pollen from floral resources Although impacts to individuals may
available throughout the duration of the occur, they are not expected, and
Bombus Western ES Sensitive Candidate | colony period (spring, summer and fall), Yes suitable habitat for this species is not
occidentalis bumblebee Endangered | and suitable overwintering sites for the targeted for treatment. Therefore,
gueens. Nests occur primarily in population level impacts to this species
underground cavities such as old squirrel are not expected.
or other animal nests and in open west-
southwest slopes bordered by trees.
There are no known egg, larva, or
Species of | Live in a variety of habitats. Require chrysalis locations within the project
Danaus Monarch Candidate Special milkweed plants for laying eggs, and Yes area. Mitigation measures provide a
plexippus butterfly Concern other flowering plants for nectar. Winter level of protection to the species such
(SSC) along Pacific Coast as minimizing spread of invasive
species.
Agquatics and Fisheries
They inhabit partially shaded, rocky Project would create short-term
perennial streams and their life cycle is increase in sediment. Individuals could
synchronized with the seasonal timing of be crushed or disturbed in the upland
streamflow conditions. They breed in areas. Mitigation measures for soils,
Rana boylii Foothill streams with riffles containing cobble- wate_rshed, and fi_sher_ies/aquatic _
00p. 2 ’ yellow- Threatened | Threatened | sized or larger roc_ks as substrate. These Yes species would_ml_nlmlze the potential
‘ legged frog frogs need perennial water where they for direct and indirect effects,
can forage through the summer and fall including EEZs and LOPs during wet
months. Usually found within a few feet weather would reduce potential for
of water. individuals to be crushed or disturbed
(BIO-AQUA-23 and BIO AQUA-24).
Sierra Associated with streams, lakes and ponds Project would create short-term
Rana sierrae Nevada Endangered | Threatened | in montane riparian, lodgepole pine, Yes increase in sediment. Individuals could
yellow- subalpine conifer, and wet meadow be crushed or disturbed in the upland

49




Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

Habitat
Scientific Common Federal State Habitat in the Potential
Name Name Status Status Project Impact
Area
legged frog habitats at elevations from 4,500 - areas. Mitigation measures for soils,
11,980 ft. Aquatic species usually found watershed, and fisheries/aquatic
within a few feet of water. Eggs are species would minimize the potential
usually laid in shallow water attached to for direct and indirect effects,
gravel or rocks. Tadpoles may require up including EEZs and LOPs during wet
to two over-wintering periods to weather would reduce potential for
complete their aquatic development. individuals to be crushed or disturbed
(BIO-AQUA-23 and BIO AQUA-24).
Species ranges throughout Cascades
with many extant populations.
Common in areas, although declining
in others. Recorded occurrences fall
Rana cascadae 1(::ascades ES Sensitive Candidate — Yes within the_projegt area. Miti_ga_tion
rog Endangered measures including EEZs, limits on
stream crossings, and protections for
sediment delivery, would limit direct
and indirect effects to species and its
habitat within treatments.
Adults spend much of their lives
undergrou_nd, often utilizing the tunnels Common in areas, although declining
of burrowing m_ammals such as moles in others. Recorded occurrences fall
and ground squirrels. Tran_sformed within the project area. Mitigation
Ambystoma Southern adults are rarely found outside of the measures including EEZS. limits on
macrodactylum | Long-Toed None ssC breeding season. They are mostly found Yes - UCing o
sigillatum Salamander under wood, logs, rocks, bark and other stream crossings, and protections for
. » 1008, FOCKS, ; sediment delivery, would limit direct
prECtS near breeding sites which can and indirect effects to species and its
include ponds, Iakes_, anq streams, or habitat within treatments.
when they are breeding in the water.
Reptiles
Associated with permanent or nearly Species has large range, but
Emys Western ES Sensitive SSC permanent water in a wide variety of Yes distribution and abundance have
marmorata pond turtle habitats. Require basking sites such as declined. Recorded occurrences fall

partially submerged logs, rocks, mats of

within the proposed treatment area.

50




Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Proposed LNF ELRD Hazard Tree Management Project

Habitat
Scientific Common Federal State Habitat in the Potential
Name Name Status Status Project Impact
Area
floating vegetation, or open mud banks. While some direct effects may occur,
Along large slow-moving streams, eggs mitigation measures, especially EEZs
are deposited in nests constructed in would protect the turtles while using
sandy banks. Along foothill streams, aquatic habitat. Mitigation measure
females may climb hillsides, sometimes B1O-AQUA-13 will substantially limit
moving considerable distances (300 ft.) the risk of direct effects to turtles while
to find a suitable nest site. nesting or overwintering in upland
habitat.
Birds
There are no known nests within the
project areas and nesting habitat is not
Occupy various woodland, forest, targeted for treatment. Protection
Haliaeetus _ grassland, and wetlan_d 